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VIOLATIONS OF FREE SPEECH AND RIGHTS OF LABOR

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 30, 1937

Uxitep STATES SENATE,
Supcommrrres oF THE CoMMITTEE 0N EpUcaTioN aAND LABOR,
Washington, D. C.

The committee met at 10 a. m., pursuant to call, in the caucus room,
Senate Office Building, Senator Robert M. La Follette Jr. presuilncr.

Present: Senators Robert M. La Follette, Jr. (chauman), and
Elbert D. Thomas, of Utah; John J. Abt, counsel for the committee;
Robert Wohlforth, secretary of the committee.

Scnator La Forterrs, The committee will be in order, please

Mr. Robert Wohlforth.

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT WOHLFORTH—Resumed

¢ Senator La Forrerre. You have previously been sworn, Mr, Wohl-
forth but please state your name and your posttion for the record.

Mr, Wontrorrn. Robert Wohlforth, secretary of the committee.
At thig time, Mr, Chairman, T would like to offer for the record some
charts.

Senator La Forrerre. They may be given exhibit numbers.

Mr. Womrrorta. The small map, on the easel at the right, is the
first chart we wish to enter into the record. It was drawn by the
Chicago Guaranty Co. to scale, a plat of the vicinity.

(I‘he chart was marked “Ixhibit 1326” and iz held in committee
files.

Mr)' WonrrortHE. That map, Mr. Chairman, enlarged, is the large
graph that hangs directly in the center of the front of this room.

(The chart was marked “Exhibit 1327 and is reproduced in the
appendix on p. 5131.)*

Mr. Wonrrorta. On the left, on the smaller easel, iz an enlarge-
ment of the section of the Iand at which the Memorial Day incident
tock place.
ﬁl(’I;he chart. was marked “IExhibit 1328” and is held in committee

s

Mr. Worrrorrr, Referring fo the large graph in the center, the
maéJ is oriented. The north 1s to the top, the bottom is south.

reen Bay Avenue, which is the road on the right of the chart,
runs north and south, In the upper right-hand corner of that graph,
is & small black mark indicated as Sam’s Place. That is a former
tavern which is now the strike headquarters for the strikers of the
Republic Steel plant.

1 References to “the chari” in discussion of the locatmn of the plant and scene of the
Incident in following pages are to this exhibit, 4635
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Down Green Bay Avenue, at about One Hundred and Thirteenth
Street, dirt roads branch across an epen prairie. The two black spots
halfway down these roads are baseball diamonds. The road con-
tinues on through very flat ground, some of it marshy, until it comes
to a ditch which is about 4 feet deep. Those two black spots on the
left, or west, of the ditch are gardens without fences. The black spot
on the right of the dirt road is another garden. The dotted lines
and the cross-hatched lines are fences running down to buildings at
the end of the dirt road. _

The dirt road runs into a hard-surface road known as Burley Ave-
nue. Burley Avenue runs down to the entrance to the gates of the
Republic Steel Corporation, o

The plant of the Republic Steel Corporation is bounded, as you
see, by the tracks of the Pennsylvania Railroad and a high fence.
At the end of the fence there are large scrap-steel piles. At the junec-
tion of Burley Avenue and the dirt roads the other houses and fences
are indicated there, '

East One Hundred and Seventeenth Street runs over to Avenue
0O, which is the main thoroughfare leading into that vicinity.

That is all T have, Mr. Chairman.

Senitor La Forrerte. Commissioner James P. Allman, please.

TESTIMONY OF JAMES P. ALLMAN

(The witness was sworn by Senator La Follette.)
Senator I.a Forurrre, Be seated, please. Will you state your

name?

Mr. Ariman., James P. Allman.

Senator La Forrerre, Where do you reside?

Mr. Aviaman. 6237 University Avenue, Chicago.

Senator Lia FoLrerre. And your occupation? :

Mr, Aruyan. Police commissioner, city of Chicago.

Senator La Forrerre. How long have you held that position?

Mr. Auman. Five years and nine months.

Senator La Forrerte, How long have you been connected with
the police department or the police force?

Mr. Arrman. More than 36 years.

Senator La Forrerre. Will you state briefly for the record, Com-
missioner, your duties ag commissioner of police?

Mr. Aveyan, To enforce the laws and protect life and property.

Senator La Forrerre. Are you in charge of and responsible for the
activities in a general way of the police force of the city of Chicago?

Mr. Arnsian, Entirely.

Senator L.a Foruerre. For administrative purposes, iz the city
divided info districts?

Mr. Avemax, And divisions,

Senator La Fovrerre. And who is the highest responsible officer
e dn a division?
- Mr. Arcman, The supervising captain,

Senator I.a Forrerre. And who 18 the highest responsible officer
in a district?

Mr. Arrman. Captain, .

Senator Lo Forwerre, To whom are the district captaing imme-
diately. responsible? '
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Mr. Aveman. To the supervising captain.

Senator La Forrerre. And the L%ivisi()n captains?

Mr. Aveaaw. To the chief of the uniformed force.

Senator La Fourwrre, T take it from your response to the last
question that the force is divided into uniformed and plain-clothes

- men, detectives?

Mr. ArimaN. Yes; we have a detective burean also,

Senator Lia Forirrte, Now, are each of the general divisions, that
is, the uniformed division and the detective division, under heads
who are in charge of them under you?

Mr. Arrman. Yes.

Senator La Forrerre. Who is in charge of the detective force?

Mr, Arpman. John L. Sullivan. )

‘ Ser};ttor La Forrerre. And who is in charge of the uniformed
orce!

Mr. Aveman. The chief of the uniformed force, John C. Prender-
gast,

Senator La Fourerre, And what are his duties?

Mr. ArLmaw. His duties are to carry out all of my orders.

Senator La Forreres. He is your executive officer, so to speak?

Mr. Arrman. Yes; and to supervise the work of all other officers.

Senator La Forrerte, What are his duties and responsibilities in
relation to the captains in charge of districts?

Mr. Aviman. He is in charge of them.

Senator L.a ForLerre. And the same thing is true of the captains
who are in charge of divisions?

Mr. Arvtman, Yes, sir.

Senator I.a Forieres., Are you familiar with the location of the
plant of the Republic Steel Corporation in Chicago?

Mr. Armaxn, In a general way.

Senator I.a Forrerte, Approximately where is it located ¢

Mr. Avuman. About One hundred  and Eighteenth Street and
Green Bay.

Senator LaForrerte. And in what police distriet is the plant
located ?

Mr, Aviaan. The ninth district,

Senator Lia Fowrerre. Who is in charge of that distriet?

Mr. Avrman, Thomas Kilroy.

Senator La Fovrerme, Where are his headquarters?

Mr. Ariman. The ninth district headquarters are about One-
hundred and First and Union Avenue.

Senator La Forrerre. In which division is Captain Kilroy’s dis-
trict located ?

Mr. Avrman, Second division.

_Senator La Fortmrre. And who is the captain in charge of that
divigion

Mr. Avpvawn. James L, Mooney.

Senator La Fourerre. Where are his headquarters located?

Mr. AxrrmanN. Burnside station, Ninetieth and Cottage Grove
Avenue,

Senator La Foruwrre. For the record, Commissioner, you are
familiar with the fact that a strike was called at the plant of the
Republic Steel Corporation May 26 of this year?

r. Atiman. I am.
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Senator La Forrerre. When did you first learn that a strike was
threatened or contemplated ?

Mr. Arrman, There were general rumors around for some con-
siderable time, but on Monday or Tuesday, the 24th or 25th, the chief
of the uniformed force came to me and said a strike was imminent
gl the Youngstown Sheet & Tube Co. and also in the Republic Iron

o,

Senator Tmomas. He told you how he found that out, did he?

Mr. Azimawn., Noj he didn’t. It was generally rumored all over
the city. I told him to make a survey of the conditions and he did
that, and sometime in the forenoon of Wednesday he reported to me
and said that the strike would probably take place at 3 o’clock that
afternoon or 11 o’clock at night.

Senator La Forrerre. That was Wednesday, the 26th?

Mr. Avzmaw. Yes. T told him to make the necessary detail to
preserve the peace and to protect Hfe and property.

Senator La Forzerre. Pardon me, Commissioner, T think you said
when he came to you the first time and reported the imminence of the
strike you asked him to make an investigation ?

Mr. Arzman. To make a survey of the conditions surrounding it.

Senator La Forrerte, Did he do so?

Mr. Aruman. He did.

Senator La Fourmrre, Did he submit any report in writing?

Mr. Avrman. No, .

Senator La Forurrre. He gave you an oral report ?

Mr. Arzman. Yes,

Senator Lia Forrerre. What was the substance of that oral report ?

Mr. Avrmaw. That the strike was apparently imminent, that it
looked as though they would strike and he had surveyed the sur-
roundings of both plants,

Senator La Forrerre. Both the Youngstown Sheet & Tube and the
Republic?

Mr. Arnman. Yes. :

Senator La Forurrre. What else did he say in his oral report?

Mr. Arzman. I don’t know of anything else he said,

Senator La Foreerre, That is all you remember?

Mr. Arnman. Yes.

Senator T.a Forrmrre. Did he describe the physical situation, the
location?

Mr, ArimaN. Noj he didn’t describe it to me. In the first place, I
was fairly well acquainted with the location of both of them.

Senator Tromas. Did he mention any outside police officers or
detective agencies or persons who were cooperating in any way?

Mr. Ariman. No,

Senator Tmomas. Who had been investigating whether a strike
was to take place!

Mr. Auzman. No.

Senator Taomas. You know of no persons of that type?

%&d N_EP. Arrman. Do I know of any persons of that type? No, sir; I
Zdon’t.

Senator Tmomas. Their names or persons never appeared in your
records at all?

Mr. AvLman. Not only that, I don’t know anything of them, never
heard of them. e
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Senator THoMAs. Well, you have heard of the Pinkerton detective
agency ?

Mr. Aviman. I know of it, certainly. )

Senator THomMas. And you know, ordinarily, about similar organi-
zations that take care of industrial difficulties, don’t you?

Mr. Arzvan. Noj I don’t know that I have ever come in contact
with that condition?

Senator Tmomas. Never met any of them?

Mr. Avtaran. Oh, I have met the men. I know a great many of the
Pinkerton men, especially the officers, ) i

Senator Tmoamas. Do you know any other agencies working around
at this time ¥ .

Mr. Anrman. I had not heard of any agency working around at
ithat time.

Senator THomas. None of your men reported the existence of any
man working under independent private detective agencies?

Mr. Arzman. No, sir,

Senator Tuomas. What about the company police?

Mr. Arumaw. I don't know anything of it at that time, or now,
even,

Senator Tmomas. Does it exist?

Mr. Arzman. I understand it exists. They have a police force
or a force of watchmen, whichever you might call it.

Senator TroMas, Do you know who is the superintendent of that
force of watchmen ?

Mr, Arzman, Which? :

Senator Tromas. Do you know who is the superintendent of that
foree of watchmen?

Mr. Auiman. Noj; I don’t. I know who the superintendent of
the Republic Steel mill is at Chicago. .

Senator Tmomas. No; I am thinking of the police officers in the
steel mill.

Mr. Attman. No; T don’t.

Senator Twmomas, Do you know whether they were there under
direction of an independent agency or supervised by regular steel
officials ? -

- Mr. Avzyaw. T don’t know.

Senator Trmomas. And there is no mention in any of tlie reports
about this type of agency?

Mr, Arraan. No, sir.

Senator Tromas, As far as the troubles are concerned between
the strikers and the police there are no third parties at all inter-
ested ?

Mr. Arraraw. Not that T am aware of,

Senator Tmomas. Just this trouble between the official Chicago
policemen and the striking individuals?

Mr. Ariwan, If you can call it trouble; yes.

Senator Tromas, Well, trouble means many things,

Mr. Azzman. Yes; I know it does,

Senator THomas. I hope that it is not a great trouble. Do you
see, Mr. Commissioner, what I am trying to get at? Whenever
there is a difficulty, if there are only two factions to the difficulty,
you can generally break down motives and you can understand a
fight if the difficulty goes into a fight. But if there are persons
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in the background representing third parties, be they representa-
tives of unions or private detective agencies, or employers, it does
not make any difference what—I want to know for this Investigation
whether all of the things which were done under the direction of
the police had their origin with the police.

?_11‘. Arrmaw. They did, all of them had their origin with the
police.

Senator Tmomas, Then the police are entirely responsible for
everything that took place, as far as the policemen are concerned ?

Mr. Arimawn, Absolutely.

Sepator I'momas. What about the strikers—have you carried on
an_investigation about them ¢

Mr. Avcmax. About the strikers? .

Senator Trmomas. Yes; to find out who is responsible for that.

Mr. Arrvan, We are carrying on an investigation; yes,

Senator TwHomas. Was there anyone outside of the strikers them-
selves interested in this strike?

Mr. Arrmax. The State’s attorney of Cook County is carrying
on the investigation.

Senator Troaas. That is the State!?

Mr. Azimaw, Yes.

Senator Tuomas, But I mean non-State, a non-State group.

Mr, Arzman. I don’t quite understand what you meain, sir,

Senator Tromas, Well, a labor union, for example, or a detective
agency.

Mr. Ariman. We know the labor unions were there, of course.

Senator Truomas. A labor union that was geparate from the
strikers?

Mr, Arzmaxn, That T don’t know.

Senator Tromas, You haven’t heard about that?

Mr, Arrman. Noj T don’t know.

Senator Tuomas. Then, as far as you are concerned in your in-
vestigation and your survey, you merely made an investigation and
survey of the physical characteristics in relation to the strike?

Mr, Avimawn. Yes; before the strike.

Senator THomas., And not of the probable personal characteristics?

Mr. Arrmawn, I don’t quite understand what you mean by “per-
sonal characteristics.”

Senator Taomas. Men; living beings. :

Mr. Aurvaw. No; we didn't make any investigation before the
strike as to the men.

Senator Trmomas. You didn’t know how many strikers there would
be, probably?

Mr. Arpman. I didn’t know; no.

Senator La Forrerre, Now, when you had this first talk with
Captain Prendergast and he made this oral report to you, was there
any discussion between yow and Captain Prendergast as to the num-
ber of men that might be required ?

Mr. Artaan. Noj he was in the field. T was in my office and had
not left it for a great many days. He was in the field and knew how
many men would be required. : .

~ Senator La Forrerre. As I understand you, you did not give him

any instructions when you had this first oral report from him; is

that right ?
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Mr. Arrmax. T teld him to malke a survey of the conditions and
the whole situation.

Senator Lia Forrerre. And then he came back after he had made
that survey, and did you at that time give him any instructions?

Mr., Artman, Ounly that he detail gufficient men to preserve the
peace and proteet life and property.

Senator La Forrerre. Those were the only instructions that you
issued at any time prior to Memorial Day?

Mr. Artmaxn, That is all.

Senator La Forzerre. Were those Instructions issued in writing
or orally ?

Mr. Arzman. Orally.

Senator L.a Forizrre. Did you have any conversation with any
official or representative of the Republic Steel Corporation at any
time prior to the strike? '

Mr. Aurman. No, sir; I didn’t even know the name of an official
of the steel company before the strike,

Senator La Forrmrre. Did you have any discussion with any rep-
resentative or official of the Republic Steel Corporation after the
strike was called ?

Mr. Aromax. T had a discussion, or at least T met one of them
on the night of the riot.

Senator La Forrerre. You mean the night that the riot took place?

Mr. Aviman. The Governor of the State of 1llinois called me and
asked me to get hold of the superintendent of that mill and bring
him down to the Southmoor Hotel, Sixty-seventh Street and Stony
Istaud, and so I got hold of him and brought him there, and there
I met him for the first time.

Senator Tmomas. What night was that?

Mr. Artman. Sanday night, the night of the trouble.

Senator Tromas. What date, the 30th?

Mr., Arrman. The 30th; ves.

Senator La Foraerre. Then if 1 understand your testimony cor-
rectly, Commissioner, you had nothing to do with the detail of men,
the number of men or how the men were to conduct themselves. in
the situation?

Mr. Arrmax. Not in detail.

Senator L.a Forrerre. Did you issue any instructions, or did you
have any discussion with any of your force, Captain Prendergast, or
anybody else, with relation to this situation created by the strike,
other than the general order which you say you issued orally to Cap-
tain Prendergast?

Mr, Arraaw. That is all.

Senator La Forrerre. Were you aware at the time you issued the
orders to Captain Prendergast that police were to be stationed imside
of the Republic Steel plant itgself?

Mr. Arzman. No, sir.

Senator La Forrerme. Did you gather from the discussion you had
with Captain Prendergast and was your information generally at the
time that the calling of this strike would perhaps precipitate a very
serious industrial situation?

Mr. Animaw, T rather thought so myself.

Senator LA Forzerre. In your long experience as a police officer
and official, have you found that strike situations create difficulty
and delicate problems of policing?
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Mr. Avtman. They do.

Senator La Foirerre. Well, then, didn’t you anticipate that a
major strike in the steel industry would give rise to particularly
diflicult situations for the police?

Mr. Aviman, T thought it would ; yes.

Benator La Forrrrre, With that knowledge in mind, your testi-
mony indicates, however, that you did not confer, concerning the con-
duect of the police, or issue any orders indicating the delicacy of the
situation, from the police standpoint.

Mr. Aucman. It was not at all necessary, and Captain Prender-
gast and the other officers were as much experienced as 1 was in the
matter,

Senator La Forrerre. You had complete confidence in them?

Mr. Arnvan, Absolutely.

Senator La Fourzrme. Tt is fair to say, then, that you handled this
Republic Steel strike as a more or less routine matter?

Mr. Artman. Noj it is not fair to say that.

Senator La Forrerre. Well, you issued only, as T understand you,
oral and brief instructions to Captain Prendergast?

Mr, Auzman. And T found that was all that was necessary.

Senator La Forrerre. And in those orders all you said to him, or
the substance of your orders were that he was to protect life and
property ?

Mr. Arzman, And preserve the peace.

Senator La Fourerre. And preserve the peace. Bubt you object to
characterizing that as a routine handling of the matter?

Mr. Arzmawn. Tt is not a routine matter; no, sir.

Senator La Forrzrre, If it were not rontine, wouldn’ it have been
necessary for you to have issned more specific instructions?

Mr. Autmax. I think those instructions are as specific ag a man
could make them.

Senator Tromas, Just what does “protect property and persons”
mean?

Mr. Avrman, The law says that very clearly, Senator—Ilife and
property both.

Senator Taomas. What Tife and what property?

Mr. Avrmaw, All lives and all property within the confines of
Chiecago.

Senator Tmomas, So that the police go out as a representative of
society, then——

Mr. Arimax (interrupting). Representatives of the people, of
course.

Senator THomas. Not interested in talking sides?

Mr. Areman. No, siry never take sides.

Senator La Forrerre, T assume that when a policeman in Chicago
enters the force he takes an oath, does he not?

Mr. Arzamaw. He does,

Senator La Forrerre. And you relied upon that ag a sufficiently
general gnide for their conduct in this delicate situation?

Mr. Avpwan, In a manner I depended on my officers.

Sex&g&or La Forrurre. You depended more on your officers than
you did—

“Mr, Arzmax (interrupting). T expected the leadership that they
gave,

VIOLATIONS OF FREE SPEECH AND RIGHTS OF LABOR 4643

Senator La Forperre. Did you recelve any further report on
Wednesday, May 26, after you issued the orders to assign a detail to
the plant? '

Mr. Arzman. I don’t remember that T did.

Senator La FornerTe. Did you personally vigit the plant of the
company alb any time between May 26 and the afterncon of May 307

Mr., Avrmarn. I did not. ,

Senator La Fowrerte. Prior to Sunday afternoon, did you have
any conferences or discussions with any of your subordinates relative
to the guestion of picketing?

Mr. Arzman. On the 29th T think it was, Friday, Attorney Lewis
and Judge Grant, representing the strikers, came to my office and
I sent for the chief of the uniformed force, so that he could partici-
pate in the discussion. '

Senator La Forverre. That is Captain Frendergast?

Mr. Avzman, Captain Prendergast. They made a claim that men
were held in the plant against their will. I told them that was not
go, but T told them, so as to be sure, I would have Captain Prender-
gast go with them to the plant and let them ask whatever they
wanted at the plant and get anything they could. Some question of
picketing came up then and they said something about pickets and
I said, “I don’t care how many you have.” They mentioned some-
thing about 50. I says, “You can have 100 as far ag I am coneerned
g0 long as they are peaceful.” There was no question with me as
to the number, it was the peacefulness of the pickets.

Senator La Forrerre. And was that the substance of the conversa-
tion you had with Judge Grant and Mr. Lewis?

Mr. Arrman, Yes.

Senator L.a Fornerre, And at this conference Captain Prendergast
was present ? ‘

Mr. Aniaran, Yes, sir.

Senator La Forzerre. Did you have any other discussions with
individuals concerning picketing between May 26 and May 307

Mr. Aveamaw. Not that T can remember.

Senator L Fouuerre, Did you discuss the question of picketing
with any of the city officials not connected with the police force?

Mr. Ariman, Not that 1 remember.

Senator La Forrerre. Were you familiar with the opinion which
Corporation Counsel Barnet Hodes rendered to you on March 81,
1987, relating to the question of picketing ?

Mr. Aruman, Yes, sir; I read 1t.

Senator Ta Forrerre, I offer for the record, and it may be given
an exhibit number, a copy of this opinion,

(The document was marked “¥xhibit 18297 and appears in the
appendix on pp. 5003-5008.)

Senator La Forrerre, Mr. Commissioner, for the record, tell me
whether that is the one referred to in your previous answer,

Mr, Arrman, It has every appearance of it.

Senator La Forierre. At the time this opinion was issued did you
furnish copies of it to any of the subordinates in the police force?

Mr. Avrmaw. T am quite sure that I sent one to every district.

Senator La Forierre. You are quite sure that every district cap-
tain, then, had received a copy of it prior to May 264 '

Mr. Arrman. If they received it at all they received it prior to
May 26,
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Senator La Forrerre, To the best of your recollection, however,
you did send copies of it to the district captains?

Mr. Arzman., Yes.

Senator Lo Forrerre, I mean to the division captains.

Mr. Aucman, Rather to the district captains.

Senator La Forrerre. So that if your recollection serves you cor-
rectly, Captains Mooney and Kilroy no doubt had received coples
«of this opinion prior to May 26, had they not?

Mr, Arzman, I don't know. The opinion, if my recollection serves
me correctly, was sent to each district. As to whether Captain Kil-
roy or Captain Mooney read it, I don’t know. )

Senator La Forrerre. But in any case, if your recollection serves
you correctly, copies of it went to them?

Mr, Arrman. Yes,

Senator La Forrerre. Of course, I am not asking you to testify
of your own knowledge whether they read it or not.

Mr. Arimax, Yes.

Senator Lia Fornerre. The entire exhibit may be printed in the
record, T read from a portion of it:

TFrom the foregoing, the following definite propositions may be set forth:

1. Labor unions are legal under Illinois and Federal jurisprudence.

2. The strike is a lawful instrument in a lawful economic siruggle or compe-
tition between employer and cmployees.

9. Picketing, as the term is generally understood, is lawful in Iliinois when
peaceable and without the elements of coereion, or intimidation, or disorder.

And further:

Our opinion, therefore, is, in the case presented to us, that the Police De-
partment of the city of Chicago take no action to interfere with picketing
when suclh picketing is conducted in a peaceable manner. If Mr. Falkenberg
believes relief is necessary, the action indieated is an appeal to the courts
rather than to the Police Department, except if there is disorder or clear
probability of disorder, in which case, of course, the police must intervene.

Very truly yours,

BarNuT HobEs, Corporation Counsel.

Now, in the light of this opinion, Commissioner, that peaceful
picketing was Jawful, I am somewhat puzzled by your statement,
given in a previous answer, that the number of pickets was not a
matter which you took into consideration.

Mr. Arrman, That is true, if they did not become a mob or they
did not become unruly, so long as they were peaceful. As a matter
of fact, when they mentioned 50 T doubled it and said 100. I have
no right to tell them hew many pickets they may have.

Senator La TFowrerre. Of course, the question as to whether
pickets are peaceful or not is a matter of judgment in certain situa-
tions, isn’t it?

Mr. Azraman, Yes,

Senator T.a Forrerre, I am some%-vhat puzzled by the further fact
that you did not think it necessary to discuss with Captain Prender-
gast or with any of your subordinates who were immediately in
charge of this situation the nature of the peaceful picketing which
they were to permit and the nature of the unpeaceful picketing
which they were to prevent.

Mr. Arrman. I could not set any hard and fast rule as to what
peaceful picketing was. The men on the scene were the men that
could tell that.
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Senator L.a Forrerre. You then believe that the situation must
be left entirely to the officers who are on the ground?

Mr. Avrman, Generally,

Senator La Forrerre, Are you familiar with the fact that Mayor
Kelly issued a statement shortly after the strike was called an-
nouncing that picketing would be permitted?

Mr. Atpman. Yes.

Senator La Forrrrie. Did you ever discuss the question of picket-
ing with the mayor?

Mr. Avzman. I did, on one oceasion.

Senator Lia Forrerre. When was that?

Mr. Arrman. That was after the happening on the 30th.

Senator La Forrerre. It was after the

Mr. Arzman (interrupting). So-called riot,

Senator La Forrerre. So-called riot. What was the substance of
your conversation with the mayor?

Mr. Arrman, Well, the mayor asked me about picketing and I
said, “We are allowing all the peaceful picketing they want”, and
he was very much in favor of allowing all the peaceful picketing
they wanted to do.

Senator La Foroerre, Were there any incidents at the Republic
plant on the evening of Wednesday, May 261¢

Mr. AvemawN. There were.

Senator La ForLerre. Did you receive a report on them?

Mr. Arineaw. I did.

wenator La Fowrrre. From whom?

Mr. Araman, Captain Kilroy.

Senator Lia Fourerre. Were these reports in writing ?

Mr. Aruvan, They were typewritten; yes.

Senator La Forrerre. Have you a copy of that report with you,
Commissioner ?

Mr. Avvman, Noj I don’t. T thought Mr. Abt or Mr. Wohlforth
or Mr. Kramer had copies of all the reports. I gave them all the
reports they asked for. 1 did not anticipate them asking for any
other reports, ' :

Senator La Forrmrre. Will you furnish us with a copy of that
report relating to the Wednesday incidents at the plant of the Re-
public Steel Corporation?

Mr. Avrmaw, All right!

Senator L Fourmrrn, What occurred on Wednesday ?

Mr., Arzmaw. Generally, I understand that there were some 23
persons arrested, T think, and 22 of them were fined for being dis-
orderly. :

Senator La Foruerre, What was the nature of the disorder they
were fined for?

Mr. Arzman, That T don’t know. T wasn’t there.

Seélator La Forrgrre. Was that covered in Captain Kilroy’s re-
port ?

Mr. Arimaw. I rather think so. '

Senator L IfoLirrTe. From this report, did you feel that the police
were entirely jusfified in the action they took on Wednesday?

Mr, Arzmaw, I certainly did.

Senator La Forrmrre. Did you receive any protests from anyone
coneerning your actions on Wednesday, the 26th?

1 Bee exhibit 1627-B, pp. 5159-5160.
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Mr. Anivan. No.

Senator La Fourerrs. Did you receive any report on the occur-
rences at the Republic plant on Friday, May 28¢

Mr. Arzman. I did.

Senator Lia Forrerre. From whom?

Mr. Avrman. Captain Kilroy.

Senator La Forrerre. Was that report in writing?

Mr. Arzmax, Typewritten.

Qenator La Forrerre. What happened on Friday, Commissioner ?

Mpr. Arracax. On Friday six policemen were injured in the affray
that happened there. I don’t know how many men were arrested
there. 1 don’t remember that.

Senator La Forrerte. Do you know what occurred ?

Mr. Avraan. Well, I understand-—that 18, to the best of my mem-
ory—1 have a report of it—that these strikers advanced en masse
and the police tried to hold them back and pushed them back, and
finally six policemen were injured.

Senator T Forimrre. Do you know whether any strikers were
injured?

" Mr. Arzman. Yes; there were some strikers injured.

Senator La Forrerre. Do you know how many !

Mr. Arrman. I don’t remember how many. That is a matter of
record, of course.

Qonator La Forrerre. From the report that you recelved from
Captain Kilroy with regard to the occurrence of May 28, in which
six policemen and some strikers were injured and a number ar-
rested, did you find that you could approve the conduet of the police
on that occasion?

Mr. Avraawn. T did.

Senator La Foruzrre. Did you receive any protests from anyone
concerning their conduct on Friday?

Mr. Areman. I did not.

Senator La Forierrn. As a result of these two occurrences, on Wed-
nesday and on Friday, concerning which you have testified, did you
issue any further instructions to Captain Prendergast or anyone
else?

Mr. Atzamax. Nog T did not. T believe that the strikers or anyone
connected with them had found that the police department could
preserve the peace and intended to preserve the peace, and I thought
that would be the tast of the occurrence on Friday.

Qenator La Forrmrre, Did you have any conversations with Cap-
tain Prendergast, Captain Mooney, or Captain Kilroy on Sunday,
May 30, prior to 4 o’clock in the afternoon ¢

Mr. Arrmax. No, sir,

Senator La Forzzrre., With whom?

Mr. Arumax, No, sir; I said. ,

Qenator T.a Forrerrs. Did you know that the strikers and their
sympathizers were planning to hold a demonstration near the Repub-
lic plant on Sunday afternoon?

Mr. Arrman. T had read it in the newspapers.

Senator La Fourmrre. Did you receive information from any other
source

Mr. Arzmaw. No.
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Senator La Forimrre, Did you issue any instructions as to the
handling of that particular situation after you learned through the
newspapers that it was about to oceur

Mr. Arraran. I didn't know there was any particular situation.

Senator T.a Forrerre. You said you knew there was going to be a
demonstration.

Mr. Artman. A demonstration and a meeting. They met there
regularly, I understood.

Senator Lia Foorerre. When did you first learn of the encounter
which took place between the police and the strikers on Sunday,
May 30?

Mr. Atxaan. About 5:30 or thereabouts.

Qenator Lis Forrmrre. And from whom did you hear of it?

Mr. Arzvan. Captain Kilroy.

Senator La Fourerre. Did he make his report at that time orally?

Mr. Arzman. Yes.

Senator La Forrerre. In person?

Mr. Arzman, Over the telephone.

Senaétor La Forizrmm. Will you give the substance of that conver-
gation?

Mr. Arsaan. He said the strikers came up, two or three thousand
of them, and the police tried to hold them and advised them to go
back peacefully, and he said they rushed them with bricks and con-
eretevand pieces of iron and clubs and that some of the police were
injured and a number of the strikers—I think two of the strikers
were shot.

Qenator THoAs, What do you mean by “conerete” there?

Mr. Arwan. Conerete slabs, like broken sidewalks or something
of that kind.

Senator La Forimrrs. Was that the substance of the report?

Mr. Aurman, Yes,

Qenator Lia Forrerre. Did you receive any written reports from
either or both Captain Mooney and Captain Kilroy concerning the
encounter on Sunday, May 30¢

Mr. Arraan. I went to the Fast Side station at, T don’t know,
about & o’clock. T received a report then, a preliminary report, and
%{_rleceived a further and fuller report next morning, from Captain

ilroy. ‘

Senator La Forumrre. You received a report in writing?

Mr. Arnman. Yes.

Senator La Forrmrre. I offer for the record the report of Captain
Kilroy, dated May 30, 1937 [reading] :

From: Captain, Commanding 9th District.
To: Commissioner of Police.
Subject: Disturbance, shooting, 116th St. Burley {prairie).

Ahout 4: 00 p. m. this date information was received that strikers were form-
ing in the vieinity of 113th Strect and Greenbay Avenue to march on the
Repubiic Steel Plant. Four platoons of police under the command of Super-
vigor Mooney were moved to 117th to add to the patrolmen already stationed in
that vicinity.

While the platoons were drawn up on 117th Street the undersigned addressed
the men, Instructing them to use peaceful methods to disperse the crowd of
marchers, and not to use or draw revolvers. -

89562--37—nt, 14——2

9ta Distrior, Moy 30, 1987.
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The mob, about twenty-flve hundred in number cat across the prairie to
offect an entrance at abont 116th Street and Buriey Avenue. The police moved
down to this point.

When the mob reached 116th Street and Burley Avenue (approXimate loca-
tion) the undersigned addressed the more aggressive of the front rank of the
marchers, and called upon them in the name of the people of the State of Tllinois
te digperse, and to return peacefully, The front yank of policemen held the
mob at this point for a period of from five to ten minutes during which time
the undersigned called upon ther: to disperse. Officer policemen in the line were
wrging the crowd to turn back, that no trouble was gought. Suddenly from
the crowd a shower of bricks and revolver shots were hurled at the poiice.
""he front rank of the mob surged forward, policemen were struck with clubs,
short pieces of pipe, and two by four boards.

Police officers who saw members of the marchers with révolvers and who
saw shots fired at the police are being sought at the present time. Statements
will be taken from them.

Ticutenant Walter Healy reports that about thirty pelicemen were injured
at time of this report, the seriousness of the injuries are not determined.

(8igned) Trromas KiLroy,

Captain, Commanding 9th District,

The document was marked “Exhibit 1330.”}
enator La Forrerte. I also offer for the record the report of
Captain Kilroy dated May 31, 1937. The entire report may be
inserted in the record.
(The document was marked “Exhibit 13317 and appears in the
appendix on pp. 5007-5009.)
Senator La Forrerre, I vead portions of it:

From: Captain, Commanding 9th District.
To: Commissioner of Police.
Subject: Disturbance, shooting, 116th & Burley (Prairie}. Supplemental to

report dated May 30, 1037.

At about 4 p. m. May 30th, 1987, Supervisor James Mooney, and Division, was
notified that a group of marchers were forming in the vicinity of temporary
strike headguarters at “Sam’s Place” 113th and Grecnhay Avenue and that it
was the intention of the mob to march upon the Republic Steel Company, 118th
& Burley Avenue. The plant has been operating while o number of employees
have been on strike, )

Under command of Supervisor James Moeoney, four platoons of policemen
(Lieut. John Ryan, Lieut, Walter Healy, Lieut. Frank Stevens, Lieut. Bart
Moran, Licut. John Tennen with fuil complement of sergeants and about 128
patrolmen) were ordered out on 1i7th Strect. At this point the undersigned
addressed the men, instrueting them not to use revolvers, and to use every
effort to disperse the mob in a peaceful manner.

The marchers, a very digsorganized mob of about twenty-five hundred in nums-
ber, armed with elubs, bricks, pieces of pipe, boards and pepper, cut across the
open prairie to affeet an entrance to the strike area about 116th Street and
Rurley Avenue. The platoong were immediately moved to this point and were
drawn up in a firm but peaceful manner when the mob reached the location.
The undersigned called npon the mob to disperse in the name of the people of
the State of Tllincis and to return to their homee in a peaceful manner, a
numhber of times. Other policemen drawn up in line urged the mobh to turn
back. While this parlying continuing for about five minutes it was Inter-
rupted by a shower of bricks and other migsiles from the crowd. Shots came
from the crowd and the policemen employed their batons to rout the gathering.
In the ensuing melee a numhber of policemen were kunocked to the ground by
¢lubs and short pipes; some of the officers on the growdd and at the mercy
of the mob fired their service revolvers. Dtimm. Walter B. Oakes, #2910
14th Distriet made a statement that while on the flat of his back he fired his
revolver at two men about to kick and strike him.

Trive members of the mob have been reported dead: Tarl Bandly, 3307 Mich«
igan Ave. Ind. Harbor, Indiana: Rothmand, Joz. 2857 Belinont Ave. (bullet
wound) ; Causey, Al. 7050 Arizona Avenue, Hammond, Ind. (bullet}; two un-
identified persons.
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The balance of the report shows the names and the assignments of
the officers injured and the prisoners, signed by Thomas Kilroy.

Notation: One of the bodies at the County Morgue has been identified late
this date as that of Kenneth Reed, 3021 Deal Streef, Indiana Harbor, Indiana
(8kull fracture),

Now, Commissioner, from what you know of the situation, do you
consider these two reports of Captain Kilroy to be a full and fair
report of the occurrence on Sunday, May 30%

Mr. Azrmax, 1do,

Senator L.a Forrerre. And from your information that you re-
ceived in those reports and otherwise, is it your position that you
fully approve the conduct of the police on that occasion?

Mr. Arrmaw. I do.

Senator La Forrerre. Have you made any further independent
investigation of the conduct of the police, other than these reports
which you received?

Mr. Avrman. I have not.

Senator La Forrerre. So your knowledge of the entire affair is
based on Captain Kilroy’s two reports?

Mr. Arraaw, It is.

Senator La Forrerre. Now, Captain Kilroy’s report of May 80
t%oes n(;t mention the fact that any shots were fired by the police,
does it?

Mr. Arruan. That I don’t remember.

Senator Lia Forzrrme. Will you look at it, please?

(Exhibit 1880 was handed to the witness.]

Mr. Ariman., That was the preliminary report,

Senator La Forrerte. The first one you received?

Mr. Arraman, No; I don’t think it does say that any shots were
fired by the police.

Senator La Fovrwrrs. 1f the police actually did fire any shots you
WOH%d not consider the report of May 30 a full and fair report, would
you ?

Mr. Atrmax. May 30 was not a report. That is the first report;
was not a full report, .

Senator La Forrwrre. The first report does not state that Captain
Kilroy himself saw aunyone in the crowd fire, does it?

Mr. Arrman, That report speaks for itself,

Senator La Forrerre. I have just read it. Tt does not state that
Captain Kilroy saw anyone in the moh, as he describes it, fire any
shot. All that it says, and I quote it, is that the “police officers who saw
members of the marchers with revolvers and who saw shots fired at
the} polgice are being sought at the present time.” That is right.
isn’t it ¢

(Exhibit 1330 was handed to the witness.)

So it must appear from this first report of Captain Kilroy that
his statement that revolver shots were fired at the police is based
entirely on rumor and hearsay—he doesi’t say he saw it himself?

Mr. Azraran. The record speaks for itself,

Senator T.a Forrmrre. And he states that he is looking for the peo-
ple who said they saw it. Would it be pretty evident from this fivst
report gthat at that time he had not even talked to anybody who had
seen 167
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Mr. Arzaan. The first report—he did not have much time to make
an investigation at the first report. That was simply preliminary
to the full report.

Senator La Forrerre. All right, let us go to the next report, the one
for May 31. [Exhibit 1331 was handed to the witness. ]

The captain mentions shots by the police in that report, does he
not ?

Mr. Arnman, Yes.

Qenator La Forrerre. T want to direct your particular attention to
that portion of his report of May 31 which says:

In the ensuing melee a number of policemen were knocked to the ground by
elubs and short pipes; some of the officers on the ground and at the merey of
the mob fived thelr service revolvers, * # * ¥Five members of the mob have
been reported dead.

Now, Commissioner, have you ever examined or had a report of the
coroner’s autopsies on the 10 pickets who died as a result of the
wounds inflicted in this encounter?

Mr. Arraan. No; the inquests have not been held yet.

Senator La Fourerre. Have you ever requested the coroner for
copies of his autopsy examination reports?

Mr. Arryaxn. Noj I am waiting for the inguest to be held.

Senator La ForrerTe. At a later stage in this hearing I am going
1o offer the coroner’s reports, together with competent medical testi-
mony about them.! They show that 7 of these 10 men died of bullet
wounds in the back., The remaining three died of side wounds.
Assuming that the reports of the coroner are correct, what would you
say about the statement in Captain Kilroy’s report that some of
the officers on the ground and at the mercy of the mob fired their
service revolvers?

Mr. ArzvaN. What would 1 say about it?

Senator La Forarrre. Yes, sir.

Mr. Arrman. I think if they were on the ground and at the
mercy of the mob they should fire their service revolvers.

Senator La Forrgrre. Would you think that the seven men who
died would be likely to be shot in the back under those circum-
stances?

Mr. Arrman. T don’t know who shot them, if they were shot in
the back.

Senator La Forrerre. Well, for the moment just accept my state- '

ment that the coroner’s reports of the autopsy examinations show
that 7 out of the 10 men who died were shot in the back. Can
you explain how they would be shot in the back if a police officer
was on the ground being clubbed at the mercy of a mob and used
his service revolver?
 Mr. Aumawn, I haven’t said at all that the police officer shot
them in the back. They could easily be shot in the back by their
owh men. That would be natural that they would be shot in the
back by their own men firing revolvers.

Senator La Foruerrs, That is a possible and another alternative
suggestion as to why they were shot in the back, but your police
officers receive training in the use of firearms, do they not?

Mr. ArLmax. They doj yes, sir.

1 See testimony of Dr. Lawrence Tacques, beglnning on pp. 4817 and 4084,
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Senator La Forrerre. They are fairly good shots, are they not?

Mr, AremaN, They are.

Senator La Forrerre. If an officer were on-the ground and sur-
rounded by men, if he were at the mercy of the mob, if he fired his
service revolver at point-blank range at the people who were attack-
ing him or threatening him, do you think they would be shot in the
back or in the front?

Mr. Atrmaxn. Well, that is a matter of judgment. [Laughter.]

Senator La ForLerte. You are an experienced police officer. What
is your judgment as to how men would be wounded under a situa-

“tion of the kind described in Captain Kilroy’s report and obviously

given as the justification for the use of their revolvers?

Mr. Arzmaw, T wouldn’t care to give an opinion on that. I don’t
know; T wasn’t there; I didn’t see the conditions.

Senator La Forrerre. Did you ever investigate the situation fur-
ther than to read Captain Kilroy’s report?
hMr. Ariman. And the reports of other officers; yes, who were
there.

Senator La Forrerre. As an experienced police officer and official,
Commissioner, thinking back to your days when you were an active
officer, if you were surrounded by a group of men and you were
on the ground and you pulled your revolver and started shooting
at them, would you think any of the men you shot would be shot
in ghe back?

Mr. Arzman. If T was surrounded by a number of men and they
were all trying to hit me at the same time they probably would push
themselves aside, each one push the other aside, so you can’t tell
where a man might be shot, even though the person on the ground
fires a revolver, and you can’t do target practice while you are on
the ground.

Senator La Forrerre. I was not suggesting that it was target
practice. [Laughter.]

In reading this report and comparing it with the reports of the
coroner’s autopsy examinations. I am just absolutely puzzled to un-
derstand how, under the situation that Captain Kilroy deseribed
in his report of May 81, if officers were on the ground surrounded
by men who were threatening them or actually attacking them with
ciubs and close enough to hit them with a plece of pipe or a club,
how those men could be shot in the back.

Mr. ArtMaN. Were the men shot in the back close enough to hit
the officers that were down with a club or pipe?

Senator La Fourerer, There were 10 people killed, and of the 10
who died 7 were shot in the back.

Mr. Arnman, Were these seven shot all in the same vicinity or
in the same melee?

Senator La Forrerre. I can’t answer that question.

Mr. Arrman, Then I can’t answer your hypothetical question.

Senator La Fourerte. It would be very helpful to this committee
if you would give us your best judgment, and we are just trying to
arrive at the facts.

Mr. Arrman, Not knowing conditions as they existed at that time
T can’t give you my judgment on the matter.
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Senator Lia Forrerre. After all, if these men were in the posi-
tion described by Captain Kilroy in his report, they were fired on
at close range, were they not ¢

Mr. Arnmax, T don’t know.

Senator Lia Forrerre, If you are on the gronnd and you are on
your back and a man is close enough to threaten you or hit you
with a club, yon are nof very far away,

Mr. Arrvax, But was he the man that was shot in the back? It
might have been a man 20 feet away that was shot in the back,

Senator La Forrerre. T have assumed from Captain Kilroy’s re-
port that this covers the people who were shot.

Mr. Avnmawn. I suppose it does, but that does not say that. They '

may have been 20 fect away from the officer that was on the ground,
if the officer did hit him,

Senator La Forverte. You mean they had started to run?

Mr. Arraax. Noj but I mean they might have missed them and
hit someone else in the crowd.

Senator Lia Forrerre. That wouldn’t speak very well for their
marksmanship.

Mr, Aueman. A man on the ground is not a very good marksman,
especially when he is on his back.

Senator Lia Forrerere, As I understand your testimony, you as-
sume sole responsibility and you are charged with the responsibility
of the conduct of the entire police force in Chicago?

Mr. Arzman. T do and T am. '

Senator La Fortmrre. And if anything occurs which is not in
accordance with your standards of the conduct of police officers, you
would be the one who would bring disciplinary action, would you
not ¢ :

Mr. Avrtmaw. Yes, sir.

Senator La Foowerre. And you would be the one who would
Initiate any investigation of any occurrence which you did not be-
lieve was in accordance with the rules and good conduct of officers
of the police force of the city of Chicago?

Mr. Arrman. Yes, sir.

Senator Lia Forrerre. In view of the facts which have just been
brought out and in view of the controversy that has arisen over this
situation, I am surprised, Commissioner, that you have not con-
ducted any investigation of it. Can you tell us why?

Mr. Arrmax. T have conducted an investigation of it. T have the
reports of Captain Kilroy and of all of the officers that participated
in it.

Senator La Forrerim But you have not conducted any inde-
pendent investigation ¢

Mr. Arzmaw. What manner of investigation would you suggest,
Senator?

Senator Lia Foruprre. Just for the sake of the argument—there is
a controversy, as you well know, as to what occurred on that day,
isn’t there?

Mr. Arzman. T don’t think there is any controversy.

Senator Taomas. Did you get a report from the policeman that
was on his back? :

Mr. Avimaw. T got a repor% from every policeman that partici-
pated in the matter. "
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Senator Tromas. You got a report from the policeman that was
on his back?

Mr. Arpmax. I don’t ever remember having read it, but I read
all of them,

Senator Lia Forrerre. How many reports were there?

Mr. Avzaraw. T think something around 200.

Senator La Forrprim. Ave any of these reports from men who
were on their backs?

Mr. Arrman. That T don’t remember, Senator,

Senator La Forierre. You didn’t think it important to investigate
the antopsy reporis?

My, Arraaw. I am waiting for the inquest to be held, which is
the legal manner.

Senator La Forrmrre. You dont think that the veports of the
coroner, the autopsies, have any relevancy to the situation

Mr. Avpvaw. They may have,

Senator La Forrerre. Did you malke an investigation of the char-
acter of the pickets who were arrested? )

Mr, Auzmax, In general; yes.

Senator Lia Foruerre. Did you request the lieutenant in charge of
the industrial detail to provide you with a list of the known Com-
munists who participated in the Memorial Day incident?

Mr. Avimaw. The lieutenant in charge of the industrial squad
supplied me with that list without my requesting it.

Senator La FoLerre. Why did you think this was an important
part of the investigation?

Dé_[r. Arrman, Which?

enator Lia Forzerre. Ascertaining the political affitiations of the
strikers who were involved.

Mr. Arraraw, I dide’t say that T said it was important. T said
that the lientenant of the industrial squad gave me ihat list without
my solicitation.

Senator La Forrerre. Did you ever discuss it with him?

Mr. Arrmax. He laid the list down on my desk and that was all.

Senator Tromas, What do you mean by a Commumnist ?

Mr. Avrman (after a pause). Well, I have found them to be men
who were assaulting our relief stations; that is, a great many Com-
munists were, and who were creating trouble at the relief stations
during the last 3 or 4 years. '

Senator THomas.. You mentioned a while back, when I asked you
before, that you did not know of any third parties. Were these Com-
mumists strikers?

Mr. Artman. No; I don’t believe they were—not all of them.

Senator Trromas. They were, then, belonging to an element on the
outside just anxious to make trouble?

Mr. Armaw. Yes; and there were a great many others who were
not strikers of the Republic Steel plant there. As a matter of fact,
I think there were only 13 or 14 men who worked in the Republic
Steel plant who were arrested.

Senator La Forrmrre. Do you know where your officer got the list
of Communists?

Mr. Arryman. We have an industrial squad who keeps track of a
great many things. '

Senator Tromas. Where did they get their information ?
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Mr. Arrmax. That T did not inquire.

Senator Tmomas. Did they get the information from the men
themselves?

Mr. Arzman. That I don’t know.

Senator Tmomas. You have a primary election, for example, and
a man wants to vote on the Communist ticket. Does he declare
himself?

Mr. Avcvaw, I suppose so.

Senator Tromas. And then your officers write him down'?

Mr. Arzman. T don’t think so.

Senator Taosras. They would not be interested in a Communist
just becanse he was a Communist? .

Mr. Arzaman. No; only the men that cause the disturbance they
would be interested in.

Qenator Tmomas. Then these men were probably not Commun-
ists.

Mr. Arevan. That I don’t know.

Senator Tmosas. But if any other adherent’ of a political party
cansed a disturbance would your men write him down?

(No response.) :

Senator THoMmAs. Do they ever make note of the Republicans and
Democrats who have caused a disturbance?

Mr. Arzman. Senator, I think yon are going far afield. I think
the Republicans and Democrats and Communists carry on in a
different manner. ,

Senator Taomas, I am not going far afield, because I believe that
policemen generally are a fine lot of men, and if there is any action
on the part of any policeman in your group, I think that action
was brought about as a result of some incident or some condition
which caused him to do something which is a little bit outside of
the lne of his duty, and that is why I am asking you these ques-
tions all the time. I have never seen a policeman yet in my life
who liked to hit a man, have you?

Mr, Arrvan. Never,
~ Senator Taonmas. Have you ever seen a policeman that was brutal
" in his nature?

Mr, Ariaraw. I never have. ‘

Senator THomas, Isn’t your whole theory of police discipline and
police training a theory built upon the notion of cooperation with
ordinary people?

Mr. ArrMaN. Yes. :

Senator Trosmas. And trying to keep aloof from taking part?

Mr. Arzman. Yes.

Senator Tmomas. Your policemen who go into these industrial
troubles, do they like it?

Mr. Arrman. I never consulted them as to that.

Senator Taomas. In your own experience?

Mr. Atamaw. T never liked it; no.

Senator TroMas, You never liked it?

Mr. Auzman. In the first place, it usually entails longer hours,
and other things that are not very pleasant, such ag if it rains you%
are probably out in the rain. ‘

Senator Tromass. Aren’t there some other reasons; for instance, if
you are on flood duty you would probably be out in the raint
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Mr. Ariman. Yes,

Senator Tmomas. But a policeman would rather go on flood duty
than on industrial duty, wouldn’t he?

Mr. Ariman. That I don’t know.

Senator Tromas. How about yourself?

Mr. Avrman. Well, T was never on flood duty, so I don’t know
what it is.

Senator Tmomas. Flave you ever been on fire duty ?

Mr. ALtman. I was never a fireman.

Senator Tmomas. I don’t mean as a fireman. Policemen take
care when there are great fires in big cities, policemen have im-
portant duties to perform.

Mr. Arraman. Oh, yes; but it does not last very long.

Senator Tmosas. What about those that last 3 or 4 days?

Mr. Avzman, We don’t have many of them.

Senator Twomas. They did have some of them in Chicago?

Mr. Arzman. I think some considerable time ago, 1871, for in-
stance. '

Senator Tmomas. You still don’ know of any outside elements
that were interested in this incident of the 80th ¢

Mr. Artman. Noy I don't, except that it is a matter of record
that a great many people from the State of Indiana were thers and
a great many of them were injured and some of them were arrested.

Senator Tromas, Did they take sides?

Mr. Arrmaw, They were in the crowd that assaulted the police
and that came forward.

Senator Tmomas, They might have been just bystanders, thought

Mr. Arzman. Not likely,

Senator Tuomas. One more question, and this is very important
to me: You had trouble on the Wednesday and Thursday before the
80th, didn’t you? You made some arrests, you had some trouble on
the next day?

Mr. AznmaN. Yes.

Senator Tmomas. Friday. Now, had there developed bad blood
between the policemen and the crowd ? '

Mr, ArrmaN. Not that T am aware of.

Senator Tmomas. The crowd accepted the incidents before the 30th
as completely in line with the policemen’s duty?

Mr. Arzman., Well, so far as I know.

Senator Tuenas. There were about five or six policemen injured,
I think, according to your testimony, Mr. Commissioner, The police-
Ir%eg tha@t were injured, did they feel that they were injured in line
of duty?

Mr, Avevaw. That T don’t know. T presume they did.

Senator Tmomas. You did not investigate that?

Mr. Arzmax. T did not ask individually, of course.

Senator Tmomas. For example, if your policeman comes off sore
and mad at a crowd just on general principles you always pay atten-
tion to that?

Mr. Arrmaw. Senator, we have some 6,000 or more policemen in
Chicago, and, of course, T have a great deal of other work besides
talking to individual policemen.

Senator Tromas. 1 am speaking to you as any superintendent of
policemen. .
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Mr. Arzman. T don’t often come in contact with the individual
policemen,

Senator Tromas. But you know of no antagonism that is aroused
between these people?

Mr, Atumaw. No; I don’t,

Senator Tmomas. Any evidence at all that the policemen felt that
it was necessary for them to bunch up in protection of themselves
as policemen ?

Mr. Arrman. Well, there is a manner, of course, in protecting
themselves always. It depends on the manner in which the people
who expect to assault them come forward, They use their natural
horse sense in the matter.

Senator Tromas, Do you think in the incidents of the 30th you
had well-disciplined policemen, well organized ?

Mr. Artvaw, I think so,

Senator TrHomas. Reserves were properly placed ¢

Mr. Avcman. I think so.

Senator Tromas, And the erowd was anticipated

Mr. Arzman. T don’t know as to the anticipation of the crowd.

Senator Tromas. But you think the policemen were always well
disciplined ?

My, Avrmaw. T think so.

Senator Tromas, So that anything any policeman did, the superior
was actually responsible for it?

Mr. Ariman. Well, you car’t say that, because there are individ-
uals—of course, the human element enters into all of it.

Senator Twoaas. That is what T want to find out—when did the
human element start on Wednesday?

Mr. Antaran, That T don’t know.

Senator Tropas. On Thursday ¢

Mr, Autmax. You misconstrue my meaning, and that is: Tf I have
a body of 500 men, some single individual may do something he was
not ordered to do, of course.

Senator Tmomas. You feel, though, that your men were under
control all the time? '

Mr. Avemaw. I do.

Senator Twosras. And that if the captain had whistled they would
have immediately retired in response to the order?

Mr. Aruman. That depends. I don’t know as to that.

Senator THomas. Then everything that occurred on the 30th, and
also on the days before, that was done by a police officer, the police-
men are responsible for it? '

Mr. Ariman. Who is responsible for it?

Senator Tmomas., The policemen themselves.

; Mr. Arryman. If they done anything wrong they are responsible
or it.

Senator Tromas. All their actions were initiated by themselves,
by the organization?

Mr. Arzmaw. No; not on all oceasions—I mean on all occasions
that might arise. On the occasion of the 80th I don know; I
wasn’t there, and I don’t know,

Senator Tronxas. You don’t know whether the captain in charge
took orders from someone else, do you?

Mr. Arman., What do you mean by that, Senator?

e T LT e e
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Senator Traomas. Kilroy, isn’t it?

Mr, Arpsmraw. Yes. What do you mean by “took orders from
someone else”

Senator THoatas, Whether he had a suggestion that he ought to
protect the plant a Jittle better than he had protected it, or that the
mob ought not go in.

Mr. Arusan. I don’t think se. ]

Senator TrHomas. He used his own judgment entively?

Mr, Avesran. He had to. .

Senator La Forerre. Now, I offer for the record a memorandum
“From: Make Mills—Industrial Detail”, to Commissioner Allman,
dated June 2, 1937. ) )

(The document was marked “Exhibit 1832” and appears in the
appendix on p. 5009.)

Senator La Forrrrre. The memorandim reads:

The foliowing are the names of known Communists who took part in the
steel-strike riot:

And following that there appear the 13 names. That is a copy
of the memorandum, isn’t it, which you testified that Mr. Mills left
on your desk?

Mr. Arzaaw. Yes, sir. .

Senator La Forrerre. What rank does Mr. Mills hold, do you
know? .. s

Mr. Avrawan. He is not a policeman, he is in the eivilian end of
the department now.

Senator Ta Forrerre. A detective? _

Mr. Aurman, Noj he is a civilian, he is not a police officer.

Senator Tromas., What do you mean by that? Who pays him?

Mr, Arnman. The city of Chicago.

Senator Tmomas. The city pays him ¢ )

Mr. Aniaan. Yes; he hasn't got police authority. )

Senator Tmomas. He hasn’t police authority, but he has a police-
man’s rank, has he? ) ) )

Mr. Arzman. No. He was a lieutenant of police until he retired
at the age of 63. ) .

Senator Tromas, Policeman on the retired Iist, then?

Mr. Arzvan. He has been retived as a civilian.

Senator Taomas. He draws regular city money?

Mr. Ariman. Yes. ]

Senator Tmomas. He works for the city?

Mr. Arnman. Yes. _ )

Senator Tromas, So that he is responsible to the city?

Mr. Arrman. Yes.

Senator Tromas. Responsible to anyone else?

Mr. Arumar. No one else, ] )

Senator Tmomas. In this capacity was he acting as a detective?

Mr. Arrman. Noj he would be acting more as an investigator.

Senator Taomas. Do you know whether these reports went to any-
one else but you?

Mr, Arimaw. That T don’t know.

Senator Tuomas. He worked directly under you?

Mr. Arimaw. No; he worked from the detective bureau, but he
reports to me oftentimes.
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Senator Tromas. Do you know whether there are any duplicates
of this report?

Mr. Ariman, T don’t know.

Senator TrHoMAs. Gone anywhere?

Mr. ArLyan. I don’t know.

Senator Tromas. Do you think the superintendent of the steel
company might have it ?

Mr., Arnman. I don’t think so. That is an intimation that the
Lientenant was working hand in hand with the steel company. I
don’t think so.

Senator Tromas. That is what I want to find out.

Mr. Arrman, I don’t think so.

Senator Tromas. All of your policemen, all of your men that you
know of, are working for the city of Chicago?

Mr. Aurman. I am thoroughly satisfied as to that.

Senator Tmomas. None of them give any information to anyone
elge that you know of?

Mr., Ariman. Not that I know of.

Senator Tmomas. You are familiar with the investigations that we
c_arrieé; on into spying activities in industry, are you not, Commis-
sloner ¢

Mr. Arrman. Who carried on?

Senator Tromas. That this committee carried on.

Mr. Autman. Noj I am not familiar with it, Senator.

Senator Tromas, We spent quite a number of days on that, and,
of course, we continue with question that we have gathered from
other people. Qur objectives are quite apart from a personal interest.
between us at this time,

Senator La Forrerte. Now, pursuant to the request of the counsel
for this committee, did you transmit to the committee a memorandum
from Lieutenant Mills setting forth the names and all of the facts
known to Lieutenant Mills about the known Communists who appear
in the previous exhibii?

Mr. Arvraaw. Yes.

Senator Lia FoLerTe. I offer for the record a memorandum dated
J %me 16, 1937, from Make Mills, industrial detail to the commissioner
of polics.

(The document was marked “Exhibit 1333”7 and appears in the
appendix on p. 5010.) :

Senator La Forrerre. The first sentence of that memorandum
reads:

The following are the names and records of known Communists who took
part in the steel strike riot.

Mr. Commissioner, will you look at the last name on that memo-
randum that I just entered in the record:

Mr. Arzman. Yes,

Senator La Forrmrre, It reads:

Sam Popovich, killed, not properly identified as yet.

Could you tell us what there is in this statement about Sam
Popovich which identifies him as a known Communist?
Mr. Aviman. No, sir; I cannot.

i e e e L
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Senator La Forrerre. Well, you previously testified that this mem-
orandum covers all the facts that Make Mills had in his possession
when he listed the known Communists,

Mr., Arpmaw. I did not say that, I did not know what he had in
his possession.

Senator La Forrerre. Well, you testified that in response to the
request of the counsel of this committee you furnished us a mem-

. orandum from Make Mills giving all of the facts that he had in his

ossession about the known Communists that had been furnished
m the list on the previous exhibit which was given to you under
date of June 2. : : _

Mr. Arraan., Well, if T said that T was mistaken, becanse I never
asked Make Mills for the explanation on any of them.

Senator La Forrerre. Well, the memorandum says (reading) :

The following are the names and records of known  Communists who took
part in the steel strike riot—
and after the names of each one are given certain facts, obviously
listed for the purpose of showing why the previous memorandum
listed them as being known Communists. I am only interested, as
a matter of fact, in finding out why Sam Popovitch, about whom
apparently all Make Mills kmew was that he was killed and had
not been properly identified, was listed as a known Communist,

Mr. Avrman, That I do not know. When the investigators were
there T think T brought out the file, the whole file on the riot, and
in the file was this list. I have not read it myself. I gave them a
copy of that, just like all the rest of the stuff that I had.

Senator La Fovrrrre. Well, here is— '

Ada Leder, held, age 22 - American, housewife, married, group picture
#10374.  Arrested 5-30-37 by Mason & Mayer, 9th Dist., at 116 and Burley,
steel mill riot, sec. 138, ch. 38.

Do you know what evidence there was in Make Mills’ possession
to list her as a known Communist ?

Mr. Aximan. No; I do not know,

Senator La Forrerte. From reading that?

Mr. Arpmaw. T do not know.

Senator La Forrerre. Now here is— .

Lupe Marshall, held, age 31, American, single. Arrested 8-31-35 hy TLieu-
tenant Miils & Sq. - .o

I suppose that means “squad” does it not?

Mr. Arrmawn. Probably. '

Senator La Forrerre (continuing reading):
at 47th & Prairie, attempted parade demonsiration, later released. Arrested,
9th Dist. steel mill riot, sec. 139, ch. 88,

There do not seem to be any facts in the memorandum of Mr.
Make Mills to indicate that Lupe Marshall is a known Communist,
do there?

Mr, Arrman, Noj only T have some knowledge of that. The fact
that they paraded—-they were not given a permit and they tried
to parade without a permit, and there was someone arrested on
account of that,

Senator THOoMAs. Was it a communistic parade?

Mr. Aurmaw, Yes; it was partially communistic, at least.

Senator La Forrerre. How do you know that?
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Mr. Arrman. Well, because they were the ones that talked about
getting the permit.

Senator La Forrerre. Who talked about it ?

Mr. Ariman, Some of the Communists. T do not remember the
individuals now. They asked for the permit and it was not granted.

Senator La Forrerre. Well, how did you know they were
Communists ?

Mr. Ariyan. Because they said they were Communists,

Senator La Forcerre. And that parade took place in 19352

Mr. Avimax. It did not take place.

Senator La Forzerte. There was an attempt to have it take place?

Mr. Aviman, Yes.

Senator Tmomas. Were there labor troubles then?

Mr. Arrmaxn. Noj there were not any labor troubles.

Senator Twmoaas, What was the purpose of the parade; do you
remember ¢

Mr. Arcman. I think the purpose of the parade, if I remember
correctly, was fo protest against the invasion of Abyssinia by the
Ttalians,

Senator Lia Fornwrre, That would not necessarily identify them
as being Communists, would it ¥ _

Mr. Avpvan. If they made an application for a permit to parade
it would, Senator.

Senator La Fovverre. You mean if they filled out the application
and stated they were Communists

Mr, Areman. Yes, Senator.

Senator La Forrrrre. That was the case, was it?

Mr, Avemax. That is my remembrance of it.

Senator La Forrerre. You assumed that everybody that assisted
in that demonstration was therefore a Communist?

Mr. Avivan, I did not assume it; no,

Senator La Forrerre. Well, I understood from the fact that you
stated, in regard to the parade that was attempted in 1935, that the
application was made by Communists, that that might be an ex-
planation of why Lupe Marshall was regarded by Lieutenant Mills
as a Communist, because she was arrested.

Mr. Avrman. It may be an explanation, .

Senator Ls Forrwrre. Since you say this report does not contain
the full facts will you ascertain and secure for the committee and
furnish at your earliest convenience all of the information in ex-
Lieutenant Mills’ possession which justified him in listing these
individuals ag known Communists? ! )

Mr. Aurmaw, Would you have the secretary give me that so T
may have it in fnll ? )

Senator La Forrerrm., Yes; we will furnish that to you.®

Now, Mr. Conmmissioner, was there anything in your mind, after
this event took place, which may malke it important to ascertain and
to list the known Communists who might have taken part in it#

Mr, Armaw. T never asked for a list of them.

Senator La Foruwrte. Well, it was furnished to you?

Mr. Arveman. Yes, sir. N )

Senator La Forrerre. Do you know why it was furnished to you?

Mr. Aziman. Well, I do not know as to that.

1 8ee Exhibit 1627-C, pp. 5160-5162.
2 Hee pp. D15T-H158.
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Senator La Foruerre. Did you have any discussion with ex-Lieu--
tenant Mills when he did furnish it to you?

Mr. Aurman. T do not believe T was in the office when he Iaid the.
List on my desk.

Senator Iia Forrerre. Do you know whether this information was.
given out to the press? :

Mr. Axcman, That I do not know. T did not give it out.

Senator La Forrerre. Did you have any idea in your own mind
that if known Communists had participated in this controversy on.
the 30th, that it might act as some justification in the public mind
for the event that took place?

Mr. Avtmaxn. T did not understand that question, Senator.

Senator La Fornerre. Read the question,

(The question was read by the reporter.)

Mr. Artmax.-T do not know; but T might say, in general, that we
had plenty of trouble with Communists. We have had plenty of
trouble with Communists who tried to take over the relief stations.
and who tried to parade without a permit, and on occasions the
police have had to use force against the force that they used. So it
would be very natural to believe that if Communists were included in
it that there would be a fight.

Senator L.a Forrerre. So there might be some justification for-
what happened then, if known Communists were in the situation and
took part in what occurred on the 30th of May ¢

Mr. Avraax. Well, that I could not say.

Senator Tromas. You haven't any idea as to how many Com-
munists were in the group on the 30th of May, do you!

Mr. Arxman. The only matter T have in relation to Communists-
is that list, :

Senator Tromas, How many Communists do you think there are
in Chicago?

Mr. Arzman, Well, it all depends on what you call & Communist.
[Laughter.] Some people call Communists only those people who
pay dues into the party and others might call them Communists if
they are inclined to be in the direction of communism. So that is a.
moot question, as to how many there are in the vicinity of Chicago.

Senator Tmomas. The chances are that those who pay their dues.
are people who do not cause you very much trouble? ~

Mr. Avzman. Well, T do not know,

Senator Trosmas. You have not heen able to break that down?

Mr, Arraran. No. .

Senator Tromas. Did you ever make a study to find out how many-
Communists there were in the parade on the 80th?

Mr. Avrraan. Noj T do not know,

Senator Tromas. You have not tried to find that out?

Mr. Arman, No,

Senator THomas. The men that you think are Communists?

Mr. Arraan. Noj only the men who were arrested and identified
as Communists by Lieutenant Mills.
thSenpator Tuomas, And that is probably all that he knows about

em ¢

Mr. ArLman, Yes.

Senator Tromas. How many people were there in the demon--
stration ¢
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Mr. Ariman., Well, accounts of it varied. Some said anywhere
from 1,800 to 2,300. _ . ) _

Senator Tmomas. There are 14 Communists listed, so that it
could not have been a Communist demonstration, I guess.

Mr. Arrman. Senator, of the 13 Communists listed—they were
all that were arrested, I presume—that was probably one-third
or one-fourth of the number of people that were arrested.

Senator Taomas. Well, they were not arrested hecause they were
Communists ?

Mr. Arzman. Noj; I do not think so. I suppose on account of
the demonstration, a

Senator Tmomas, If Mr. Mills knew of other Communists, the
chances are he would have listed them, would he not?

Mr. Aunman. You know as much about that as 1 do, Senator.

Senator Taomas. What was his objective in listing Communists?

Mr. Arzmaw. That I do not know. ) '

Senator Tmoamas., Well, if he was interested in one Communist
the chances are he would be interested in another Communist.

Mr. Arrman, He is interested in all people who have participated
in the unrest movements,

Senator Tmomas. Did he send in any list of other people who had
participated in other unrest movements that were not Communists?

Mr. Arrazan. That T do not know. '

Senator Tmomas. You do not know why he singled out the Com-
munists there, do you? )

Mr. Arzman, Well, because they are always in the unrest move-
ment.

Senator Tuomas. That is, you think that a man, if he is a Com-
munist, would have to belong to the group that the police have
trouble taking care of?

Mr. Arnman. Not necessarily. . o

Senator Twomas, The word “Communist” then T imagine, in your
mind, merely means an agitator who is making trouble? .

Mr., Avcman., The Communist Party is a political party, just
as the Democratic Party or the Republican Party, but there are
some Communists who are always in the unrest movements and who
use force, as a matter of fact, in the unrest movernent. '

Senator Trmomas: Do you think the unrest movements that we are
talking about now were initiated by Communists? :

Mr, Arrman, That I would not say. oo

Senator Tromas. A Communist is not just naturally antipolice,
is het _

Mr. Arumax. I am rather inclined to think that a great many of
them are. I do not say all of them are, but a great many of them
are.

Senator Twomas, Do they have any ideas that if we had a com-
munistic society that we could do away with the force element in
society ?

Mr. Arrman. That T do not know,

Senator Taoamas. In communistic countries what is the proportion
of men that represent force to men that represent peacef

Mr. Arrman. I do not know.

Senator Tmomas. Are there more soldiers in Russia than there
are in Americn ?
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Mr. Avevan. I do not know.

Senator Twomas. You do not know that?

Mr, Arzmaw. No; I do not know that.

Senator Tiromas. You do not know whether the standing army
in Russia is larger than the standing army in America?

Mr. Arpmax. T do not know.

Senator Tromas, Have you an idea?

Mr. Arzmaw, Well, it may be an erroneous idea if I did have one,
Senator, so I am not going to give any idea.

Senator Twmomas. This Cormmunist ery is an exceedingly impor-
tant, one, because if communism in America merely means unrest,
that is a very, very interesting situation, is it not?

[No response.]

Senator Tromas. Then there would be an element that we would
condemn because the American Government stands for orderly
processes, does it not? .

Mr. Arrmawn. I thought so,

Senator Tromas. Is not that the basis for democracy?

Mr. Arzman. I think so,

Senator Tromas. Now, in communistic countries, where the Com-
munists rule, do they rule by peaceful processes?

Mr. Artman. T do not know.

Senator Tromas, Do you not know?

r. Atrman. No.

]S_enz;tor Taosas. Do you think they would be antipolice or pro-
police?

Mr. Arratan. I do not know.

Senater Tmomas, Do you think the Communists in Russia would
be anti-Government or pro-Government?

ML:_L" Arraan. That I do not know, Senator. T am not in govern-
ment.

Senator Tmomas. What training do you give your policemen in
government ¢

Mr. Aveyan, Well, we give them 470 days’ training in all the
different matters of laws, ordinances, drilling, and all the things
that go with government. They must have their training in gov-
ernment before they come to the police department, I mean as to
general government. We give them the laws, the ordinances, the
drilling, and so forth.

Senator La Forterre. In all your experience have you had many
occasions where a clash between citizens and police had resulted in
80 many fatalities?

Mr. Azzman. No; T have never known of it in Chicago, except
during our race riot, on which occasion the troops were called in.

. Senator La Forrerte. But, so far as your experience with the police
is tcg)ncerned, the fatalities in this situation were unusual, were they
not

Mr. Arraman. They were unusual; of course,

Senator La Forrerre. If T understand your testimony correctly,
despite the fact that there were an unusual number of fatalities you
relied entirely upon the report of your officers, so far as any investi-
gation that you have made of the situation is concerned?

89562—37—pt, 14—3
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Mr. Arraraw. It was an unusual occasion, Senator. Tt was the fivst
time, in my knowledge, that a mob of 2,000 to 8,000 attempted to get
by police lines that were established.

Senator La Forrerre, But so far as any investigation you have con-
ducted is concerned, if T understand your testimony correctly, you
relied upon the report of your officers and patrolmen who were
involved?

Mr. Avraran. Could you, if T may ask the question, suggest any
other manner of investigation ?

Senator La Forrerre. Well, T could, yes; but T do not think it is
important. I am just trying to get the fact as to what occurred.
Now that is a correct statement, is it not?

Mr, Ariman, Yes.

Senator La Forrerte. And on the basis of your investigation, if 1
understand your testimony correctly, it is to the effect that you be-
Leve that the conduct of your officers and patrolmen on this cccasion
was fully warranted and justified, and in complete harmony with
the practices, regulations, and conduct of the Chicago Police De-
partment.?

Mr. Arrmaw. That is correct.

Senator Tronmas, Mr. Commissioner, one more question, What wag
the general objeciive of the marchers? ‘

Mr. Aruman. Well, I personally do not know, of course, except
from the report. It has been reported to me that the cry was, “We
will take the mill and chase out the finks.”

Senator Trosas. It was not against the policemen, then? -

Mr. Avpman. Noj; it was not against the policemen. I do not be-
Heve—I do not know that—but they did, nevertheless, call the police-
men the same names that they were calling the people inside, and
even fouler names, so far as I heard. Not being there, I cculd not
testify as to that,

Senator Taomas. Their immediate objective was to break in the

ate?
£ Mz, Arraan. In all probability.

Senator Tromas. What was the main objective of the police?

Mr. Anman. To preserve the peace and protect life and property.

Senator Twomas, That is just general.

Mr. Avpaaw, That is the objective always.

Senator Tmonas. That is the general objective of all policemen, is
it not?

Mr. Arumaw. Yes,

Senator Tuomas, But the marching had started now and the police
in charge were forming for their particular duty. What was their
particular daty? . o _

My, Arnman, To prevent those men from going into that mill and
chasing those people out and probably killing more than 100 in-
stead of the number that were killed.

Senator Taomas. Their objective, then, was to keep the crowd from
getting into the gate?

Mr. Auiman. Yes.

Senator Tmonmas. And the objective of the crowd was to get into
the gate, is that right?

Mr. Arzmaw. Yes; I suppose that is so.
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Senator Tmomas, If the crowd had attained their objective it
would have been easy for them to have gotten the finks out, would
it not?

Mr. Arrman. T doubt that very much,

Senator Tromas, Why? :

Mr, Ariman, Because I think there were more finks inside than
in the crowd. They were armed just as easily, and could be armed
just as easily. A mill naturally has a great many implements that
could be used and it would simply be a massacre 1f they got inside,
no doubt.

Senator Tromas. Did the police accomplish their ohjective?

Mr. Arunmaw. Sir?

Senator Tromas, Did the police accomplish their ohjective?

Mr. Avewaw. They did.

Seélator Tromas. They stopped them from going through the

ato? '
5 Mr. Atiman, Yes.

Senator Tromas. And in stopping them from going through the
gate then, in your opinion, you stopped a general fight between the
two factions of the industrialists? i

Mr. Arzman, T do believe so.

Senator THomas. Do you know how many men were on the inside?

Mfl‘.OALLMAN. It has been reported to me there were about 1,200
or 1,300,

Senator Troyas. Who were these finks?

Mr. Ariaax. I do not know that there were any finks inside.
They were men who were formerly employed and are still employed
in the Republic Steel Co. '

. Senator Tmomas. I have been trying to find out what a fink is
ero.

. Mr. Azcman. T do not know that the word “fink” is in the dic-
tionary.
} Senator Twomas, It is in our dictionary that we have arranged
1ere,

Mr. Azzman, T know what the meaning of it is.

Senator Tromas. They are strikebreakers, are they not?

Mr. Arrmax. Usnally. :

Senator Tmonmas. Were they imported strikebrealkers?

Mr. Axrmaw, I understand they were not.

Senator Tuomas. You understand they were not imported strike-
brealkers? .

Mr. Arraan, They were men who worked there before and who
still continued to work there when the strike was called.

%en%tor Tromas. Do you know whose direction they were working
under?

Mr. Arrmaw. You mean as to the plant?

- Senator. Tromas. Yes.

“Mr. Auiaaw. No; I have not the faintest idea,
i Senator Tmomass, Whom did they look to as their boss?
© - Mr. Axnmax. 1 do nof know. T have no idea on that.

Senator Tromas. Was there a personnel man who took charge

“of them ?

Mr. Arivax, T haven’t the faintest 1dea.
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Senator Tromas. Do you know whether there were any detective
agents in there, or agencies?

Mr, Arurmaw, I have never heard that there were.

Senator Tromas. No one from the outside?

Mr. Araiman. Not that I ever heard of.

Senator Twmomas. No represeniative from any association or
organization? _

Mr. Arman. Not that T ever heard of.

Senator THomas, But you are sure that there were more finks on
the inside than there were in the mob?

Mr. Arimaw. I am not sure of that at ail. That .is the report
that I heard the superintendent of the plant giving to the Governor
of the State of Illinois.

Senator Tuomas. And the superintendent was in charge of those
men, was he? '

Mr. Araman. Well, T do not know, of course.

Senator Tromas. You do not know that?

Mr. Avrman. No.

Senator Tromas. Did he admit then that they were armed?

Mr. Aurmax. I do not know that the question was asked.

Senator Tromas, Well, it would make a whole lot of difference to
your police captain for him to know whether the men on the inside
were going to be imposed upon or whether they were going to impose
upon the erowd, would it not? ,

Mr. Avraanw. Well, I do not think there was ever a thought of the
men on the inside coming out to impose on the crowd. 1 do not know
of that, of course. That i3 only my thought.

Senator Tmomas. You have already said that if those on the out-
side got in that they might have been hurt.

Mr. Arisman. They probably would., A great many peopls would
be hurt, there is no doubt about that, both the men inside and the
men that came in.

Senator Tmomas. You still do not know the name of the com-
mander of the finks?

Mr. Araman. What is that?

Senator Tmomas, You still do not know the man in command of
the finks?

Mr, Azzmaw. The superintendent of the men in the mill. Hyland
1g hig name. The first time I saw him or knew his name was when

T met him in the meeting with Governor Horner at the Southmoor -

Hotel.

Senator Tromas. You do not know any of his subordinates?

Mr. Auzman. I did not know a man in the mill,

Senator La Forrerre. That is all, Mr. Commissioner. You are
temporarily excusged,

Mr. Azzman. Thank you, gentlemen, _

Senator Lia Forrerre. There may be entered in the record a copy
of the subpena of Commissioner Allman.

(The document was marked “Exhibit 1384” and appears in the
appendix on p. 5011.)

Senator Lo Forrerre. Captain Prendergast,
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(The witness was sworn by Senator La Follette,)
Senator La Forrwrre. Captain, you are here under the subpena of
the commitiee?
Mr., PRENDERGAST. Yes. i ) )
.. Senator La Forrmrre. Let a copy of it be inserted in the record.
(The document was marked “Kxhibit 1335” and appears in the
appendix on p. 501L.)
. Senator La Fourerre. Will you please state your full name?
. Mr, Prexperoast. John C. Prendergast.
" Senator La Fourerre. And your residence?
. Mr. Prexpercast. 928 West Garfield Boulevard, Chicago, IIL
. Senator La Forrerre, What is your occupation?
Mr. Prenpercasr. Police officer,
Senator La Forrerre. What position do you oceupy?
My, Prenpmreast. Chief of the uniformed force. _
Senator La Forrerre. How long have you been connected with the

‘Chicago Police Department ?
7. Mr, PrunprraasT. Thirty years,

£ Senator La Forrerre. Will yon please state briefly for the record
what your duties are as chief of the uniformed force?

- Mr. Pruwpereast. Well, my principal duties are to enforce Iaw and
order, confer with my captain, my supervisors, who in turn confer
with their captains.

" tSenator La ForLerre. Are you a kind of executive officer under the
. comunigsioner !

Mr. PrexpERGasT. Under the commisgioner of police.
Senator La Forzerre., You are responsible to the commissioner ?

" Mr. PreNpERaAST. To the commissioner of police.

Senator La Forrerre. Now, what are the powers and responsibili-
ties of the division and district captaing in relation to you?

Mr. Prewperoast. Well, they report to me,
. Benator Lia Forrmrre. Do you issue the orders to them?
- Mr. PreExnpErGAsT. I issue the orders to them and they in turn
issue the orders to their captains,
- Senator La Forrerre. And how many uniformed police are under

“your jurisdiction, approximately?

. Mr,; PRENDERGAST. Approximately 5,000,

2 Senator Lia Foruerre. Now, you are aware that a strike was called
vatthe plant of the Republic Steel Corporation on May 26, 1937, are
you not?

- Mr. Prexperoast. Yes,

.7 Senator La Forrerrs, From whom did you first learn that the strike
" 'wag threatened or contemplated ¢

“Mr. PrenpereasT. From Captain Mooney.
v 8enator Lia Forrmrre. When was that, approximately; do you

Tnow ¢

Mz Prenperaast. I think that was on the Saturday previous.
“'Senator LA Forrerre. What information did he give you on Sat-
Mr,” Prenpercast. He told me that there was talk of a strike

- at the Republic Steel Co., and also the Youngstown Sheet & Tube.
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Both of these strikes were in the ninth distriet, I might add, under
Captain Kilroy. ’

;Se@nator La Forrwrre, Is that all the information that hLe gave
you?

Mr. Prenpercasr. That was about all. He said he did not know
when it was going to be called.

. Senator La ForLerre. Did he make any comment on the situation
m_relation to what the respomsiblities” and duties of the police
might be?

. Mr. Prenoereast. T believe he did; that he did not know, that
1t was falk; it was agitated, he just did not know when it was going
to be called. N

Senator La Forrerre, Did he indicate whether he thought it was
going to be a serious situation, from the police point of view, if
the sirike tool place? ' ' ’

Mr, Prexvrreast. No; not at that time.

Senator LA Forrrrre, Did you take any action, upon the basis
%:'lhls geport that you received orally, on Saturday, from Captain

ilroy ¢

Mz, PreNvrreast. On Monday T drove out toward the plant. T
did not go in the plant on Monday, that is, during the day time,
in the morning. - Monday night there was strong talk that they
were golng out, and the steel companies were making arrangements
to house the employees that were going to continue to work., So
about 10 o’clock, or 9 o’clock Monday night T called at the Republic
Steel Co. myself. . -

Senator La Forerre, Whom did you call on?

Mr. Prenpereasr. T met Mr. Hyland.

Senator La Forrerre, Is he the manager?

Mr. Prexpercast. T think he is the general manager; yes. While
I was there T met maybe 10 or 15 of the superintendents.

Senator La Forrerre. What was the subject of your conversation
on Monday night with Mr. Hyland?

Mr. Prexperaast. Well, they were uneasy, they did not kmow when
the strike was fo be called. '

Senator La Forurrre. What did he say?

Mr. Prenprreasr. He said that they were making preparations
to take care of the men that would continue to work, ‘

Senator Lo Forrerte. What sort of preparations did he say they
were making )

Mr. Prexpereast. T think they were bringing in beds, and, T sup-
pose, food supplies. They did not mention food supplies but T did
hear a word about beds being brought in.

Senator Lia Forrprre. What else was said, in addition?

Mr. Prexpercast. That was all, T waited around there for about
an hour and everything was peaceful. I think the second shift
goes on ab 11 o’clock. I waited around until after 11. Everything
was peaceful and T went home.

Senator Lo Forrerre. Was there any discussion between you and
Superintendent Iyland or any of the other supervisory officials,
on Monday, concerning the situation, so far as the police were con-
cerned, if a strike should be called ?

Mr. Prexperaast. Noj Just a general conversation.
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Senator La Forrerte. Was there any reference made to the action
that might be taken, or what precautionary action might be taken
by the police in regard to the situation ?

Mr. Prexbrroast. No; there was not. I went there more to be
on the ground at the time if there was anything happening.

. Benator Lia Fouoerre. Certainly. I can understand why you went
out there 1f you thought there was going to be trouble.

Mr. Prenperaast. I could not say trouble, We do not have trouble
in all our strikes.

Senator La Forrrrre. T will change it to suit you. T say T under-
stand the reason why you went out there. What T am anxious to
know is whether or not there was any discussion between you and
Superintendent Hyland or any of the other officials of a supervisory
character connected with the Republic Steel Corporation concerning
the activities of the police in cage a strike should take place.

Mr. PreNpErgasT. No.

Senator La FourerTe. That was not mentioned ?

Mr. Pernpercast. No. That was my job.

_ Senator La Forwerre. Now what was the next thing that hap-
petied in relation to this strike, so far as you were concerned, Cap-

S taln ke

Mz Prexprreast. On Tuesday morning I reported to the com-
missioniery I/ called on the commissioner. I reported to the commis-

i sioner: of police either in person or by telephone, and T called at

the conimissionar’s office and told him that the strike wasg imminent
at thie Republic:
Senator Lia Forzmrre. Will you speak a little louder, please?
Mr. Presprrcasr. I am a little hoarse. T say, I called the com-

" missioner’s: officer Tuesday morning and T told him a strike was

imminent at the Republic, and if it was called, why, we would have
to make some-arrangement for details around there. He told me
to make the necessary details, _

Senator La Forrerre. That was on Tuesday?

Mr, Prenpureast. Tuesday.

y Sen&;tor La Forrzrre, What' other instructions did he give you,
if any? _

Mr. Prexpercast. Well, he told me to preserve law and order,
and he said there was to be no sit-down strikes, That is not allowed
in Chicago. : T

Senator La Fourwrre, It was your responsibility to prevent any
sit-down strike that might oceur in the plant?

Mr. PrENDERGAST. Yes. :

Senator La Forrerre. That was part of your instruction? What
other instructions did he give you?

Mr, Pruwperoast. That was about all. He told me to make a
Burvey.

Senator La Forrere. He told you to make a survey?

Mr. PreNpERGAST, Yes,

Senator Lia Forrerre. Did he give you any instructions at all
3]301{1813 picketing, or did you discuss that subject with him on Tues-

ay?

Mr. Prewpercast. Not at that time. We never interfered with
picketing.

Senator I.a Forierre. Have you given us the full substance of
your discussion with Commissioner Allman on Tuesday?
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Mr. Prenpergagr. That was about all.

Senator La Fornerre. Concerning the Republic strike?

Mr, Prexprreasr. That was about all.

Senator Tmomas. Why was the sit-down strike singled out?

Mr. Prexoereasr. Well, we have not allowed a sit-down in Chi-
CAZO.

er;ator Tuomas. You have not allowed a sit-down strike in Chi-
cago?

Mr. PreNDERGAsT. No.

Senator Tromas, Was there any reason for not allowing it?

Mr. Prenperoassr. Well, we feel that they are breaking the law
when they are doing it. We have never had any trouble with them.

Senator Twomas. Is it breaking the law in Chicago to have a sit-
down strike?

Mr. Prexpereast. Well, T think it is,

Senator Tromas, There is an ordinance which covers the sit-down
strike, is there?

Mr. Prewpereast. When a man takes over your plant, when he is
working for you, why

Senator Tmomas (interrupting). That probably would be con-
fiscation, would it not ?

Mr. Prexperaast. It would be that more than anything else.

. Senator Tmomas. Why did the word “sit-down” come into your
Imstructions, do you know?

Mr. Prexpereast. No, I do not; unless it was general.

a Seélator Tromas. Just because it was in the atmosphere at the
ime?

Mr. PreNprroasT. Yes.

Senator TaoMas. No particular reason for it?

Mr, Prenperaast. No particular reason for it.

Senator Taomas. Was there any threat of a sit-down strike at the
Republic Steel?

Mr. Pronoureast. Not at that time; no, sir.

Senator Tmomas, If there had been a sit-down strike it would have
been a sit-down on the part of those who were sympathetic with
the owners, would it not?

Mr. Prenpergast. According to the records, the statement made
by the Republic, it would be in sympathy with the owners.

Senator Tromas, When you went inside of the plant you did not
find any antagonism between the workers and the employers there
did you? ’

Mr, Prenprrcast. Between the workers and the employers?

Senator TaoMas, Yes.

Mr. Prexpereast. The workers that I met in there were very
friendly to the employers.

Senator TroMas. They were there of their of their own free will?

Mr. PreNveraAsT, Yes,

_ Senator Tromas. The employers were not kidnaping them or mak-
ing them sit down, making them stay?

Mr. Prexpereasr. No,

Senator Tromas. They did not provide cots for them, so that they
conld stay if they wanted to?

Mr, Prenperaast. That is right.

Senator Trosas. And they allowed them to sleep right there?
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Mr. PrENDERGAST. Yes.

Senator Taomas. They fed them?

Mr. Prenpercasr. I suppose so.

Senator THomas. But not against their will?

Mr. Prexpereast. 1 do not suppose so.

Senator Tromas, But all that were on the inside were antagonis-
tic to all that were on the outside?

Mr. Prexpergast. T would not say that.

Senator Taomas. Then why would the word “sit-down” come info
this conversation?

Mr. Prenpercast, It was the general run of strikes and sit-downs
all over the country. '

Senator Tmomas. But it has no place in this particular instance?

Mr. PrexpErcasT. Noj it was just mentioned, that is all.

Senator Tmomas. It was just generalt

Mr, PrENDERGAST. Yes.

Senator La Forrerre. Now, on Tuesday, when you received these
instructions from Commissioner Allman, what did you do pursuant
to those instructions?

* Mr. Prenpercast. I conferred with Captain Mooney and told him
if the strike was called we would send in men temporarily to take
over the place rather than send a general order out to detail men on

“ the place.

Senator Tromas. “Fake over the place”, what do you mean?

Mr. Prenpercase. Not “take over the place.” Excuse me. Take
over the outside of the place.

Sénator Tromas. Preserve law and order?

Mr. Prenpercasr. Preserve law and order. At the time we went
out there, after the detail was made, I understood we had two or
three men detailed inside of the plant, and I ordered them ouf of the
plant. I told the captain in charge, I believe it was Kilroy, that our
men were detailed outside of that fence.

Senator Taomas. Who detailed the men inside?

Mr. Prexpergast. I do not know.

Senator THoMas. You do not know who did it?

Mr, Prenpergast, No,

. Senator Tromas. Do you think they were there of their own free

‘will, that they just walked in?

Mr. Prenperaast. I could not say as to that.
Senator Tromas. What were their duties when they were on the

ingide?

<. Mr. Prennrreast. I understood they were protecting, I think,

_some electrical plant in the plant.
" Senator THomas. Protecting it against whom ¢

- Mr, PreNpereasr. Against destruction,

:Senator Tromas. Against destruetion?

. Mr. Prenpereasr. Against destruction.
A Seng,tor Tromas. That someone might run into it and hurt them-
selves?

‘Mr. Prexpercast. 1 would not say “run into it.”

 Senator Tmomas. Destruction by whom? Who would destroy the

-electric plant?

Mz Prenprraast. Well, now, according to the statement issued by

_the attorney for the Republic Steel Co, to Governor Horner at the
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meeting, there were 1,800 on the pay roll and 1,400 of them continued
to work. Out of the 1,400 there might be some loyal to the fellows
on the outside.

Senator THomas, These officers, then, had a detail that was a sort
of a detective job, was it not?

Mr, Prewpereast. I told the captain, or the lieutenant, and I do
not reeall which it was-—they have their own police department in-
side that plant—if there was any protection inside that plant to any
of their machinery it was the employees’ job to look after it.

Senator Tmomas, Do you know whether the plant officials paid
your police anything for the work they did on the inside?

Mr. PreNpergasT. 1 do not think so.

Senator Tuomas. You do not think they were?

Mr. Prexnercast. No.

Senator Twomas. They paid their own watchmen though, did
they not.?

Mr. PrexNnErGasT. T suppose so.

Senator Tronas. That 15, they were not city watchmen ¢

Mr. Prenpereast. In fact, we issued an order through the com-
missioner, who called me in after the strike was in progress 2 or 3
days, and he ordered me to notify the captains in charge not to accept
any coffee or meals from the plant, and I gave them that order ver-
bally, and later on I gave it to them in writing.

Senator THomas. That iy very good policy, is it not?

Mr, PreNpercasT. I find it an excellent policy to remain neutral.
1 could make a speech here. I could say this, if T may

Senator Tmomas. T would like to have you do so. We are after
information,

Mr. Prexoergast. At the mecting of Governor Horner’s on Sun-
day night, that was the night of this May 30—

Senator Tromas., The night of the riot?

Mr. Prwpereasr. Yes—the commissioner wag present and our
labor man, Martin Durkin from the State of Illinois.

Senator Taomas, Who?

Mr. Prenpercagr, Martin Durkin.

Senator Tromas. He is a State official, is he?

Mr, Prenpercast. Yes. And Michael Igoe, our Federal prose-
cutor; the commissioner; myself; Captain Mooney; Captain Kilroy;
and several labor officials were there. The Governor discussed with
them the advisability of setiling the strike.

Senator La Forrerre, Will you speak a lftle londer, please?

Mr. Prexvrreasr. The Governor talked to them about settling the
gtrike, the advisability of settling the strike. That meeting was
held at the Southmoor Hotel at Sixty-seventh and Stoney Island
Avenue. The meeting was put over until Monday night, or Me-
morial Day. The Governor wag in town and they talked, but they.
did not get any place.

After the meeting was over I asked Mr. Van Bittner, who claimed
to he the organizer for that distriet, if T could {falk to him. He
said, “Yes.” We stepped over into one side and I gaid to him, “Why
all the arpument with the police department? We do not see the
Republic Steel Co. arguing with the police department. I can safely
gay that 90 percent of the police officers who were detailed at the
plant were members of labor organizations. None of us were born
with a silver spoon in our mouth. I started off as a laborer in the
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:ean Bridee Co. at Fortieth and Princeton Avenue, I marked
ﬁgﬁﬁﬁtﬁeBbridgge company. I believe the feeling of the poh.cemin
is for the laborer.” T said, “In these strikes, instead of trymgdg
gain favor with the police, everybody is trying to push them., ATOUT !
T said, “As an organizer—I do not know anything about or ganmmﬁi
but T think if I was handling the strike the first man that levlolg
vigit would be the captain of the district, get acquainted wlﬂi 1b im,
and if you did that there would be no disorder, ;c;here W'Olu‘ E‘We HO
ill feeling between the striker and the policemen. T said, et 1;0
not want any trouble at the Republic _Ste?l Co., we do ‘_ni)t Wtarll o
brine trouble into Chicago”, and I said, “1 _‘lrl?pe we will no have
any Tnore.” He turned to me and he said, ° ll,}ere will be no maglg
rouble with the Republic Steel Co. in Chicago”, and he has carrie

t his thought. ) & i
ou()nl the f(ilowing Tuesday night we got word from four or five

ing in f i dyna-
rees that they were coming in from Indiana, they were to dy
fr?:{flge the place, g)ming in with shotguns; and I got arﬁlgxté'? lie%\gy
detail ready to cut off the roads leading into the Repu 1(;1 ee o 0
to reroute traffic around the Republic Steel Co. Around, 0]::,t et i’le
or 5 o'clock, T think, I had about 300 men there, togethflr W:é b the
detail at the plant, and I got a call on the phone from Mr. Br 1n ¢
and he told me that he had read the newspapers, ?hat_ he saw W 1191123
the police were gathering. He said, “You can dismiss youli_ po oo
department. There will be no trouble.” T dismissed my police
partment on his word and there was not any trouble. .

Qenator Tmomas. Give me the date when you dismissed the po-
licemen. What would be the date? )

r. Prenpercasr. That was on Tuesday evening. ) _2
Senator Teosas. That would be the 1st of June, would it not?
Mr. Prexpercasr. That was the 1st of June; yes, sir.

Senator Tromas. You have had no trouble since?

Mr, PrexpEreast. We have had no trouble ever since.

Senator Tromas. Now, have you any reason to give for the prob-
able antagonism between the police and the erowd on the night of
Wednesday and Thursday, and then Sunday? )

Mr. Pronpereasr. Knowing policemen as I do—I started in the
police department as a patrolman, I have gone all the way through
the ranks—the policeman is mad today and forgets 1t tomorrow. I
do not think there is any antagonism between the strikers, the men
out on strike and the police department, I do not think so.

Senator Txomas. What about the 30th? o )

Mr. Prexporeagr. Well, T went to church services in the morning
and I got a call from Captain Mooney at my hoeme. )

Senator La Forzerte. Speak a litfle louder please, Captain.

Mr. Prinprrgaer. 1 have got an awful hoarseness. I got a call
from Commissioner Mooney at my bome, or Captain Mooney, when
T returned. T called him up. I went to his home and met him and
he told me there was evidently trouble might happen at the mills
that afternoon, that he had ordered the detail. At this mill they
work from 12 midnight until 8 o’clock in the morning, ﬁ;om 8
o’clock in the morning to 4 o’clock, and from 4 p. m. to 12 o’clock.

. He said that he had ordered his detail, that they would report at

4 o'clock p. m. and out at 2:45. He said, “It looks as if there 1s

- going to be trouble there.” He said, “1 would like to stop it.”
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As testified by the commissioner, on the Friday before 1 was
called to the commissioner’s office and T met a Judge Grant and a
Mr. Lewis, both from down in the southern part of Illinois, I think
Mr, Grant is from Springfield, and I met them at the plant—they
had some reports that the men were being held in the plant—I met
them at the plant. At that time thers were, I think I counted 18
pickets on the sireet in front of the plant. Nobody interfered with
them, T asked them if there was anything that they could object
to. Mr. Lewis said, “Well, you have got a lot of policemen around
here.” T said, “Well, is there anything that you could suggest?”
He said; “Well, you will hear from me later.”

Either later that day or the following day T got a call from
Judge Grant, who is an attorney for this union, or represented him-
self as an attorney for the union. I did not know just what he
wanted, I do not recall now, but he left a telephone number with me.

After I left Captain Mooney on Sunday morning T went back to my
office, which is located at Eleventh and State Street—do you know
Chicago?

Senator Taomas., Yes.

Mr. Prenpergagr. The mill is at One Hundred and Eighteenth
Street, and my office is at Eleventh and State Streets. T searched my
desk and I found the telephone number to the south Chicago ex-
change. I tried to get Judge Grant on the wire to see if we could not
stop the trouble, if there was going to be trouble, but I could not
locate him.

Senator L.a Forrmrre. Well now, on Tuesday prior to the strike,
if I understand your testimony, you received oral instructions from
Commissioner Allman ?

Mr, Prenprreast. I did.

Senator La Forrmrre. Now, you also testified, I think, that you
took the matter up personally with Captain Mooney?

Mr. PRENDERCAST. Yes; we talled about it.

Senator La Forrgrre. And what instructions did you give him?

Mr. PrunpereasT. That when the strike was called T notified my
officers

Senator LA Fourerre (interrupting.) This was on Tuesday, I under-
stood.

Mr. Prexperassr. Yes; this was before the strike was called,

Senator L.a Forrerre. Yes.

Mr. Prenpercast. When the strike was called T immediately noti- .

fied my officers that they were detailed for the strike.

Senator La Forrerre. Did you give them any other instructions at
that time?

Mr. Prevpercasr. I think I told them, as directed by the commis-
sioner, to enforce law and order,

Senator La Forrerre. And were there any extra police detailed in
this immediate vicinity prior to Tuesday?

Mpy. Prenperaast. No.

Senator Lia Forrmroe, Were there any detailed there prior to the
time that the strike occurred?

Mr. Prenpereasr. No. I will qualify that by saying that the only
man that could really answer that question would be Captain Kilroy,
because I did not order the detail there until—I think I have got a
copy of the order here,
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Senator Lia Forrerte. What was the next thing that occurred, Cap-
tain, after you talked with Captain Mooney on Tuesday

Mr, Prexnpercast. Well, we got a call in the evening.

Senator Lia Forrerre. Tuesday evening?

Mr. PrenpERCAST. May 26,

Senator La Fowrerre. Wednesday evening ?

Mr. Prunpercast. That is the day of the strike,

Senator L Forrzrre. Yes,

Mr. PrexpErGasT. We got a call around 6 o’clock that the strike
was in progress. '

Senator La Forrerme, From whom did you receive that call?

Mr. Prexpercast. 1 did not get it. My secretary got it. I think
it came from Captain Mooney’s office.

Senator T.a Forperte. It came from Captain Mooney’s office?

Mr. PruNDERGAST. Yes.

Senator La Forrerre. And what did you do next?

Mz, Prenpereast. Well, the south side of Chicago is made up of the
first to the twentieth police districts,

Senator La Forzerre., From the first to the twentieth police dis-
tricts

Mr. PRENDERGAST. Y es.

Senator La Forierre. Those are located in south Chicago?

Mr. PreNDEraasT. Noj on the south side of Chicago.

Senator La Forrerre, On the south side of Chicago?

Mr. PreNDERGAST. Yes; at 6:02 p. m. T sent out a teletype order.
Do you want a copy of 1t?

Benator La Forrerre. I have a copy of it. _

Mr. Peenpercast. Have you got a copy of the teletype?

Senator Lia ForrerTe. Yes.

Mr. PrenpErGAsT. It reads:

Days off of members of Ist dist. to 20th dists. inclusive are hereby cancelled
effective at once.

Senator La Fourerte. Let a copy of that be given an exhibit num-
ber.

(The document was marked “Exhibit 1336” and appears in the
appendix on p. 5011.) '

Senator La Forzmrre. What was the next order you issued?

Mr. Prenpercast. I am quite sure I told Mooney

Senator La Fourerre (interrupting). Was that the one at 6:14
p- m. in addition.? '

Mr. PreNDERGAST. What time is on that?

Senator Lia Foruerre, 6:02 p. m. is the teletype order canceling
leave.

Mr. Prenpereast. That is right.

Senator La Forrerre. 6:14 p. m. is another order, or message. I
offer for the record message 15223,

(The document was marked ¢Exhibit 1337”7 and appears in the
appendix on p. 5012.)

Senator Lia Forrerre. It reads:

To Commanding Officers: Of the 1st Division:

You will send all available uniform patrolmen asgigned to post duty to the
6th Distriet at once for duty at the 9th District.

Signed by yourself is that correct?

Mr. PrenDERGAST. Oh, yes; that is right, but Mooney, as the super-

. visor of the second and third divisions, has control of all the police
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officers In that division, and he can order them into a district in
either one of those divisions. I believe that he did that. The first
division is under another supervisor.

Senator La Forrmrre. Now, at any time prior to the issuing of
these orders did you discuss with Commissioner Allman or Captain
Mooney, or with anyone else, the question of the number of police
which would be required to handle the sitnation?

Mr. Prenprreasy. Noj T think T did that myself.

Senator Lia Forrmrre. Did you discuss with Captain Mooney, or
with anyone else, the question of where the police would be stationed
in the area?

Mr. Prevprrgast. They were to be stationed away from the plant.
No police officer was to be stationed on duty in the plant; they were
not to be stationed in the plant.

Senator La Forrerre. Did you issue those instructions orally?

Mr. PreNpeErcast. Orally, yes.

Senator La Forrerre. Or in writing?

Mr, PrenpERGast, Orally.

Senator Lia Forrerre. When did you issue those instructions?

Mr, PreNnereasr. T think it was the 27th or 28th. The strike was
called—-I think it was the morning of the 27th.

Senator La Forrerre, The morning after the strike wag called ?

Mr. Preworraast. I was out myself.

Senator La Forterre. Then I think you said that you confirmed
that order in writing later. TIs that correct?

Mr. Prenpereasr. No; the order T confirmed in writing was for
the meals.

Senator La Forrerre. You said, in regponse to a question by Sen-
ator Thomas, that at sometime when yvou went out there you found
that some of the officers were inside the plant.

Mr. Prenprreast. That was the morning of the 27th, T am quite
sure.

Senator La Forrermn., Guarding the power-house.

Mr. I’renpErgasT. I am quite sure it was the morning of the 27th.

Senator La Forwerre. Did you issue your order before you knew
that those men were in the plant?

Mr. Prenorroast. Noj I learned that when T went out there. T
inquired where the men were detailed and learned some of them were
detailed inside the plant. So I issued an order—a verbal order.

Senator La Torrerre. Was there any headquarters established out
in this area?

Mr. Prenvpercast. Yes; there was a headquarters established inside
the gate.

Senator L Forrerre. Inside the gate of the plant? ‘

My, Prenorraast, There was a little house there. We took it over
as a police headquarters.

Senator La Forrerm. So that your inmstructions that your men
were not to be inside the plant did not go to this house?

Mr. Pruwpereast. Not to this house.

Senator Lia Forrmrre. Which was located near the gate?

My, PrenprrGasT. That is right—inside of the fence: yes.

Senator Twmomas., How were these men fed, Captain?

Mr. Prenpercast. They had to feed themselves.

Senator Tromas. They had to feed themselves?
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Mr. Prenprrossr. Some of them had a little trouble out there
getting something to eat, too.

Senator Tmomas. Did the company feed them?

Mr. Prewpercast. I think the company wanted to feed them. I
think they did feed them one day and we learned about it and
stopped it

Senator Traoaas, Both the men on the insgide and the men on
the cutside, or was it just the men on the inside that were fed?

Mr. Prowpergast. I think they wanted to feed them all-they
wanted to feed the entire police detail. I took that up with the
comunissioner,

Senator THomas. As a matter of generosity?

Mr. Prexpergasr. Well, if yon want to call it that.

Senator THoMAs. But you do not know that they did feed anyone?

Mr., Prexorereast, I do not know,

Senator Tromas, You issued orders against it?

Mpr, Prexpergasr. Yes, sir

Senator La Forrerre. Now, T offer for the record a copy of the
message numbered 15224 ordering the three shifts, each consisting of
90 patrolmen, 4 sergeants, and 2 lieutenants, to report to Supervisor
James Mooney at the ninth district. It may be given an exhibit
number and printed in full in the record. .

(The documeni was marked “KExhibit 1838” and appears in the
appendix on p. 5012.)

Senator La Forzerre. Will you please look at a copy of this ex-
hibit, Captain? '

(The document was handed to Mr. Prendergast.)

M. Prexpercast, That is right,

Senator La Forrerre. Tell me at what time these men were or-
dered to veport for duty. '

Mr. Prenperoasr. As I stated in the order, these men were to re-
port at 11: 45 p. m. on the 26th, going on duty at 12 ¢’clock.

Senator Lia Forimrre. And how long does the order provide for
this detail to be continued?

Mr. Prenpereast. Until the future order, until the follow-up order
comes 1.

Senator La Forzerre. Do you know how many policemen were on
duty at the Republic plant, or I mean in that area, prior to the time
that this particular order was issued ?

Mr. PrEnDERGAST. I would say from €0 to 75 men. That was just
a temporary detail.

Senator Lia Foruerre, Now, T offer for the record a copy of the
message dated May 28, 1937, numbered 15467.

(The document was marked “Exhibit 1839” and appears in the
appendix on p. 5012.)

Senator La Forrerre (reading) :

To Commanding Officers, District 1 to 20. )

Detall 2 patrolmen on each ghift to the eighth Distriet commencing at 12
o'clock midnight,

Signed by yourself.

What was the occasion for this additional detail?

Mr. PreNpereast. That was a reserve detail, so that if there was
any trouble that detail was to remain on duty until further orders.
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Senator La Forrerre. Now, in accordance with these orders that
we have been over, Captain, how many men were on detail at the
plant, or in the area surrounding it ?

Mr. PruxoErcast. At the Republic and at the Youngstown there
were practically—on the three watches?

Senator La Forrerre. How many on each watch ¢

Mr, PrenpercagT. Well, as shown here in this order, 15224, there
were 90 patrolmen on each watch.

Senator La Forrerre. Ninety patrolmen on each watch?

Mr. PreNDERGAST, Yes,

Senator L Forrerte. But they supplemented the others who were.

already on duty, did they not?

Mr. Prenprreast, When this order went out it canceled all previ-
ous orders?

Senator LA Forrerre. Tt canceled all previous orders?

Mr. Prunpereast, Yes.

Seln;ttor La Forierre. So that you had 90 men on each shift, so to
spealk ?

Mr. PreENDERGAST. Yes.

Senator La Forrmrte. And 40 in reserve, is that so?

Mr. Prexpergast. Not exactly 40, there is no second distriet and
if you will notice under “reserve” I canceled it over the phone as far
ag the ninth district was concerned. So I think we had 86 on reserve.

Senator La Forrerre. Thirty-six on reserve?

Mr. PrexDERGAST. Yes,

Senator La Forrerre. Now you sald you visited the plant on
Tuesday prior to the strike. '

Mr, PrenpergasT. Yes, ‘

Senator La Forrmrre. And you testified you visited it again on
Wednesday mornisg.

Mr. Prexprrcast. Yes. X made 10 or 12 visits to the plant.

Senator La Foruerre. Now, when you went out there on Wed-
nesday morning they had not yet gone out on strike had they?

Mr. PrexpErcasT. That is the 26th? |

Senator Lia Forrmrme., Yes,

Mr. Prewprreast. Noj I do not believe I called there Wednesday
morning,

Séefnagor Ls Forrerte. You do not believe yon were there on Wed-
nesday ¢

Mr. Prenprreast. No.

Senator La Forrerre. Were you there on Thursday, the 27th?

Mr. PrenpErcast. The 27th; yes, I was there the 27th. ’

Senator La Forrwrre, When you were there on Thursday, the 27th,
you found that some policemen had been detailed to gnard the
power-house ?

Mr. Prexprrasst. I think there were two or three policemen de-
tailed in the plant.

Senator La Forrerre. You ordered all those detailed inside of -

the plant protecting plant property to get outside?

Mr. Prunpercasr. T told the captain, or the lieutenant, I think it
was the lieutenant, that that was the company’s job, that we were
only interested on the outside of that plant.

Senator Lia Fowrrrre, On Thursday morning did vo t
of the plant officials? ¥ - you mest any
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Mr. Prenprroast, On Thursday morning?

Senator Lia ForLerre, Yes; the 27th.

Mr. PrenpercasT. I do not believe T did. ) )

Senator La Foruerts, You did not have any discussion with them?

Mr. PrexpercasT. No. ]

Senator La Forrerre. When did you visit the plant the next time
after the morning of the 27th, Thursday? . ]

Mr. Prenpercast. Well, I was at the plant-—is the 28th on Fri-
day?

Senator Lia Forrgrre, Yes.

Mr. PrunvEreasT. Is Friday the 28th?

Senator La Forrerre. Yes.

Mr., Prenpercast. I was at the plant the afternoon of the 28th
with this Mr. Lewis and a man who represented himself as Judge
Grant, who complained to the commissioner that the men were being
held inside of the plant.

Senator La Forrerts. Speak a little louder please.

Mr. Prenpereast. The commissioner directed me to meet them at
the plant and show them what was going on in there. )

Senator Lia Fornerte, Did you meet any of the plant officials at
this time!?

Mr. PrexpErcast., No. .

Senator La Forrerre. Did you have any discussion with any of
the plant officials at any time, after you saw them on Tuesday
prior to the strike and before the riot or incident occurred on
Sunday ?

Mr. Prenouroast. Well, I might have talked to some of the lower
officials, you know, but not any conversation. ‘

Senator La Forrerre. Did you ascertaln, in any conversation you
had with people connected with the company, as te the number
of private guards that they had?

Mr, PrExpERGAST. Noj I did not, ‘

Senator T.a Forrwrre. And other people to protect their property

Mr. Prexpereast. [ did not. T saw private guards around there
in yniform. I did not pay any attention to them,

Senator La Forrmrre, You did not think the number of men that
they had had any relation to the instructions which you had received
to protect their property? .

Mr. Prunpercast. I do not know anything about their men.

Senator Lia Forrerre. Well, you did not think that had any signi-
ficance in connection with the responsibility of the police?

Mr. PrexnprroasT. Tt has been my experience where private guards
are hired, that they cause you more trouble.

Senator La Fourrre. Now I think you stated that on Saturday
vou had a conference with Captain Mooney in which he indicated
that he was apprehensive that there was going to be trouble.

Mz, Prenorreast. Sunday.

Senator La ¥orrerre. That was Sunday morning?

Mr. PrenpereasT. That was Sunday morning.

Senator La Forrerre. On Sunday morning you had a conference
with Captain Mooney?

Mr. Prexprreast. 1 was to church services, When T returned
home there was a telephone call to call Captain Mooney, and I
went over to his homse.

89562—37—>pt, 14——4
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Yenator T.a Foruerre. You went over to Captain Mooney’s home
on Sunday morning?

Mr. Prexprreasr. It was after 12 o’clock.

Senator La Fortmrre. 1t was after noon on Sunday?

Mr. PrennERGAST, Yes.

Senator T.a Foruerre. And he indicated to you he was apprehen-
sive that there was going to be trouble in the Republic plant area?
Mr. PRENDERGAST. YeS. ' .

Senator T.a FoucerTe. Did he say upon what he predicated that
prediction?

Mr. Prenprreast. Noj it wag just information seeping through,
that there was going to be trouble there.

Qenator Lia Forrerre. Did he say what the nature of the trouble
was going to bet?

Mr. PrExpErReasT. No; he did not. He said, “There may be noth-
ing to it.”

Genator Lia Fortrrre. Did he say what the source of his informa-
tion was?

Mr, Prexprraist. Noj be did not.

Qenator La Forrerre. He did not indicate what he thought the
trouble might be?

er. Prexorroast. Noj he just referred to it as trouble at the
plant.

Senator La Fouperre. After yon had this conversation on Sunday
with Captain Mooney, T think yon testified that you went to your
office at Eleventh and State Streets?

Mr. Pre~nDERGAST. Yes.

Qenator La Forrerre, And you found there a telephone number of
someone who had called you?

Mr. Prunpereast. That I had gone to the plant with on the Fri-
day previous.

Senator La Forzerre. Mr. Grant, I think youn said?

Mr. PRENDERGAST, YesS,

Qenator Lia Fornerte, You tried to reach him but could not do so?

Mr. Prexprreast. I conld not reach him.

Qenator La Forrmrre. Did you take any other action, in view of
Captain Mooney’s statement that he anticipated trouble?

‘Mr, PreNpERGAST. Due to the fact that Mooney had ordered out
an extra force at 2: 45, T asked him, T said, “Can you handle the sit-
uation?? He said, “Yes” T said, “If it looks like trouble out there
T wish you would call me.” Then I went to my office. T went
home to dinner. I got home a little late for dinner, and ahout 3:30
T got a call that there might be tronble at the steel plant, or some-
thing to that effect. I jumped into my car and I drove out to the
ninth district. When T got out there everything seemed to be peace-
ful.

Senator La Forrerre. About what time was this?

Mr. Prpxporeast. Oh, I might say around 4 o'clock. T was in
there a short while when the telephone rang that trouble at the steel
plant, I remained in the ninth district, knowing that Mooney and
Kilroy were in charge of the aituation out there, and T was the only
officer who could give an order, so I remained at the ninth district
and took charge of the situation out there.

Senator THomas. You mentioned awhile back about having re-
ceived report of dynamiters in Indiana. That was the same day?
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Mr. Prenprreast. That was the Tuesday following the thirty-first.

Senator Tmomas. The Tuesday following the riot?

Mr. PRENDERGAST, Y es.

Senator THosas. It had nothing to do with this incident at all?

My. PruxprroAst. No. It was a false alarm, such as many of
these things are in strikes. We get many reports that something 18
going to happen which never materializes. 1In Mooney’s talk with
me, he was not real sure, as T recall, that there was going to be
trouble there, but he took the precautions which are necessary in our
business, to take ample precautions. o .

Senator La Fourwrte, Did you communicate the information you
had received from Captain Mooney on Sunday to Commissioner
Allman?

Mr. Prennereast. Noj; T did not. ) '

Senator La Forrerts. Now, prior to Sunday afternoon did you
have any diseussion with Commissioner Allman, Captain Mooney,
or with any other police officer relating to the question? .

Mr. Prexpereast. 1 had a conversation with Commissioner All-
man on the Friday that I met Mr. Grant—Judge Grant and Mr.
T.ewis—out there, and Commissioner Allman said, “Let them have
100 pickets.” They were claiming that the place was not being prop-
erly picketed. He said, “Allow them 100 pickets; allow them as many
as they want.” : ) _

Senator L Forrmrre. Is that the only discussion you had with
anybody prior to Sunday afternoon relating to the question of
picketing ¢

Mr. Prexpercast. That is all T can recall.

Senator Ta Forreroe, Are you familiar with the opinion of Cor-
poration Connsel Hodes, which I placed in the record? when Com-
missioner Allman was on the stand?

Mr. Prenpereast. I have read it.

Qenator La Fourzrre. You had a copy of the opinion at the time
it was issued?

Mr, PreNprreast. Shortly after it was issued. T think T read it
in the commissioner’s office.

Qenator La Forrerre. Do you know whether the contents of this
opinion were made known to officers in command of the uniformed
police, in addition?

Mr. Prenpercasr. I haven’t got control of that.

Qenator La Forrerre. Now, you stated, T think, that when you got
to the ninth district headquarters it was about 4 o'clock in the
afternoon.

Mr. Prexperaast. Arvound there; yes.

Senator La Forrerre. And judging from Captain Kilroy’s report,
that is about the time that the so-called clash took place?

Mr. PrexpEreasT. Around there; yes.

Senator La Forrerre. Did you remain at the headquarters or did
yon at any time go out to the scene of this difficulty during that day?

Mr. Prenpercast. Noj; not at that time.

Senator La Forrmrte, You heard Commissioner Allman’s tosti-
mony, did you not?

Mr. ProNperease. Some of it.

: 1 8ee exhibit €329, pp, 5003-5006.
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Senator Lia Forrerre. Well, he stated that he had relied exclu-
sively on the report of the officers and patrolmen who were involved
on this day.

Mr. PrenprreasT. I might answer that. After this trouble was
over

Senator La Forrprtr (interrupting). Speak a little louder.

Mr. Prenpercast. After this trouble was over I directed the men
in charge of the police officers at the steel company to get a written
report from every police officer who was at that site.

Senator L.a Torurrre. That is, you instructed Captain Mooney
and Captain Kilroy to get a statement?

Mr. Prunprreast, I directed that Kilroy come into the station.
There were many things to be done. I think I ordered Kilroy to
come into the station to make an immediate report to Commissioner
Allman, or for Commissioner Allman.

Senator Lia Forrerre. And from your knowledge of the situation,
Captain Prendergast, from these reports-which you have read, did
the conduct of the police in this encounter, and afterwards, meet
with your full approval?

Mr, Prenprraast. I would say yes.

Senator La Forrerre. You are temporarily excused. Thank you.

The committee will take a recess until 2 o’clock. The witnesses
will please return at that time.

(Thereupon, at the hour of 12:80 p. m., the committee recessed
until 2 p. m. of the same day.)

AFTERNOCGON SESSION

f(The h)earing was resumed at 2:09 p. m., pursuant to the taking
of recess.

Senator La Forrerre. Captain Mooney.

TESTIMONY OF JAMES L MOONEY

(The witness was sworn by Senator La Follette,)

Senator La Forrerre. Be seated, please. Your full name?

Mr. Moornny. James L. Mooney.

Senator La Foruerre, M-0-0-n-e-y?

Mr. Moowey. Yes, sir.

Senator Lia Forrerte, Where do you reside, Captain?

Mr. Mooney. I live at 836 Tast I'ifty-second Street, Chicago.

Se;x;ator La Forrmrre. What is your position in the police depart-
ment. ?

Mr. Moowry., Supervisor.
. S?enator La Forzrrre. What division are you directly responsible
or ?

Mr. Moowey. Second and third divisions. That includes the eighth
and twentieth distriets, inclusive.

Senator L Forrmrre. And that, for the record, is the district in
which the plant of the Republic Steel Corporation is located, is it not?
_ Mr. Mooney. Tt is in the ninth district, a part of the second divi-
sion,

Senator La Forrrrre. Will you look at the chart, an enlargement
of which is hung on the wall behind me, and which has already been
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offered for the record, and tell me whether, as you understand the
physical situation there, the chart is approximately correct?

My, Moowex. That is correct.

Senator Yo Forvrrre. Prior to Wednesday, May 26, when the
strike broke out, Captain, did you have any conversation with any
officer or representative of the Republic Steel Corporation?

Mr. Moonzy. Prior to Wednesday?

Senator La Forrerre., Yes, sir.

Mr. Moowney. No, sir. C

Senator La Forzerre. When did you first learn that a strike was
impending at the Republic plant, approximately ?

Mr. Moonzy, T am sure that Chief Prendergast called me Tuesday
afternoon and said there might be a strike at the Republic Steel
mill.

Senator La Fouerre. That was the first you had heard of it?

Mr. Moonry. Yes, sir. :

Senator La Forzzrre. Prior to the time that the strike occurred,
did you hear anything more about it from anyone?

Mr. Moowney., No, str,

Senator La Forrerre. Did any requests come into your office, Cap-
tain, from any representative of the Republic Steel Corporation for
police protection at the plant?

Mr, Moonzey. No, sir.

Senator La ForLrrte, When was the police detail first sent to the

lant?

P Mr. Modwpy. I received word about a quarter past 4 Wednesday,
May 26. I went over there.

Senator La Forverre. In the afternoon?

Mr. Moowey. Yes, sir.

Senator Lia Forrerre. And what did you do when you got there?

Mr. Mooney. When I went there I met Captain Kilroy and I
asked him how many men he had, and he told me, T think, he had
40. T called up Chief Prendergast and asked him to send 60 more
men.

Senator La Forrprre, How long had the original detail been on
duty, do you know, Captain?

Mr. Mooxgy, T inquired, and they had been there about an hour, to
the best of my knowledge, maybe a half hour, T wouldn’t be so sure
about that,

Senator La Forrrrte. Was the first detail sent there pursuant to
your ingtructions?
© Mr. Mooxgy. Yes, sir.

Senator T.a Forawrre, And when were they issued?

Mr. Mooney. Around 4 o’clock on Tuesday or thereabouts.

Senator La Forrermm. On Tuesday or Wednesday?

Mr. Mooney., On Wednesday, May 26.

Senator La Forrerrs, After the strike had commenced ?

Mr. Moowry. Been called; yes, sir.

Senator La Fovrterre. When you visited the plant what was the
situation there, Captain, on Wednesday?

Mr. Mooxer. On Wednesday there was, I would say there was
about 1,500 employees, and there was about 200 probably that was not
working and that we understood would not go out. Ho I talked to
Captain Kilroy and the management of the steel company wanted




4684 VIOLATIONS OF FREE SPERECH AND RIGHTS OF TABOR

them out, and T asked Captain Kilroy to talk to them and ask them
to go out,

Senator La Forrzrre. Did you learn from this official of the plant
yourself that they wanted them to go out?

My, Moowey. They wanted them out.

Senator La Fourerre. You learned from him ?

Mr. Mooxey. Yes, sir.

Senator Lo Fornerre. Who was he!

Mr., Mooney. Mr, Hyland.

_ tSe?gator La Forumrre. He is the superintendent, as you under-
stand? .

Mr. Mooxry. Yes, sir, '

Senator La Fourerre, Give us the substance of your conversation
with Mr, Hyland.

Mr. Moowuy. He said there was a couple of hundred of them
wouldn’t go out; and T told him T wouldn’t undertake to put them
out until I got some more men. TIn the meantime Captain Kilroy
went out and talked to some of the leaders and they went out,

Senator T.ae Foruerre. Did they explain why they wanted these
men out? Did Mr, Hyland explain?

Mr. Moowey. Yes; he said he thought it would cause trouble with
the others that wanted to stay, and during that time there was 2 man
that represented the C. T. O. came in and asked me if he could ad-
dress the employees. I says, “Who do you want to address?” THe
said, “I want to talk to the C. T. O. men.” T said that would be all
right. 8o I had to follow him and he was talking to everyhody, and
I said, “Oh, no: you can’t do that; you can talk to the . I. 0. men
but you can’t talk to the others.”

Senator La Forrerme. Do you know who he wag?

Mr. Moo~ey. His name was Riffe, or something similar to that
nane.

Senator La Forrerre. Did these 200 men leave the plant, or how-
ever many there were?

Mr. Mooxry. They left; yes, sir.

Senator La Forrrrre. Before the additional detail had arrived?

Mr. Mooney, The additional detail had arrived,

Senator La Forrmrte. Where were the police stationed when you
arrived there on Wednesday?

Mz, Mooxzy. Right inside the gate, within a couple of hundred
feet. '

S]eg]gator La Forrmrre. How far is it from the gate to the plant
itself?

Mr. Mooxney. There is three or four big- buildings—TI should say
half a block, 400 feet, 300 feet.

Senator Lia Forrerre. The entire detail was inside the fence?

Mr. Mooney. Just inside the gate. o

Senator L Forrerre. And Captain Kilroy was in charge?

Mr., Mooxey. ¥ was the commanding officer. He is the captain
there; yes. \

Senator La Forterre. When you got there, up to that time he had
been in charge of the detail?

Mr. Mooney. Yes, sir.

Senator Lia Forzmrre. Was there any discussion, on this day that
you were at the plant, with anyone concerning the right of picketing
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and what kind of picketing would be permitted or was permitted
under the law? oo

Mr. Moonwy. 1 knew, Senator, what was permitted under the law.

Senator La Forzerre. I mean, did you discuss it with any of the
strikers or any of your subordinates or anyone connected with. the

lant ?
P Mr. Mooney. The occasion had not come up at that time.

Senator La Forrerre. There was no picketing going on at that
time ¢

Mr. Mooney. Well, now, on Wednesday night after they all went
out there wag a sound truck out in front of the plant and they were
saying, “You scabs in uniform come out of there, get them finks out
of the plant.” So I said to Captain® Kilroy, “Who’s got that sound
truckc going out there? Go out and lock him up.” And I went out
and looked up and down and I saw about a thousand people walking
up and down. 1 called two platoons and we chased them two blocks,
and we had to lock up two or three that would not move, including
Mr, Riffe. T said, “We are running these streets and will run them.”

Senator Tromas. What did he mean by “scabs in uniform”?

Mr. Mooxmy. He meant the uniformed police officers, Senator.
May I continue further with this? . :

Senator La Foruerre. Just a moment. [Pause.] Proceed, Cap-
tain.

Mr. Mooxwy. They all went to court and pleaded guilty and they
were fined a small fine.

Senator Lo Forrerre. What were they charged with?

¢Mr. Mooney., Unlawful assembly and disorderly conduct.

Senator Lia Forrerre. Prior to strike had you discussed or had
there been any conferences between you and other members of the
police department concerning picketing? )

Mr. Mooxey. Prior to the strike?

Senator La Forrwrre. Yes; and in anticipation of it?

Mr. Mooney. We had other strikes. We have discussed that,
lawtul picketing; yes, sir.

Senator La Forrerte. Did you have any discussions in connec-
tion with picketing in relation to the impending strike at the
Republic plant? )

Mr. Mooxney. No; we didn’t talk about it. That question had
not arisen at that time. We had not said anything about it.

Senator Tia - ForLerre. Are you familiar with the opinion on
picketing issued by Corporation Coungel Hodes? *

Mr. Mooxuy. I am, Senator; yes, sir,

Senator L Forrerts. You described to us the incidents that oc-
curred there on Wednesday evening concerning this sound truck
and the men who were parading up and down in the street. How
many police wonld you say were outside of the gates of the plant,
and outside of the fence at the time that this operator of the
sound truck was arrested and these men were dispersed ?

Mr. Moowey., How many did T take out?

Senator T.a Forrerre, Yes.

Mr. Moowmy. Two platoons.

Senator La Forrwerre. And that wonld be how many?

Mr. Moowey. Thirty-two men in each platoon—twice that, 64, 2
lientenants and 2 sergeants with each platoon.

18ee exhibit 1329, pp. 5003-5008,
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Senator La Forrerte. I take it, from your previous testimony, that
you had not consulted with anyone concerning an attempt to defend
the rights of pickets, or where they could go, or what they could
do, and still comply with the law, prior to the time the strike took
place on Wednesday, is that correct?

Mr. Mooxey. That I didn’t talk to anyone? No; I didn’t talk
to any of the sirikers about it. I discussed the matter with Chief
Prendergast.

Senator La Foruerre. What was the subject of your discussion
with him ?

Mr. Moower. He said to allow peaceful picketing.

Senator L.a Forrerre. Did he say what that was?

Mr. Moonmy, Fifty, 75, a hundred, if they behaved themselves.

Senator La Forrerre. Did you discuss how near the plant they
would be permitted to come? :

Me. Moonny, They would come up as far as the front gate there,
within 50 feet, :

Senator Lia Forrerre, Had you known of Commissioner Allman's
statement to Captain Prendergast that they could have as many
pickets as they wanted to, so long as they were peaceful?

Mr. Moowey. Well, T understood the Commissioner to say around
100.

Senator LA Forirrre. You understand he fixed it at a hundred?

Mr. Moonzy. I understood that; yes. )

Senator La Forrwrre. You did not understand that he had said
they could have as many as they wanted?

Mr. Mooxey. T didn’t understand that; no.

Senator La Forzerre. What was the reason, what behavior on
the part of the pickets occurred that caused you to issue an order
that they should be dispersed on Wednesday night?

Mr. Moorzey. Senator, these were not pickets. This was an or-
ganized disorderly mob out in front of that gate, and if I had
not put them out of there there would have been a riot that night.

Senator La Forrerre. What were they doing?

Mr. Mooney. Hollering at the people inside, calling the police
department scabs, finks. It does not take much to cause trouble when
there are a thousand disorderly people in front, The only reason
T put them out was to avoid trouble, and we certainly would have
had it if T had not put them out.

Senator La Forrerrs. What else did they do besides call names?

Mr. Mooxey. That is all they did.

Senator T.a Foramrre. How was the picket line dispersed? These
two platoons?

Mr. MoonEY. One of them said go ahead, and those that did not
move when they were told, we put them in the wagon.

Senator La Forrgrre. Do you remember approximately how many
were arrested ?

Mr. Mooxey. Twenty-three,

Senator La Forrerre. Did you make any arrests personally?

Mr. Moonpy. I took hold of Riffe and told the lieutenant to put
him in the wagon.

Senator La Forrerre. What was Riffe doing?
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Mr. Moowey. He was telling them to pay no attention to the
policemen they saw there, and T said, “Oh, yes; you will; you will
do what we tell you, we are running these streets here.”

Senator Lia Forrmrre, Were they originally charged, do you know,
with conspiracy? .

Mr. Mooney. Noj we did not charge these men with conspiracy.

Senator La Forrerte. They were not booked on a conspiracy
charge ag well as on a charge of disorderly conduect?

Mr. Moowey. They were booked for unlawful assembly and dis-
orderly.

Sengtor La Forrerre. Did any other incidents oceur on Wednes-
day night, Captain, of an untoward nature, after these?

Mr. Moowey. I don’t think so.

Senator La Forrrrre. What time did you leave?

.. Mr. Mooney. Oh, I left the plant about half past 1l—quarter
to 12, :

- Senator La Forrerre. While you were there following the time
these people were dispersed, nothing happened ?

Mr. Moowey. Nothing happened.

Senator La Iforrprre. Did you visit the plant on Thursday?

Mr. Moowgy. 1 did.

Senator La Forrerre. In the morning?

Mr. Mooxey. Yes, siv; T did.

Senator Lia Forrerre. What happened then, or what did you do,
or what did you observe?

Mr, Moonzy. Things were quiet on Thursday.

wenator La Foruerre. Were there any pickets out ?

Mr, Mooney. There was a few of them out in front.

Senator La Forrerre. How many, would you say?

Mr. Mooxey. Oh, I would say § or 10.
1 S%nator La Forzerte. Were you there more than once on Thurs-

ay?

Mr. Mooxzy. I was there three or four times.

Senator La Forrerre. And you observed nothing on Thursday
of any untoward nature?

Mr. Moowey. No; I didn't.

Senator Lia Forurere, Everything was peaceful and quiet?

Mr. Mooney. Very quiet.

Senator La Forumrre. Was there any of these pickets that were
on duty on Thursday calling any names?

Mr. Moowry, No; everything was very orderly Thursday.
~ Senator Lia Forrerre. Did you visit the plant on Friday also?

Mr. Moonsy. Yes, sir; I did.

Senator La Forrerre. Several times?

Mr. Moonzy. Yes; and I stayed there quite a bit.

Senator Lia Forrerre. What occurred on Thursday, if anything.

Mr. Moowry, Nothing happened on Thursday.

Senator Lia Forrerre. T mean Friday.

Mr. Mooney. Friday I stayed there all day and I left there about
& quarter past five and everything was peaceful.

Senator La Fourrrre. Up to that time?

Mr. Mooney. Up to that time. .

Senator Lia Forvwrre. Were there pickets there, too, on Friday?

Mr. Moowry. Yes; they were there,
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Senator La Forrerrs, How many would you say?

Mr. Mooney. There was an attorney came out that, T think, his
name was Grant, and Chief Prendergast told him he could have 100
pickets. He proceeded to put them in there. I wouldn’t say there
was & hundred; there was quite a few, I left at a quarter past 5,
and when I got home they called me up and told me there was
trouble at the plant. They marched on the plant on Triday, but I
did not happen to be there. Captain Kilroy was there.

Senator Lia Forrerre. When you got this telephone call that there
had been trouble there did you take any action of any kind?

Mr. Mooxey. I went right out there, :
hSengator La Forrerre. What was the situation when you got
there?

Mr. Mooxey. Well, it was all over, it was all quiet. I called the
fire department ambulance and had three of our fellows taken to the
hospital, ‘

Senator Lia Forrerre. Three officers?

Mr. Mooney. Yes, and three others T sent home in squad cars
and one in a patrol wagon,

Senator La Forrerre. These were policemen ?

Mr. Moonwy. Yes, sir; and then I learned there were three of the
others arrested.

Senator La Forrerre. Three of the pickets?

Mr. Moowry. T don’t know whether they were pickets; I would
call them part of a mob; that is what T would call them.

Senator La Forrerre. Three of the people who were there and
supposed to be sympathetic with the strikers?

Mr. Mooney. Yes; one went to the Bridewell Hospital and the
other two are locked up and the case is pending. It will come up
on July 20. They are booked for conspiracy and committing an
illegal act. That 1s chapter 38, section 139.

Senator Lia Forrmrre. In relation to this picketing, so I can try
to get the picture in my mind, as T understand it, while you limited
the number there was no limitation of where they could go, so long
as t-heygdid not attempt to go inside of the plant property.” Ts that
correct

Mr. Moowey. They could go anywhere as long as they did not
intimidate anybody going in and out of the plant.

Senator L Forrwmrre, They conld go up and down this Burley
Avenue?

Mr. Moonry, Go up and down Burley Avenue there; yes, sir.

Senator La Forrmrme, At any time after the strike occurred did
you have any discussion with any representatives of the Republic
Steel Corporation with respect to the activities and duties of the
police at the plant?

Mr. Mooney. I received s complaint from Mr. Myland, He gave
me a lot of addresses where they were intimidating the homes of
people.that were working, and I telephoned them and our division
headquarters and told them to tell the captaing in this district to
look out for these houses,

Senator La Forrerre. And did anything oceur there, do you know?

Mr. Moo~ney. After we took action on it T did not get any more
complaints.
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Senator La Fornpre. You got no further complaints and you got
no report on anything that had happened after you received this
information from Mr. Hyland?

Mr. Moonzy., When we received the report we put men around all
these houses and we sent our squad cars around therve,

Senator La Forrxrre. Were the police divided into shifts, 24-
hour shifts?

Mr. Mooney. Yes; one shift went on at 8 o’clock, one at 4, and one
at 12,

Senator La Forrprre, Three 8-hour shifts?

Mr., Moowry. Yes, sir.

Senator Lia Forrrrre. How many men were on each shift?

Mr. Moowzy. Starting in Thursday morning there were 91 on each
shift except on Saturday, on account of this trouble and the trouble
we had and we expected at Youngstown and other places—we asked
Chief Prendergast for an additional reserve at the eighth distriet,
and he sent 86 up there on each watch.

Senator La Forrerre. After these police were sent out on Wednes-
day, where were they fed? )

Mr. Moongy. Well, I issued orders they were not to eat in the
plant. They wanted to pay for their meals and I said no, they had
to eat outside ; and somebody went around and said that if these men
fed any more policemen they would blow the restaurants up, so I
told the policemen to bring their Iunch with them.

Senator La Forzerre. Were they at any time fed in the company
cafeteria? _

Mr. Moowey. Not to my knowledge. T issued orders to the platoon
commapdors and the liesutenants that the men could not eat there and
they could not buy their meals there,

Senator Lia Forrerme, When did you issue those orders?

Mr. Moonzy. Saturday morning, ' )

Senator Lia Forzrrre. Were any of them fed in the cafeteria, to
your knowledge, either on Wednesday or Thursday?

Mr. Mooney. Not to my knowledge. _

Senator L.a Forverte. Do you know whether they were or not?

Mr. Moowey. 1 could not say. )

Senator La Forrerte. Prior to Sunday afternoon, May 80, did you
recelve any information that the strikers intended to demonstrate in
front of the plant on Sunday, prior to that?

Mr. Moonuy, T received word Saturday evening that they were
going to march into the plant on Sunday. . _

Senator La ForLerte. Where did you receive that information?

Mr. Moowry. Where did I get it?

Senator Lia Forrerte. Yes.

Mr. Moonzy. I got it from three or four different sources.

Senator La Fourrrre, Can'you tell us some of them, one of them?

Mr. Moowey. Well, T got it from gome newspapermen. They did
not give me their names.

Senator La Forrerre, They what ? _

Mr, Mooxey. They did not give me their names; sald they repre-
sented some paper,
© Senator La Forrwrre, Do you know what paper they represented ?

Mr. Mooxmy. No,

Senator T.a Forrerre, Had you ever seen them before?
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Mr. Moowxy. T talked to them on the telephone. We received
news every day that they were going to march on the plant and you
could never place much credence in it, but on Saturday I did place
some credence in it, and after I received that information I called
the lieutenants in charge out there and told them to tell the middle
watch that comes on at 4 o’clock to report at 3, and I also told the
day men to stay there until I personally relieved them,

Senator THoMas. What made you feel this report was any more
serious than any of the othersg?

Mr. Moowey. I was really there only 8 days.

Senator Tmomas. You sald you received other reports.

Mr, Moowxy. T received other reports on Saturday. I got it from
three or four different sources. I asked Lieutenant Healy what he
lslea.rél, and he heard that they were going to march on the plant on

unday. ‘

Senator Tuomas, Don’t you know those sources?

Mr. Mooxey. No; I don’t know,

Senator Tromas. Whom did they say they were?

Mr. Mooxgy. They said they represented the newspapers.

Senator Taonmas. Newspapermen calling up the police?

Mr. Mooney. Yes.

St:énator Tromas. Did they ask you questions or try to interview
you?

Mr. Mooney. They asked me what I was going to do about it and
I told them I had nothing to say over the phone about anything.

Senator Tmomas. They were probably leading you astray?

Mr. Moowry. I don’t think so; not by later developments, Senator.

Senator THomas. Do the newspapermen generally do that?

Mr. Moonry., As a rule they generally tell us when they expect
trouble. There is a pretty good lot of newspapermen in Chicago.

Senator Taomas. There are a pretty good lot of them everywhere,

Mr. Mooney. Yes; but in that particular town I know all about it.
I was born there.

Senator Taomas, It wag a friendly tip-off, wasn't it?

Mr. Mooxey. As later developments proved.

Senator Tmomas. Did later developments prove that?

Mr. Moowzwy. 1t proved that they were correct; that they intended
to march on the plant. That proved out the next day.

Senator Tmonas. What other sources, besides the newspapermen,
did you get information from?

Mr. Mooney. That is all T got.

Senator Tromasg, All three or four telephone calls came from dif-
ferent newspapers?

Mr. Mooxey, Some of them might not have been newspapermen,
gome might have been others, Il was common knowledge among
a great many people they were going to march on the plant on
Sunday, May 30.

Senator Twomas. Did vou try to find out from any of the men
who turned out to be marchers whether they were going to be
marehers or not!

Mr. Mooney. Yes; the State’s attorney has a lot of that informa-
tion. I wish I could bring it here. There is golng to be a con-
spiracy trial over this and the people that advised them to go there
and march on the police. 'We had all that. I wish T could bring
it here, :
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ator La Forrmre. Did you endeavor to ascertain who any
b'fszcEﬁEaSe informants were when they talked to you over the phone?
Mr. Mooxzy. No; after I got that information T was busy trymng

4o take care of it the following day.

‘Senator La Forremm. You said some of the information you had
c?oft%:lma{\z:tslimreliable. Didn’t you attempt to find out who the In-
ividual was giving you the information as to this incident?
Mr. Mooney. There isn’t m&y way of finding out over the phone,
eiting the wire tapped.
‘exggatggimlljf Fori®rrE. ]%?d you ask who it was on the other end
f the wire?
OEI\%? Mooney. Yes; I asked, but T didn’t find out.
. Sepator Lia Forrmrre. What did they say?
Mr. Mooney. Friend. .
" Qenator La Fourerte. Did they say anything else?
Mr. Moonex. That is all.
Qenator La Forerre, How do you know they were newspaper-

 riien ?

" Mr. Mooxty. They said they were newspapermen, Senator, at the
beginning. )
Senator Tromas, Will you name their paper?
Mr. Mooxrmy. No.
Senator THodas., Just a newspaperman?
““Mr. Mooney. T get that over the phone. ) o
. Senator Twoaas, Well, are newspapermen just soclety’s general
informants? You say you get it over the phone?
. Mr. MooxEy. Yes. ] ) _
. Sgnator Tromas. They give you tip-offs about everything?

. Mr. Moowry. Noj not always. Sometimes they do.

" Qenator THomas. Very valuable? i
Mr. MooxeY. We had a murder case in Chicago, that Franks case,
‘atid the newspapermen came in very bandy there.
.- Senator Tromas. But they did not give their names?
- Mr; MooxEy. Sometimes they do. In this case they did not.
- Senator Tmowmas. After they gave you the information did they

then start to questioning you as to what you were going to do

about it? _ :
. Mr. Moonry. I did not talk to them any further. I wanted to
~gef the wire to make arrangements for the following day.
. Senator Taomas. Did you thank them? .
“Mr. Moonny. T am not much on thanking them. I didn’t say
‘much about thanking them. N .
. “Senator THomas. You didn't say “Thanks, George”, or anything
+like that? . .
" Mr. Mooxuy. I was trying to get the wire to call up the plant
riake arrangements, )
Senator THomAs. You heard the questions that I put to the other
gentleman this morning, didn’t you?
Mr, Moongy. I heard a lot of them, Senator.
Senator Tromas. 1 have been trying to find out whether there
were any outside influences. Now, your testimony about the news-
aperinet calling you up affords a sort of cue to the thing I am
interested in.
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Mr, Moo~ey. Just what dees the Senator want? Maybe I can
explain. T will do the best T can. What is it now, and I will try to
explain it,

Senator Tromas. I want to know of the third parties intevested
in this affair,

Mé* Mooxwy. You mean the Communists, the “Reds”, is that the
idea?

Senator Tromas. Yes.

Mr. MooxEy. T have been a policeman 48 vears in Chicago. Do
vor want me fo tell my experience with the “Reds” up to date?

Senator Tromas. T don’t want all your experience.

Myr. Mooxey. I had a very serious run-in with the “Reds” in 1983,
and I put six of the Communists in the penitentiary. They were
charged with chapter 88, section 189, couspiracy to do an illegal act,
and that was to assault policemen, and that is a felony in Illinois.

Senator Tmomas., That is felony in most States.

Mr. Mooney. They went to the penitentiary. Tt seems to me the
“reds” and Communists like to assanlt policemen.

Senator Tromas. Do you think they are antipolice?

Mr. Moonsy. Absolutely antipolice and antigovernment. All they
are doing in this Government is undermining this Government, and
they are sending money over to Russia to do it.

Senator THomas, Do you think there is anyone in this disturbance
on the 30th that was in Russia’s pay?

Mr. Mooxey. T wouldn’t be surprised.

Senator Trromas, Do you think there was?

Mz. Mooney. T couldn’t say that, but T wouldn’t be surprised.

Senator Tromas. Mr. Mills sent in a report of Communists that
- he had discovered that were arrested. Do you think any of these
men are pald by Russia?

Mr. Moowey. I could not say that. By the way, T saw some Com-
munists there locked up after the riot.

Senator Tromas. How did you identify them as Communists?

Mr. Moowgy. I seen them around at the demonstrations when they
had a parade downtown and we had trouble with them.

Senator Tmomas. Do they parade as Communisis?

Mr. Mooney. They give them a permit in Chicago to have a parade
once or twice a year.

Senator Tromas, There is a regular communistic parade, is there?

Mz, Moowry. I call them “Reds”; T guess some people do call them
Communists.

Senator Trosras, “Reds”—that is all right, T suppose, if you know
what it is.

Mr. Mooney. I will tell you my definition of a “Red”, if you will
pardon me, He is here to undermine this Government and assault
policemen. I don’t know whether that is a good definition or not, but
1};1hat ig what T'think. Tam an American. My grandparents were born

ere.

Senator Tromas. Then yon think the disturbance on the 30th was
a fight between the police and Communists?

Mr. Mooney. It was brought on over there by “Red” agitators to
n%arﬁh down the police and go into the plant and take these men out
of there.

Senator Tromas, The objective was not to get into the gate?
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Mr. Moonzy. Get into the plant. o _

Senator T'momas. That was the general objective described by the

entleman this morning, but you have said now the fight was actually
a fight between Communists and policemen.

Mr. Moowey. But in order to get into the plant they would have
to get by our lines, but we would not let them in. I told every platoon
commander to hold those lines, )

Senator Tromas, But if they had wiped out the policemen part of
their objective would have been accomplished?

Mr. Mooxgr. Yes; and then the loss of life would have been two
or three hundred instead of 10.

Senator Twonas. T agree with you on that. It would have been
more, probably. You think this affair—T called it trouble in the
beginning of it and I still think that is a good word, but your col-
leagues <id not think sc—that this affair was primarily an affair be-
tween the police and those persons who we call Communists and that
it was not incident to the industrial troubles? '

Mr. Mooxgy. It wound up between us and the Communists, but
their real object was to get the plant and take these men ouf of it.
It was my place as a sworn police officer and the commanding officer
of the policemen there and my duty to find out about it and to pre-
vent it, and if I did not do that I could have been indicted and put
in prison. I could not let them get by those lines. ' .

enator TEomas. So if they had gotten in and accomplished their
purpose, if their purpose was to bring the men out, as Communists
what would they have accomplished ? ' -

Mr. Moongy., They would have accomplished killing a lot of people
in there, _
mSenator Troamas. Do vou think all people you call Communists
want to kill people, that that is one of their objectives?

Mr. MooNry. Not all of them, but all that T have met. Maybe
there is some I have not met. o _ ‘

Senator Tmomas. Do you think that murder is just inherent in their
nature? )

Mr, Mooney, Those that T met it seems that way. )

Senator Tmosas, They want to murder more people than just the

“ policemen, then, do they?

Mr. Mosney. I am a policeman and T don’t know what they done

. to others.

Senator Troaas. T just can’t understand that situation, just the

- desire to kill, because generally you kill for a purpose. If the fight
. 18 just one between Communist and the police, then it is a simple

fight and we wonld know how to legislate againstit.
Mr. Moonzy. We represent the law, the untformed police represent
the law of the State of Illinois and the city of Chicago, and that is

~why the Communists go after the police. I don’t think it is any-
“thing personal, it is the uniform and the opposition we have. I don’t

think Communists have anything against us particularly, except that

We are policemen,

Senator Tmomas, Do you think Communists are against uniforms?
Mr. Moonpy. I am positive they are. We have a policeman in
the fifth district who has his leg fractured and another with a plate

. inhis skull. He is an object of pity—all done by the Communists.

Senator Tronmas. Did they say they were Communists?
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Mr. Moonwy., I have the names of six of them. They all went to
the penitentiary, '

Senator Tromas. They didn’t go to the penitentiary because they
were Communists?

Mr. Moowey, I read the section on conspiracy and doing an illegal
act, and the illegal act was assaulting policemen.

Senator Tuomas. There have heen people who were not Com-
munists who have assaulted policemen, haven’t there?

Mr. Mooney. Not in large numbers.

Senator Trowmas, Not in large numbers ?

Mr. Mooxey. Noj not 50, 100, or 300 together. I haven’t met them
yet. The only ones T have met that would do that, and I have been
43 years at it, are “Reds” or Communists.

Senator TaomAs. In the labor troubles before was it a communistic
trouble generally?

Mr. Moongy. In the labor troubles I have had?

Senator Trowmas. Yes,

Mr. Mooxey. This last trouble where they went to the peniten-
tiary, it was a Communist trouble. They were trying to attack the
relief station there at Fiftieth and Vincennes Avenue.

Senator TroMmas, That was under the Government, it was a Gov-
ernment relief station, wasn’t it?

Mr. Moongy. Yes; there was a lot of our policemen hurt that
time.

Senagtor Tuomas. Do you think the same people were in this
crowd?.

MI‘.hMODNEY. T wouldn’t say they are the same—the same caliber,
though.

Senator Traomas, The same objectives?

Mr. Mooxey. Oh, yes.

Senator Tmomas. Then the objectives of these strikers was just
destruction?

Mr. Mooxpy. Could I make a recommendation that would clarify
the mind of the Senate committee?

Senator Tmomas. Yes, sir.

Mr. Mooxwy. Deport every one of those Communists and all of
those “Reds” out of the country, and then we will get along, they
won’t be assaulting policemen and dynamiting buildings, and then
we will have a good Nation.

Senator Taomas. Where would you send them ¢

Mr. Mooxzy. Back to Russia; go over there with Lenin.

Senator TroMas, Where would you send the Americans?

Mr. Moonzry. I didn’t know there were so many Americans Com-
munists,

Senator Tuomas. On this list there are two or three marked
American. :

Mr. Mooxey. ¥ am quite surprised at it.

Senator THomas. You think this movement is a foreign move-
ment, primarily.

Mr. Meowey. It is a foreign government movement,

RSenator Tromas. You actually think they were paid agents of
ussiaf
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| Mr. Mooneyr. I would say some of them must be. The reason I
think so, down in the fifth distriet some of those way up in the

“Commumist Party have left for Russia to get further 1natructions.

Senator THomas. Do you know what part of Russia they went to?
. Mr. Mooxzy. They went to the capital.

Senator Tuomas, Where is thatt

Mr. Moonexy. Well, where Lenin is,

[Laughter. ]
 Senator THomMaAs. Do you think that these people got their instruc-

“tions regarding this strike from someone in Russiat

. Mr. Mooxny. Well, it is my belief—of course, I am not always
right—you asked me if that is my opinion—yes. T think they are the
cause of a lot of unrest in this great country of ours.

Senator TrHomas, You think it all hag its origin in Russia?

- Mr. Mooney. A lot of it has; yes.
. Senator THoamas. Is Russia bothered with any unrest ?

Mr. Moowey. 1 see they shot seven or eight generals over there
the other day. I don’t know how they are getting along. They
have big jobs. I really don’t kmow, Senator.

* Senator Tuomas. Then that unrest over there would be due fo a
difference of opinion, wouldn’t it, about something?
Mr. Mooxey. Well, if they act anyway over there like the way

“they act here T don’t know how they have got along as far as

they are. ) )
Senator Taomas. Yon don’t believe in just shooting people, like

they did in Russia?

Mr. Mooney. Unjust shooting of people?

- Senator Tromas. Just shooting people, just because they disagree

with the leaders?

. Mr, Mooney. T don’t believe in shooting or hurting anybody.
Senator THoMas., You wouldn’t like in this policy which you are
iggesting for exportation, you wouldn’t like for us to. shoot the
merican citizens and just export the foreigners?

~Mr. Mooxzy. They do that in Russia. T don’t believe they wiil

aver do that in America.

Senator Tromas. Do they export people in Russia?

Mr. Mooney. T don’t know what they did over there and I will
never go there to find out.

_ Senator Tuomas. Do you know whether people can come out of

Riussia?

r. Mooney. T could not say.
enator Twomas. These Communists likely have not come from
ligsia that are in America, have they?

Mr. Moowey, T kind of think the fellows we had years ago that
they called Anarchists and T. W. W.’s, they all got into this new
movement they have under another name.

‘Senator Twowas, What is the new movement?

Mr.. Moowey, The Communists, they call it——Anarchists and

L. W. W's during the war, and now they are Cominunists.

Senator Tromas. You think they are all the same?
Mr. Moowey. T think they are.
‘Senator Taomas. You think the I. W, W. movement out in Cali-

fornia was instituted by Russia?

I 80562-—37——pt. 14— 5
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Mr. Mooxmy. I don’t know that; I don’t think so. _

Senator Tmomas. Do you know anything about the anti-Chinese
movement in California, a little while earlier? '

Mr. Moonzy. I never was ouf there—I don’t know.

Senator Trrontas. We have had strikes in other places but Chicago.
Do you think the Russians have anything to do with the troubles
down in Harlan County?

Mr. Moowzy. Except I would be there I don’t know.

Senator Tromas. You believe that they had something to do with
the troubles down there?

Mr. MoowEy. I could not say. I really don’t know. I never was
there. T guve you my reason for thinking so when T said the ring
leaders were over in Russia for further instructions.

Senator Taomas. Have they come back?

Mr. Moowwy. T was transferred out of the district, and T don't
know whether they came back or not, and another thing, T wasn’t
much inferested.

Senator Tromas. Tf they do come back what do you think their
objective will be? Do you think they may come down and destroy
the Senate? ' .

Mr. Mooxey. If they are left alone to run this country long
enough, I don’t know where they will wind up.

Senafor Tromas, How did they come out at the last election ?

My, Moormey. You mean the Communists at last election ?

Senator Taomas, Yes. :

Mr. Moowey. T did not look at it. T didn’t know they were on the
ticket the last election,

Senator Tmomas, As an orderly process, then, they are not much
of a problem for us, are they?

~ Mr. Moowry. I think they are a bigger problem than we have ever
given a thounght to.

Senator Tromas. Have you any Communist city councilmen in
Chicago?

Mr. Moowey. I am glad to say we have not.

Senator Tmomas, Anyone running for city council on the Com-
munist ticket in Chicago?

Mr. Mooxey. Ile did, but he didn’ got four votes. Nobody both-
eredd with him. '

Senator Tromas. He didn’t get any?

Mr. Mooxpy. No. Communists are not very strong there. They
have about 80 units there in Chicago. I am only making a rough
guess. 1 think probably we have 80,000, including the colored.

Senator Tromas, There are a lot of colored Communists?

Mr. Moonry. Oh, yes.

Senator Tromas. Did they come from Russia?

Mr. Moowey. No; they got the Communists over there teaching
them the ideas.

Senator Trosas. When communism was spreading itself over
China a great number of Chinese went to Russia to school. Have
any Negroes from Ameries gone over to Russia to study?

Mr. Mooxzy. Yes, sir,

Senator Troamas, How did they get along there, do you know ¢

Mr. Mooney. I never heard. '

Senator Tmomas. Have you seen any that hiave come back?
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‘“Mr. Mooxey. No.

‘Senator Troumas. Do you know of one that went?

Mr: Moowezr. I did know—just offhand I don’t remember the
names, but I remember one went. )

Senator Trrosas. Did they put his picture in the paper that he

: i & A

was going to Russia to study communism?
CMIt') Mooney. I don’t take the Daily Worker and I don know.

‘Senator Taomas. But in the regular paper that would be a news
itém, “American Negro leaves for Russia to study communism”—
that would be worthy of news, wouldn’t it

‘Mr. MoowEey. 1 don’t remember of seeing it in the paper. i

Senator Tmomas. Have you any definite information which this

_ committes could use in studying the communist peril, if it is a peril

to: this country? . _ .
‘Mr, Mooxzy., When 1 go back T will try to get this committee all

+the information I have on it}

Senator Tmomas. We would like to have it, but we would like
something definite.
“Mr, Moonzwy. 1 will get it for you. '
Senator THomas. You see we have not even been able to get a
efinition yet of a Communist. You have come pretty close to it.

A Communist, according to your idea, is a man who is against the

Government and against policemen. That is a pretty good definition,
little bit better than most of the definitions we have had, but still
1t would not hold, because all the people that are against govern-
ment and all the people that are against policemen could not be
classified as Communists, could they?
~Mr. Moowey, Not all, po; but, Senator, where they come three or
féur hundred together or more and assault policemen collectively, the
only ones I know that would do that are Communists or “Reds.”
~Senator THoMAs. Tave any policemen been attacked while they
¢-glone in Chieago by groups of men? Is there a raid on police-
- Mr. Mooxwy. They don’t get very far there with raids on police-
men; Senator.
Senator Tmosras. Have any policemen been hurt on their beats by
veople that you would identify as Communists?
Mr. Mooxgy. No; no. The only trouble we have is in mass forma-
1 or trouble like a relief station, or if there is ever a strike, even
f the Communists are not. interested, they show up and help.
Senator Trosas. Tf they wore actually against policemen they
ould try to pick them off one at a time?
Mr. Mooney. That would be serious to do that.
Ste;mtor Trowmas. In other words, they haven’t the nerve to do
aE2:
- Mr. Moonmy. I wouldn’t say what it is, but it is very serious if
‘do: that. ‘
enator Tmonas. I should think it would be serious.
Mr. Moowey. Yes; it is.
Senator TmomAs. But you haven’t any evidence of their feeling
b much hate against policemen that they would do that?
{No response.)
Sénator Trmomas. Do the policemen hate the Communists?

This information had not been provided at the tlme of going to press,
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Mr. Moowey. I don’t know whether they hate them or not. T
don’t think they are crazy about them. [Laughter.]

Senator Tromas, Do they have any more trouble in arresting
Communists than any other lawbreakers?

Mr, Mooxgy. They resist every time we have trouble in mass for-
mation. They do put up a battle, and that 18 why our policemen
become injured. In this particular station, the fifth district, one
man is walking around with a plate in his head, another one with a
cane, and they are put on light duty, and then they are through. We
pay them their salary, but they can’t do anything. It is really piti-
tul. Since these six went to the penitentiary in 1933 it stopped that
down there in that partienlar distriet. :

Senator Tmomas, You absolutely think it was good to send them?

Mr. Mooxey. I think the penitentiary stopped them; yes, sir.

Senator Tromas. They were in the penitentiary when this 30th of
May incident took place?

Mr, Mooney. No. Let me tell you they did not stay in the peni-
tentiary; they got out on a writ of supersedeas, and the appellate
court reversed the decigion on the ground that the trial judge made
gsome improper remarks, Then they pleaded guilty, after about 5
months in the penitentiary, and they got 30 days in jail.

Senator Tmomas, Were any of these men that have penitentiary
sentences facing them now in the strike group the other day?

Mr. Moowey. I didn’t see any, Senator.

Senator Tromas., You think they were there?

Mr. MooxNEY. I could not say. I did not see them,

Senator Twomas. If there is a big Communist movement and
they were actual Communists, they probably would be there, wouldn’t
they?

Mr. Moowey. Well, T didn’t see them, Senator, I don’t know
whether they were there or not.

Senator Lia Forrerre. Captain, after you received this informa-
tion that there was trouble impending on Sunday, did you communi-
cate that information to Commissioner Allman?

Mr. Mooxey. On the following Sunday, or Saturday night, you
mean, Senatorf ‘

Senator La Foriprre. Yes; when you heard on Saturday night
from these newspapermen or people who said over the phone they
were newspapermen, did you communicate that to Commissioner
Allmant?

Mr. Moowzey. T tried to get him on the phone and could not. The
following morning

Senator La Forierte (interrupting). Just a minute—did you com-
municate with Captain Prendergast?

Mr. Moowgy. Yes, sir.

Senator La Forrerre. Did you discuss with Captain Prendergast
the police measures that should be taken in anticipation of this
trouble?

Mr. Mooxzy. I told him what I already did in the matter. I just
told you what I did about getting the middle wateh to come out at
quarter of 8, holding the day men and ordering the reserves of
South Chicago down there. '

Senator La Formerre. You thought you had enough men ordered
to duty to handle the situation?

Mr. Mooxey. I did; yes, sir.
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Qenator Lia Forrmrre. And did Captain Prendergast agree with
vou that you had enough men there when you told him what you
had done?

Mr. Mooney. He asked me two or three times if I had enovgh men
and I said T thought I had enough to handle it.

Senator Lia Fornerre. Did you disclose this information you re-

ceived on Saturday from these alleged newspapermen, over the

phone, to any other official ¢ :

Mr. MoongY, No; I could not because T do not know yet who they
are.
" Senator La Forrerre. But T mean did you take up the informa-
tion that you received with anyone else.
" Mr. Mooxey. Officially, you mean?

Senator La Forrprre. Yes.

" Mr. Mooxey, Not officially; no.

Senator T Forrerre. Did you discuss it with United States At-

‘torney Igoe?

“Mr. Moowry. The United States district attorney is a friend of
mine and a neighbor of mine, and 1 walked over there Sunday after-
tioon and I said, “T am afraid they are going to march on the plant
and T am sorry for it; I am afraid we are going to have trouble,
T wish there was somebody who could tell them ‘Reds’ not to do it.”

Senator LA Forrerre. 1 offer for the record a letter under date of

June 29, 1937, addressed to myself and signed “Michael L. Igoe,
United States attorney [reading] :

- My DEar SEnatorR 1o TForngrre: In accordance with eoaversation had with
Ar. Robert Sher, of your eommittes, I am writing to report of a meeting I had

with Capt. James Mooney of the Chicago police force on May 30 last.

= Captdin Mooney came t¢ my home ou the afternoon of that day and reported

‘o me that Bie had been endeavoring to make a contact with some aunthority

swhich might prevail upon the strikers in the South Chicago arca to refrain

“from marching in mass formation to the premises of the Republic Steel Co. He

old me he had been on duty in the strike area, knew the temper of the people
of that district and was fearful of what might oceur in the event a large group

of strikers and their sympathizers were to move toward the property of the

teel company. I told him I was without power in my official capacity to
revent the gathering of persous at the point mentioned and expressed the hope
that no physieal violences wonld occur. I did not see Captain Mooney there-
after until late in the evening of the same day when he and I were both
pregent at a conference called by Governor Horner of this State.

- L might add further, that I presume the reason Captain Mooney called npon

e was because he is and hag been my close neighbor and friepd for a great
number of years. .
Yours very truly,
MicHaBL L. IQOE,
United States Attorney.

(The document was marked “Exhibit 1340.”)
Senator I.a Fourerie. Does that represent the substance of the

" conversation, as you recall it?

. Mr., Mooxgy. Senator, that is correct.
' Senator La Forcerre. And at what time on Sunday did you ar-

-1__-ive at the Republic Steel plant?

‘Mr. Mooney. I got there about 1 o'clock—let’s see, wait, T want

'-'_‘(tio"get. that right. I got there about 2 o'clock, about 2 p. m. Sun-
-day.

“ Senator La Forrerre. What was the situation at the time of your
¥rival there? :

' Mr. Moowzy. Things were very quiet.
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Senator La Forrerre. Had you already issued instructions con-
cerning the 4 o’clock shift and the 8 o’clock shift before you got on
the ground?

Mr, Moowey. Yes, sir.

Senator LA Forrxrre. How many men in all were there when you
got there, how many policemen ?

Mr. Moowey. The middle watech had not arrived, of course, at
a guarter of 8, but after a quarter to 8 we had aproximately 300
policemen there.

Senator I.a Foruerre. Did you give any instructions to the men
or to officers who were subordinate to you concerning the anticipated
trouble?

Mr. Moowzy. I called the captains, that is Captain Kilroy of the
ninth district and the platoon commanders, that is, Heutenants, and
I told them T expected a march on the plant and I expected every
man to do his duty and hold that line, that they were not going
into that plant. T told the lieutenants they were responsible for
every man in the platoon, and I also told Sergeant Liyons to deploy
over on the left so they could not get through that railroad gate.

Senator La Forrerre. How many men would he have at that
point?

Mr. Moowey. You mean Sergeant Lyons?

Senator Lia Forrerte, Yes.

Mr. Mooxey, Ie had a platoon; 82 men.

Senator La Forerrs. Did you give any other instructions?

Mr. Mooney. I told Captain Kilroy we expect trouble there,
that we may get them to turn back. T said, “What I want to do, we
don’t want anybody hurt, we will try to talk to them; maybe we
can turn them around, but”, I said, “I want everybody to hold their
head, not use revolvers unless they have to, and when they show up
you talk to them and I will talk to them and see what we can do.”

Senator L.a ForLerre. Then you did issue instructions that they
were to use firearms only in a situation in order to defend them-
selves, is that correct? :

Mr. Moorey. That is correet, Senator.

Senator Lia_ Forrerre, What kind of arms did the policemen
carry on thig day?

Mr. Moowey. They all carried the regulation revolver. It calls
for a .38 Smith & Wesson or a Colt, 4-inch barrel.

Senator La Forrerre. Ts that what is commonly known as a po-
lice special?

Mr. MoonEY. Yes, sir.

Senator La Fourrrte. What else were they armed with?

Mr. Mooney. They were armed with a club.

Senator La Forrerre. With the usual club?

Mz, Moonsy. They eall them night-sticks or clubs,

Senator La Forvermn, Was there any gas equipment there?

Mr. Moonwy. There was gas equipment there Friday night, in
what we call the temporary police headquarters.

Se:guator La Fourmrre., That was in’ this little house inside the
gate?

Mr. Moonzey. Yes, sir,

Senator L.a Forrerre. How much gas was there, do you know,
Captain?

»
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Mr. Moowsy. The detective division brought out the gas-and I did

-not ask them how much was there, but it was piled kind of high

n what they call tin boxes. .
- Senator L Forrerre. Was this gas out at the place where the

-police were deployed on that day, do you know ¢

_Mr. Moonzgy. I sent for the gas that day.
~Senator La Forrerre. And it arrived there before the— -
Mr. MooneY_(interrupting). I sent a squad car for it.
Senator La Forrxrre, 1t arrived there before the crowd came?
"Mr, Mooney, Yes, sir.
S%nator La Forrmrre, And what disposition was made of it, if
any? .
Mr. Moo~nry. You mean when we uged it ? ,
Senator La Forrwrre. T mean after it arrived from the squad car.
Mr. Moonwx. It was in the squad car.
- Senator La Forrerrr. Tt remained in the squad car?
Mr. Moonrey. Yes, sir,
- Senator La Forrerre. None of it was distributed to any of the
fificers?
Mr. Mooney. No, sir, .
“Senator La Forerre. Were the unused portions of this gas re-

‘turned to the detective bureau afterward, do you know?

Mr. Moowey. I don’t know where the gas came from, Senator.

I don’t kmow what gas they used, in the excitement of it or in the

v I sent patrolmen in there with a squad car to pick up the
gag

« Senator La Fourmrre. From the temporary headquarters?

- Mr. Mooxry, The police headquarters.
Sehator La Forrerre. Temporary ¢

 Mr, Mooney, Kind of shed, where we had a telophone,

“Senator La Forzmrre. And you understood that gas had been
brought out by a detective squac?

‘Mr. Mooney. I presumed it was; yes, :

Senator La Forierre. And did you make that presumption be-
cause ordinarily uniformed men do not have gas equipment ; is that
the reason?

Mr. Moowzy, Some squad cars have gas equipinent, but the de-

tives are the ones that ave better equipped to use it, because they
ire’ ingtructed.
- Senator La Forrerre. They are trained in the use of gas?
Mr. Mooney. Yes, sir,
cnator La Forrerre. Do you know whether any of the squad cars
that were there on Sunday had any gas equipment, aside from this
that you sent for to the police headquarters?
r. Moongy. T could not say.
Senator La Forrrrrr. You wouldn’t know?

- Mr. Moowgy. T told you, Senator, T didn’ see any detective bureau
squad cars there.

“Senator La FovLerte. Were there members of the detective bureau
there on that day? '

Mr. Moonex. If they were, I did not see them.

Senator Tromas. Whose gas was this?

Mr. Mooney. I don’t know. It may have heen city gas or it may
have been gas that was in the steel mill. T eould not say. I don’t
know what gas we used.
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Senator THomas. You mean that the policemen might have used
gas that was furnished to them by the steel mill?

Mr. Mooxey. They might have picked up pas there. I don’t know
what gas they really used. 1f there was only one gas there, and that
was the steel company’s gas I would have used it anyhow. I would
have used anything to stop that parade, that mob that tried to go
through us,

Senator La Forrerrs. Prior to the time when this demonstration
took place did the strikers have any meeting in thig ipunediate vicin-
ity that you know of?

Mr. Mconwy, They were up at Sam’s Place that morning.

Senator La Forrerre. That is that place away up on the righthand
corner of the chart?

Mr. Mooney. Yes, sir.

Senator La Focrerre. How far is that, approximately, from the
corner of Burley and East One Flundred and Seventeenth Street?

Mr, Moowey. About four blocks—five blocks from One Hundred
aAnd Eighteenth to One Hundred and Fourteenth and Green Bay

venue.

Senator La Forrerre, Did you receive any reports from this meet-
ing they had at Sam’s Place on Sunday?

Mr. Mooney, Before the riot?

Senator La Forrerre. Yes, sir.

Mr. Moonwy., Nao, sir.

Senator La Forimrie. You say you got there, if T remember,
around 2 o'clock?

Mr, Mooney., Yes, sir.

Senator La Forzerre. Had you any information after you got on
the %rround that there was any group forming anywhere m the
area

Mr. Moonzey. I passed that place about 2 o’clock.

Senator La Forrerre. On your way out?

Mr. Moowry, Yes.

Senator La Forrerte. Was there a group there then?

Mr. Moonwy. There looked to be about 1,500 there,

Senator Lia Forrmrre. Will you please help us, Captain, to get a
picture of this situation by deseribing on this chart [indicating
exhibit 1327] as best you can just how you dispersed and deployed
the men in anticipation of this difficulty ¢

Mr. Moongy. Let us start right over here af the entrance to the
plant where it says, “Entrance to the plant.” There is where the
men were when I told Captain Kilroy to fall in the company, four
platoons. He fell them in in single formation, and marched out
there down Burley Avenue over east on One Hundred and Seven-
teenth Street. There is where T gave the command to throw them
in what we call company front.

Senator LA Focrerre. That is a single line of men?

Mr. Mooney. Yes,

Senator L.a Forrerre. How close were they standing together?

Mr. Moowey. Regulation distance—three paces, and the regulation
distance from man to man is this way. I gave the command to rest,
and I again called the platoon commander
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I interrupts g t—would you
i 14 Foureros (interrupting). Joust a momen
'ena{iggw]'jnuch territory they covered on East One H}mdred gand
sventeenth Street in company front formation, approximately?
Mr. s¥. About 160 feet.
g&;a%ggogi Forzwrre. From the corner of South Burley Avenue,
18 ?%ﬂ[eogi]w. Yes; that is about right; 160 feet, about.
‘Qepator La Foucerre. There seems to be a building or a house
thereis: Did they cover all the ground between that black mavk there

sund to the corner?
M sy, Right up to about that. ' :
_;%/Ier' Mooxs L pAll right, sir; that 1s the way they were

onator La FouLerte. 1 think you said after you got them m com-
“front formation you called in the
- Mooxry (interrupting). I called the platoon commanders, and

could see them starting to march from Sam’s Place. i

lanator La Foriprrs. Was it then that you issued these Instruc-
; you have telgtiﬁed about ?
: 1Y, Yes, siT. .

Misﬁc;o}iYFOLm;m. Now, a detail of about 32 men was told oft
ner: geant : . .
ni}lelr %fggg;:f Sergeant Lyons was sent over to the left, right in

ing].

: engltl;fl;ﬁ F?)]LLETTE. And that was, as I understood you to say,

‘a portion of the property not protected by a fencet
" Mr: Moonmy. It is a railroad gate that can be opened and closed.
‘Qénator La Foriprre. 1 see—it is another gate and a fence.
i NEY. Yes, Sir. _
'lxiargc[ﬁ? La Forrerrs, How were those men distributed, or could
ol see from where you were? o )
M. MooxEY. I saw they were in what we call skirmish formation.

SQenator La Fornwrre. Separated a little bit from each other?

My, MoonEy. About 2 feet apart.

Qenator La Fouwmrre, How much ground did they cover?

Mr. Mooney. They covered 60 feet, ) S
Senator La Fourmrrs. How far, approximately, is it from the
lace where the main body of the police were located on East One

Hundred and Seventeentll Street and the plant gate; that is, the
giitrance down here where you marched from ?

Mr. Mooxsy. About a block and a half, _

Senator La Forrerre. Is there an 8- or 10-foot tight-board fence,

topped with strands of barbed wire, that runs along the east gide of

o plant ?

- Mr, Mooney. Yes. ) )
Senator La Forrerrm. And there are two gates in that, if T under-
iid it—one the railroad gate to the north that the sergeant wag
ooking after, and this gate down here marked “Entrance to the
lant”?
Mr, Moowey. That is the main gate, ]
Senator La Forrerte, And those are the only two breaks in the
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Senator La Forrerre. Do you know whether the Republic Steel
C‘lor%%mtlon had any of its own guards on duty on Sunday inside the
plant?

Mr. Mooxzy. I don’t know, but I presume they had. There is no
doubt they had, and they do have them there every day, and I don’t
think they are excused on Sunday.

Senator La Forrzrre. At any time when you were out there did
you happen to learn how many they had ordinarily?

Mr. Mooxmy, I inquired and I heard 21, and then again 30, and
which is correct, I don’ know.’

Senator L Forrgrre. Did you learn whether or not they were
armed ¢

Mr. Moowey. I saw pistols outside of their belts.

Senator La Forierre. Do you know whether, in addition to the
regular company guards, any of the regular employees of the com-
pany were armed with anything?

Mr. Mooxex. I could not say; T don’t know.

Senator La Forrwrre, Did you learn whether there were any men
armed with pickax handles?

Mr. Moowry. Ingide the plant?

Senator La Fourerre. Yes.

Mr. Mooxry. T didn’t see any, Senator.

Senator La Forrmrre. Where were the company guards stationed
at thig time?

Mr. Moowzy. What I saw of the company guards was right around
the front gate inside. They open the gates when cars come in.

Senator La Forrerre. They were mostly at the entrance gate?

Mr. Moowey. Yes, sir.

Senator La Forzwrre. Did you sce any up at the railroad gate?

Mr. Mooxey. They might have been there but I didn’t see them,

Senator La Forrerre. Now, you say after the men had deployed,
as you have located them for us on the chart, you say vou saw the
strikers begin to march from Sam’s Place, that place way up thers
on the right-hand side of the chart. Now, will you describe for us
the line of march which the strikers followed?

Mr. Mooxey. They came down this street here, now.

Senator La Forrerre. That is South Green Bay Avenue?

Mr. Moowzy. Yes; and then they zigzagged over to the left.

Senator La Forverrs, Toward the dirt road?

Mr. Moowry. Over here; ves; and over to the left they zigzagged
again; then they went back over about 100 feet and then again over
there and then about there—about 200 of them started for this rail-
roac gate, and then Sergeant Lyons—they saw him there and they
turned back and joined the main column again. There were various
ways of them coming in on this road. The reason they zigzagged,
they wanted to come in where the police were not, so finally they

decided to come in on One Hundred and Sixteenth and Burley.
When T saw them coming I ordered Lieutenant Ryan to stop them,
and we went up there with the balance.

Senator Lia Forrerre. Where did Lieutenant Ryan go?

Mr. Moowry. He stopped them right there at One Hundred and
Sixteenth and Burley.
hSen?ator La Forrmrre. Right at the corner of this line of houses
there !
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- Mr. Mooxey. That’s about right; yes. _
: g{:nal\tor La Fornerts. And then you moved up the rest of the
police! there; yes, sir.
Y Mr. Mooney. I moved them up there; yes, ,
lSe];mtor La Forrerre. And did they move up abreast
Mr. Moonty. The police department?
Yenator La Forrerre. Yes, front
Ir. Mooney., We moved right up company front. .
%talnator La FoLrerte. So, tien, you made contact with Lieutenant
“Ryan at One Hundred and Si?’_ceelnf?[}é Street?
' -. MooxeYy. We fell in on his teft. '
ggnat-or T.a ForrerTE. Now, then, will you please describe 11:0 us,
Captain, where the company front of the main line went 1n re aglon
to One Hundred and Sixteenth Street? Was it all east of there?
Mr. Moo~xEY. We were all over here, all east of there.
Senator La Foruprre. To the right?
. MoonEy. Yes, sir. .
%{{e}ilator Ta Forrmrre. And it cm{*ered, then, approximately the
same amount of territorly, of course?
-, Mooxwmy. About the same. ]
}S\%nalto(;oia Forrerte. Now, were a number of Lieutenant Ryan’s
men west of the road? _ _
mel\/h Mooney. I think a number of his men were west of the road
and then Sergeant Burke came in there with the reserve. Ie was
also west of the road. ) _
: Sé)enator La Fourerre, So you then had a fairly unbroken line
‘from the railroad tracks right east across the road?
WMr, Mooney. Fairly; yes.
Senator Lia Forrerre, Up to the fence?
Mr. MoonEY. Yes, sir,
‘ Benator Lia Forzerre. And then were some of your men geast of
“the fence, the place right there that he is pointing to now?
. Mr. Moox~wy. Yes, sir, )
© SBenator Lia FOLLETTE. Now, when you had come up to this Ong
Hundred and Sixteenth Street point, where were you standing,
mean in relation to the road? ¢
“Mzr. Mooxsy. When I came up to the last place there, east of the
“line, I said to Captain Kilroy, “Go to the mob and talk to them
“and sk them in the name of the people of the State of Illinois to
disperse quietly.”
. ‘:?enatog LA )IZ‘OLLETI'E. As T understand you, you personally were
standing off here to the extreme right?
 Mr. Moowey. Ixtreme right; yes, sir. _ _
" Senator La Formerre. So you would have been about opposite ;chls
black mark on the map [indicating]. Were you about out there?
My, Moonky. T was over a little further that way [indieating],
out there. . .
Senator La Forrerre., About there [indicating?
Mr. Mooney. Yes, sir. -
- Senator La Forrerrs, Were you then on the extreme right ?
Mr. Mooxry. I was on the extreme right; yes, sir. , .
Senator La Forrmrre. Well, then, the police must have been in
loser formation than they were when they were down on Hast One
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Hundred and Seventeenth Street, because they did not cover as
much territory then as they covered before?

Mr. Moo~ey. The same distance.

Senator La Forrerre. As I understood you, when they first formed
on Hast One Hundred and Seventeenth Street they came out about
as far as that house there [indicating]?

Mr. Moozwy, Yes.

Senator Lia Forrerie. Now, then, T understood you to say that
when they got up to One Hundred and Sixteenth Street you were
just a little bit to the right of that fence.

Mr. MooNey. There may be a few feet difference in there, but it
is about in there. T did not just measure how many feet, Senator,
They were lined up in front, however.

Senator LA Forrerre. You said you told Captain Kilroy to go over
and talk to the men. '

Mr. Moonry. On the left.

Senator La Forrerrs, On the left?

Mr. Moongy. Yes.

Sgnator La Forrerre, They were bunched up there then, were they
not.?

Mr. Moongy. Yes, sir; and T talked to them on the right.

Senator Lia Forrerre., Then am I to understand that after Lien-
tenant Ryan stopped the march at One Hundred and Sixteenth
Street that the strikers spread out over the field ?

Mr. Moo~vey. They did spread out, Senator; yes, sir.

Senator La Fourzrte, Was there a whole line of marchers and s
whole line of police all in contact?

Mr. MooNEY. Yes; there were about 2,000 of those.

Senator La Forverre, Were they spread out?

Mr. Mooxey. They were spread out.

Senator La Forrmrie. So that practically every member of the
Ppolice force had some group of strikers directly in front of him ?

Mr. Mooney. Yes. We spread out, too,

Senator Lia Forwwrte. Were there any strikers immediately in
front of you when you were standing there ¢

Mr. Mooney. Yes; there were. .

Senator L Forrerrs. Now, Captain Kilroy went over to One
Hundred and Sixteenth Street where those houses are?

Mr. Moowey. Well, I did not wateh him exactly where he went.
He went over to the left of the police.

Senator La Forzrrte. Now, as I understand it from looking at:
some of these newspaper pictures that were taken, there were two
flags being carried by these marchers, is that right?

Mr. Moowey. I see the flags in the picture.

Senator La Forrerre. Where were you in relation to the people
that were carrying the flags? ‘

Mr. Moowey, T was at the right of them.

Senator LA Forrerte. How far?

Mr. Moowzy. I could not say. Maybe 95, 30, 40 feet.

Senator Tromas, That is af, the right of them in the picture

Mr. Mooney. Yes.

Senator Taomas. Of your right?

Mr. Mooney. Noj the flag was on my left.

Senator Tronas. The flag was on your left?
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Mr. Mooney. Yes, sir, )

Senator Tromas. And.you were on the right?

Mr. Mooney. Yes, sir,

Senator THomas. T see, ,

Senator L Fomxmrre. Now, how many patrol wagons were aut

ere that day at this time?
thMr. MOONEJ;. We had either four or five, I could not say. I could
look up the records, and get that, though.

Senator Lia Forrerre. Where were they located ?

Mr. MooNey. We had them on One Hundred and Seventeenth
Street, and T brought a couple of them up there right back of us.

Senator La Forumrre. There [indicating]?

Mr. Moonzsy, Yes,

Senator Lia Forrmrre. Now, will you state, to the best of your
recollection, exactly what happened from this point on? .

Mr. Mooney. When they got up on the line T told Captain Kilroy
to talk to them on the left, and 1 stepped up and I said to them,
“In the name of the people f)f”the State of Illinois I demand you

isperse peacefully and quietly. .

‘ S%natolr)' La FOZLETTE.q Hadyyou had any discussion with any of
these marchers before then ¢

Mr. Moowey. No, sir. The only reply I got was 4 young man
there who looked to be about 35 years old, he says, “I will put this”—
he had a big club with a meat hook on it—he said, “I will put that
through your skull.” T locked over to the left and T saw a fellow
who looked like a Mexican spit in Lieutenant Ryan’s face.

Senator Lia Foruerre, How far away was he?

Mr. MoonEy. Seventy-five feet, seventy feet. Then we got a barrage

. of bricks, all kinds of missiles, and I told Lieutenant Moran to

throw the gas bombs, so he threw them. ]

Senator Lia Fornerre, Where was he standing ¢

Mr. Moonry. He was standing 5 feet from me.

Senator Lia Forrerre. He had the gas with him ¢

Mr. Mooney. T gave the order to the lieutenant and he ordered
& patrolman to do it.

Senator La Forrnrrn., Did you see him throw the gas?

Mr, Mooney. Yes; I saw him, yes. )

Senator Lia Forrwerre. Now, can you tell ug approximately how
much time elapsed, Captain, between the time that contact was

. made, so to speak, between the police line and these marchers and

that the gas was thrown? )

Mr. Mooxey. Maybe 4 minutes, maybe 8 minutes.

Senator La Forrerre. And during that period, if T understand
you correctly, you had no conversation or discussion with any of
these marchers except your statement to them that you demanded
that they disperse in the name of the people of Iliinois, and the
statement of this man with the meat hook .on the end of the club,
that he wonld shove it through your skull, is that correct?

" Mr, Mooney. That is correct. Then I heard from the back, “What
s holding us up? Why can’t we kick the finks out? Are we going
to let these coppers stop us from getting in there?” They acted like
wild people. T never saw such people in all the years of my expe-
rience. They acted out of their heads, completely wild.

i Senator La Forirrre. Did they say anything else?
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Mr. Mooxey. They used all kinds of bad language. You do not
want me to repeat that.

Senator Lia Forrerre. Profanity?

Mr. Mooxey. The most profane words I ever heard. )

Senator Lia Foruerra. And directed particularly against the police
officers ?

Mr. Mooney. Yes. The profanity was terrible. Of course, we
are used to that, but T never heard anything worse than I heard
that day. They acted as though they were out of their heads.

Senator La Foruerre. Now, then, go on with the events. You
ordered the gas thrown?

Mr. Mooney. Yes, sir.

Senator Lia Forrerre. And it was thrown?

Mr. Moowey. Yes, sir.

Senator La Forrnerre. As I understand you, to the best of your
recollection about 8 or 4 minutes had gone by prior to your issuing
the order to throw the gas?

Mr. Moongey. Yes, sir.

Senator La Forrmrre. After you contacted the marchers?

Mr. Moonex, Yes.

Senator Lia Fovrerrs, Now, how much gas was thrown, do you
know?

Mr. Moonry. Seven or eight bombs. I am not so positive about
that.

Senator La Forrrrre. Seven or eight?

Mr. MooNEY. Yes.

Senator LA Forrerre. They were thrown simultaneously

Mr. Mooney. Yes; as fast as they could throw them.

Senator La Forrerre. Did more than one patrolman throw them?

Mr. Moonry., One patrolman. As T understand it from Lieutenant
Ryan, one patrolman used the gas,

Senator La Forirrre. Do you know whether gas was thrown at
any other point along the police line at this time¥

Mr. Mooxey. Noj I do not. Not to my knowledge, there was not.

Senator L Forrgrre, Do you remember which direction the wind
was blowing ¥

Mr. Mooney. It was blowing in their direction. '

Senator Lia Forrerte. Blowing toward them?

Mr. MooNeY. Yes.

Senator Lia Forrerre. And away from you?

Mr. Mooney. Yes. :

Senator La FoLrerTe, Was it much of a wind, a breeze?

Mr. Moonuy. Well, it was just enough to take.

Senator La Fourerrs, To drift the gas?

Mr. Mooxey. To drift the gas; yes.

Senator Lia Forrerre. Did you observe whether there were any
women in the crowd?

Mz, Moowex. Isaw a few; not very many.

Senator La Forxmrre. Did you observe whether there were any
children in the crowd? )

Mr. Moonry. Senator, I did not see any children. There may
have been some, but what T was looking at, they were all grown men.

Senator La Forrrrre. How many women would you say you saw
personally?
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M. Mooney. Well, I saw three or four.
Qonator La Forcerre. Three or four?
Mr. Mooxey. Yes.
snator La Forrerrs. Now, as I understood you to say, after you
had ordered them to disperse you said that missiles began to fly from
¢ crowd? :
i My, Moowex. That i correct.
‘Qenator LA Foruerre. Bricks, and what else? Stones?
“‘Mr. Mooney. Stones, part of automobiles, nuts; I never saw so
atly. different kinds of weapons. By the way, Senator, we have
gomie of them here.
 SQenator La Forrerre. We want those before we finish.
My, Mooxey. 1 would like to take them back after this is over.
Ttis part of our case in the criminal court.
 Senator La Forrerrre. We will not interfere with them any. Now,
‘to the time that you gave-the order to throw the gas, was there
any.magsed or concerted movement that you saw to break the police
ling:or to try to get through it?
My, Mooney. Right after that they came forward.
enafor La Forrerre. After the gas was thrown?
. Moonzy. Yes; and the bricks; they came forward. Our
on commanders went right at them. Then I could not see for
he gas. We cleared the field in 10 minutes.
enator THoMAg, You mean your platoon commanders went right
hrough the gas? :
‘Mr. Mooney., Right through; ves, sir.  They re-formed again after
raicleared the field and 1 brought two platoons up there,
- Senator La Forrerre. Let us go along a step at a time or we will
oot cohfused. :
Ir; Mooxey. All right. :
Iizia,tor La Forrrrre. Now then, Captain, did you hear any shots
red ¥
Mr. Moowey. T did.
enator La Forrerre. When were they fired ?
. Mr. Moowny, Right about the time the first barrage of bricks
_came:
enator La Foruerre. And that was before or after the gas had
in.thrown?
Mr. Moonrx. Tt was right after the gas.
Senator T.a Fourerre. Right after the gas?
Mr: Moonmy. Yes.
Senator Lo Fouusrre. And was there much shooting or little?
r: Mooney., Well, T heard two or three shots,
Senator La Forrerre. Two or three shots?
Mr. Moowmy. Yes.
Senator Lia Forrerre. And that is all you heard?
Mpr; Mooney. Right at that time. Then in a few seconds T heard
ma;ybe' 15 or 20 shots, but you could not see with the gas. We ad-
nced then. I advanced across the field. I ordered the platoon
omrmdanders to clear the field and advance, which they did; and as
Was.'advancin,r_{m—do you want me to go along now?
Senator La Forwerre. Just a minute. As T understood you, you
arditwo or three shots fired.
Mi. Moonmy. Yes, sir.
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Senator La ForrzrTe. And that was fired to—or after the gas was
thrown ? :

Mr. Mooxwey. After the gas.

Senator La Forrerre. Immediately after the gas?

Mr. Moonry, Yes, sir. .

Senator La Forrerre. You heard two or three shots fired ¢

Mr. Mooney. Yes, sir.
- Senator La Forzrrre. Did you, or could you, see where those firat
two or three shots came from?

Mr, Moowey. I do not know, Senator, where they came from.

Senator La Forrerte. You could not tell from your own knowl-
edge whether they came from the police or from the crowd?

Mr. Moowey. I cannot tell. No, sir; I do not know.

Senator La Fourerre. Now, then, you say after these two or three

shots were fired there was a barrage of bricks, stone and other mis-
siles thrown from the erowd, is that right?

Mr. Moowzey. It came at intervals. There was a policeman by the
name of MeManus down along side of me.

Senator Lia Forrerre, 1 mean in relation to these first two or three
shots.

Mr, Moonex. Yes. :

Senator Lia Forrerre. The barrage of missiles came immediately
after thoge, if I follow vou correctly?

Mr. Moowey. That is right.

Senator La Forrerre, Then you heard 15 or 20 shots?

Mr. Mooxey. Yes, sir.
hSe@nator La Forrwrre. Did you hear any other shooting after
that?

Mr. Mooney. T heard some shooting after that; yes.

Senator LA ForrerTE. When ?

Mr. Mooxey. Oh, maybe 2 or 8 minutes later. .

Senator Lia Forrmrre, Now, what did you hear then? How many
shots would you say? '

Mr. Mooxey. Well, some of our patrolmen fired in the air to stop
the barrage of bricks. '

Senator La Forrerre, How many shots would you say?

- My. Moonry. Oh, T heard 25 or 30 shots. |

Senator Lia Forrerte. So that altogether you heard approximately
50 shots?

Mr. Moowey, Yes, I did.

Senator La Forrerre. In the whole encounter?

Mr. Moowry, About that; yes.

Senator La Forirrre. Now, in your immediate vicinity, and where
vou could see, did you see any of the officers shooting? By “officers”
I mean patrolmen or anybody in uniform.

Mr. Moowgy. Yes; I saw them shooting in the air.

Senator L.a Forrerre. You saw them shooting in the air?

Mr. Moowey. Yes. )

Senator La Forrerre. Did you see any of them shooting as if they
seemed to be shooting at somehody ?
Mr. Moonev. Noj; I did not see them shoot at anybody. I did not

see any of our patrolmen on the ground, except two, when I was
going through.
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Qenator L Forrure. That is, when you were advaneing?

Mr, MOONEY. Yes.

Senator La Forrerre. So that so far as you observed you saw no
police officers or patrolmen shooting excepting in the air?

Mr, Moowey. That is correct, Senator. _ _

Senator Lia Forrzere. And that was during or immediately after
the first barrage of missiles from the crowd?

Mr. MooNEY. Yes, sir.

Senator La Foroprre. Is that correct?

Mr. Mooxey. That is correct, Senator.

Qenator L.a Forrerrr. Now, then, you heard these three shots,
these missiles came from the crowd, there were 15 or 20 more shots,
and then you ordered the line to advance and clear the field, is that
right ¢

Ir. Moonzy. I did; yes, sir.

Senator Lia FOLLET’;E.) N,ow, tell us what happened after that.

Mr. Mooxey. Well, we went through the field, and on the way
through I saw a lot of people laying down, maybe 25, maybe 30, but
we did not stop, we kept on going until we got about 300 feet, and
they had re-formed. i

Senator La Foruerre. Tell us as best you can on this chart ap-
proximately where they tried to re-form. R )

Mr. Mooxey. Well, I will put it about there [indicating], over this

. way a little.

Senator La Forrerre. And how did they re-form? Another lina

~ straight across the prairie?

 Mr. Moowey. Yes, sir; and they were throwing rocks at the police
department. So I got two platoons and went up there, and we
stood there, and T looked back of them—I was going over there to
lock them up, that is what I was going to do, but T saw a lot of
women and children, and I figured, “Well, we will see what they will

‘do.” So we stood there about 5 minutes and they went back.

- Senator La Forperte. And that was the end of the incident, so
far as any clash between the marchers and the police on Memorial
Day is concerned ?

Mr. Mooney, That was the end. ]

Senator LA Forrzrre. Now, may I ask you one other question,
‘Captain? When youn gave the order to advance and clear the ﬁeldz
hat were the marchers doing then? Were they already in retreat?

- Mr. Mooney, No,no. A lot of my platoon commanders, they were
already in action before I gave them the order. )

: Senator La Forrerte. I mean when this was going on and you
were clearing the field were the marchers retreating, or were they
‘resisting the clearing of the fleld? )

. Mr. Mooxmy. In about 6 minutes they were all running toward
Sam’s Place, with the exception of those that re-formed, about 300
‘of them.

" Senator La Forrerre. As I understood you, when you took the two

latoons up there where they re-formed no further shooting or casu-
“alties resulted, so far as you know, at that encounter?

Mr. Moonrr. No.

Senator La Foruerre. You stood there and you saw behind them
- women and children, and you say they threw rocks and stones?
U 89562—3T—pt, 14— 6
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po I\/II(}‘;-B R/[ ct})otlng (}Xceptlng in the air; is that correct? ’ e
. Moonwy, T wa rer .
qorx: M was not over there where they were on the ground,

Senator Lia Forrerre. T did not ask that. I am askineg for what
b 3 .

yolkllfsa}_\ﬁ_[ yourself,
r. Mooney. All I saw was the shooting i i i
. 3 NG 1M th N
t-heé barrage of bricks, iron, and other stuff that }L%ea;rﬁ;&ymg o stop
" 51%3‘;&;1; ‘};‘Abg?ﬁf&sﬁi I’rt, 1ts1 ytoz}rl inl‘formation, and T understand
( t ent, that the shooting that was d
police, excepting in the air, where tk re A
: 1 5 hey were actuall i
Peﬂﬂe was being done by policemen who were on the )(frrillllc;)&slgng o
X T, MOONEY. Defending their lives; ves, sir. ° .
l\fnaﬁ)r La Forrmrre. Defending their lives?
Serﬁ N OOiEY.I‘DGandlng' their lives; yes, sir
nator La Forrzrre, Now, T want to ask y i
. 3 ) 8 you one other
If:)%xl‘i (1;1:(3) fﬁgggl %mtISt hﬂ; yo}L}r ]udgliﬂ:ent, after long expei'ei:m(}zge?slog
, the e police on this day used onl
and weapons, including gas and gu 4 O 5O el oree
slfey: ms and clubs, as was absolut
necessary to turn back those marchers and : S ool
- 4 . : : 2 o [2 t
Cr ﬁung the pohc‘e lines and taking their obj ecgvggevent them from
saidr{tlgo‘o}}fmi?l—. That is the true story; honest, Senator, You just
sl ight there. T could not add anything to if, or detract ]
; lqnq fi‘om If_t, f_‘rem what vou just gaid. ° ’ e
Senator La Forxerre. That is yo it
%/[r. Mooney. Yes, sir. your positiont
enator T.a Forwerte. Now, T offer for t
LLETTE. or tl 0
photograph, marked with the Tetter “J ”, takeﬁeofﬁ);d 3% HOTEPEPEE
{The picture was marked “Exhibit 1341” and is re yrod‘ d in t
appendix on p. 5132.) produced in the

it not?

A . -
© munists to carry them before, either. T
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w, will you look at that photograph,

Senator La ForreTre, No

- please, Captain?

(The photograph was handed to Mr, Mooney.);
Senntor LA [FOLLETTE. After studying it for a moment, would you
say that that picture was taken somo moments after the outbreak of

¢he encounter?
Mr. MooNEY. Yes; it
was, Senator.
Gonator La Forzwrre. Now,
at least so far as it shows the
treat, would it not ?
Mz, MoonEy. They are in retreat on this picture; yes, sir.
Senator LA FOLLETTE. Tt would appear from this picture, insofar
ag it i representative—I mean only so far as it purports to show
the scene—that all of the erowd of marchers that were not on the
ground were in full retreat, would it not?
Mr. Mooxsy. Yes; they are in full retreat, Senator; yes, sir.
Senator La Forierre. Do you notice that American flag in the

icture ? .
Mr, Moonry. Yes; I see 1t.
Genator La Fouierre. That was one of the flags, I assume, that

was carried by one of the marchers near the bead of the line, was

1t looks to me as though 1t was; yes, gir.

it would appear from that picture,
situation, that the crowd wag 1 re-

My, Moongy. Well, T could not say. Tt looks as if it might be,
Senator; yes.
Senator Trosras. The police did not have a flag, did they?
Mr. Mooner, No; we did not have any. 1 never knew the Com-
hey are getting into that

racket now, earrying the American flag. )
Senator La Forrerre. Will you look at the man who is in close
proximity to the flag? He appears to have some officer’s insignia

on his shoulders. Can you see that ?
Mr. Mooxzy. Yes; I sce that.
Senator La Forrerre. Do you know who that is?
Mr, Moowey. Noj I do not.
Senator LA FoOLLETTE. Could it be you?
Mr. Mooney. Noj it is not me, Senator. I wear one star.
Qenator THOMAS. You wear one star?
Me. Mooney. Yes; I wear a large silver star.
Senator Lia Forpmrmn. Who wears twol
Mr. Mooxey. The captain wears two. A
star on the shounlders.
Genator La Forrerre, That was one of the captains, then?

Mr. Mooney. 1 cannot make out.
Senator La Forrrrre. Well, he hag got two buttons on there, has

he not!?
Mr. Mooxty. Captain Kilroy will be here. You can ask him, I
know it is not me,
In that picture, which is marked “J”, do you

Senator Lia FOLLETTE. .
see any striker or marcher whose face is turned toward the police?
Mr. Moonzy, In this picture here that I am looking at?

Qenator La Forrmrre. Yes, sir. )
Mr. Mooney. It looks to me, Senator, as if they are all going the

- other way. They are all going the other way.

lieutenant wears a small
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Senator La Formrre. Now, will you look at that officer who is
over to the right of this commissioned officer and who has his gun
in his left hand?

Mr, Moongy. T see; ves,

Senator LaForrere. Do you see him?

Mr. MoonEy. Yes; I do.

Senator La FovLerTe. Well, now, it is pretty clear, is it not, that he
i3 not shooting in the air?

Mr. MooNey. Well, yon cannot determine where he is shooting,
Senator. There were only four lieutenants there. It will not be
hard to find out.

Senator La Forrerre. Well, I cannot, of course, be sure that this
commissioned officer is looking at him; he may be looking at some-
body else; but just looking af the picture yourself, and with your
experience with firearms, would you not say, from the entire position
and attitude of this man, the position of his hand, that he wag ob-
viously shooting toward the retreating crowd?

Mr. Moowgy. Well, now, Senator, T am quite a marksman. T will
have to admit that T have been interested in target practice quite a
bit. In fact, I shot at some competition teams. If he was shooting
there he would have shot that policeman right in front of him. You
can look at that yourself there. He would have shot either him or
the policeman in front of him in the second rank,

Senator La Forrxrre. Now, I could not qualify as the expert that
you are on pistol shooting:

Mr. Mooney (interrupting), T will try and reason it out. e
cannot shoot up in the air and then drop down and hit somebody
ahead of him. It looks to me as if he would have to shoot the other
two policemen right in front of hir.

Senator La Forierre. Of course, it is a little difficult in this pic-
ture to get the actual position of the barrel of his gun. What would
you think anyome would be doing with a gun in that position at
that time? :

Mr. Mooxmy. Well, he might be like some of the rest of them;
he might be trying to stop some barrages there, there might be some
barrages of bricks coming there,

Sem;tor La Forrprre. You do not mean he would be shooting at
bricks?

Mr. Mooxey. He would be shooting in the air to stop them.

Senator La Forurrre. His gun is not in the air, He has got hig
arm extended in this position lindicating].

Mr. Meoney. Well, novw, Senator, he could not shoot by that po-
liceman—by those two policemen—and then have it drop down and
have it hit somebody in this particular instance. Tf you shoot you
have got to shoot like that [indicating]. You cannot shoot. up in the
air and then drop down again. Tt will not be hard to find out.
There were only four lieutenants there. It will not be hard to find
out whom he was shooting at.

Senator La Forcwrre. Now, it is pretty clear, is it not, that man
on this officer’s right that we have been talking about, I mean this
policeman to his right in the picture, that is on our right in the
picture, he is pretty clearly shooting up in the air, is he not?

Mr. Mooxuy. Yes; it looks as if that is what he has been doing.

Senator La Forrerre. His gun is pointed straight wp?

At the beginn 1
“toward the crowd, Captain,
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. Moonmy. Yes. _ o
glélriml%f)?' ta Forrerre. Whereas the other policeman’s gun seeimns
£ - -
o be pointed straight out.

1 T i ' o
égﬁ'gggrll}lgggg}{ﬁgol\izty I ask one question while we are resting?!

: . a
ir testimony you said when you move
o that youydid not see any children, and
ter you got further over you said you saw a number of women
got £
ngiﬁhi\%?ﬁﬁ. When they re-formed on us the se;;ond time.
Senator Tromas. The children were staying back? block. u
Mr. MoowEy. They were away up there about a half a block, up

ar Sam’s Place, so I did not go up there.

o : ildren w say were there
‘Senator Tmomas. How many children would you say

o .
heﬁr MooxEy. Oh, I saw seven or r;alght.
 Senator Tuonmas, Seven or eight?
fr. Mooxry. Yes, .
Senator Tromas, How many women

- =y, Mavbe 10 or 12, o )
%gial::%?%?lonmg How many of your men are represented in this

picture, approximately? We can count them, of course, but will you
-look a.t’the picture and tell us?

g t of them.
) rY. I would say 40 percent of them, 30 percen !
BS{EEH.B&)%O?T[‘HOMAS. Where were the others in relation to that piec-

11 ? . . .
mﬁr Mooney. They were all around over here [indicating] on the

other side.

or TrOoMAaAs. Back? ) o
%E&IJC\EEONEE. Not back but up here; over here on the right {indi-
cating]. ¢ '
Sertf;tor Taomas. On each side?

Mr. MoonEey, Yes. o .
Senator Tromas. All of them were in this one movement, were they ?

re in the railway gates came over and joined you?

T}i\ehm (i\l/}(fcl)gﬁf eThey stayed oveg %:t the railroad gates, Senator.

Senator Tromas. They stayed there!?

Mr. Moowsy. Yes. . .

Senator Tromas. Did you have any reserves at all?

Mr. Mooney. We used approximately 200 men. .

Senator Tromas, You used approximately 200 men

Mr. Mooney. Yes, .

Senator Tmomas. You kept 100 in reserve?

Mr. Mgonny. Yes.

- Tromas. Where were they kept?
%fgaﬁEONgg?r%eH, we had 50 of them around—when we heard

Sy AR cm - . t ways
they were coming in three different ways, or two differen Vs,
: th’eg werd’ going t% jump the fence on the south end; we heard ELh lot
“of rumors, and we took precautions, we did not put them all here
indicating], we kept them moving. o

! 'Senatorg%;{OMAsipWas the crowd able, if it had been under leader-
“ship, to completely swrround you? . ' :
i B%r MOONLI‘)Y. Tgey can’t surround the Chicage Police Department,
~:Senator.
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Senator Tromas. T mean in this movement here.

Mr. Moonzy. They never do it in Chicago.

Senator Twaomas, They will not surround you ?

Mr. Mooner No. We have got as good a police department as
there is in the world.

Senator THomas, T am not talking about that, I am talking about
them »ll. You had 2,500 people against 300,

Mr. Mooney. Yes.

Senator Tromas. The 2,500 people were pretty widely scattered,
were they not?

Mr. MooxeY. Yes, sir.

Senator Tromas. Was there any danger of, say, 500 or 600 of
them getting around you?

Mz, Mooney. T do not think there was.

Senator Tromas. Did you expect them to?

Mr. Moowey. Noj I did not.

Senator Tromas, Did you think about the possibility ?

Mr. Mooxxy. I do not know whether I am egotistical or conceited,
but I just had the idea that they would not get around us.

* Senator Tromas. That they would not?

Mr. Mooxzey. No, sir, :

Senator Tronmas, You felt that they were unorganized to such an
extent that they were not working under leadership?

Mr. Mooxey. Yes; they had some kind of leadership.

Senator THomas, But it was not leadership that was capable of
maneuvering in that way?

Mr. Mooney. It would fake an awtully good leadership, Senator,
to get around the Chicago Police Department. We were enough in
there. If they had continued we would have come in there with
a thousand more men. They won’t get away with anything in
Chicago, Senator, not a thing.

Seuator Tromas. You mean headquarters knew what you were
doing all the time?

Mr. Mooney. Chief Prendergast was in charge. He would have

- senf squads in there, if we needed them.

Senator Tromas. You kept the line open all the time?

Mr. Moonzmy, Gh, everything was alright,

Senator Troaas. None of the crowd made a move to circle you
in_any way, did they? '

Mr. Mooxwy. We did not give them a chance, Senator.

Senator TromAs. Then they did not, did they?

Mr. MooNey. No, sir.

Senator Tirosas. In other words, this one front attack of yours
completely demoralized them, did it not¢

Mr. Moowey. I believe it did, Senator. ‘

Senator THomAs. Is there a single soul there in that picture who is
not running away ?

Mr. Mooxey. No; they are all going away.

Senator THoMas. So they were completely demoralized?

Mr. MooxEy. Yes, sir.

Senator Tmomas. Who is that man in front in civilian clothes?
[Referring to exhibit 1241.]

Mr. Mooxey, I do not know.

Senator Tromas. You do not know who he ig?
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. Moonex. No, sir. ) |
' gﬁmtor Taomas. Were you taking a chance on that man, do you
=11l

think?

Mr. Mooxey. I do not think so.
Seiﬂator TromAs. You do not think so?

. Mooxzy. No. _ .
- 15\}161;1&%0(1)‘ Tromas, You think your officers recognized that he was

that they could trust _—
S.OlﬁiellgrooNEY. Probably a newspaperman, Senator. There were
f them around there, o o

i lé):n(;tor Tromas. Do they bother you in riots of this kind?

Mr. Mooney. They do not bother me. They come around there

C i S. 3 . - -

foéc—fxﬁ%ﬁ- Teomas. What if a striker disguised himself as a news-

aperman came around there, he could do an awful lot of damage,
(Iz)ould he not, in that position? That man with a gun eould have
killed 50 cops, could he not? o

Mr, MOONI;]’T. I never heard: of them doing it.

Senator Tmomas, 1 never heard of them doing it, and T pray to
the good Lord they never will, but could he not do so? Look at the

icture. _
P Mr. Mooney. He would not get very far, Senator.
+ Senator Tromas. He would not?

Mr, Moonzy. No. o )

Senator Taomas. It looks to me as if it would be very easy pick-
ings. )

Mr. Mooxzy. If he had pulled ont a gun, or done anything out of
the way, he would be in the wagon in 2 minutes. -

Senator Tromas. Where were your reserves to get him?

Mr.tMoowey. He would not get very far, no matier what he had
done. ‘ ]

Senator Tmomas. In other words, the police did not take any
chances at all in this? ) )

Mr. MoonEy. You asked me about this particular man.

Senator THomas., Yes. That is the only one T can see where you
did take a chance, ) .

Mr. Mooxmy. He would not get very far if he started anything.

Senator Trrosras, Now look on the other side. There 1s a civilian
there with a policeman with his elub, Who is he! , ]

Mr. Mooney. I think it is one of Captain Kilroy’s d'rlvelgs. He
will tell you when he comes in. 1t is one of Captain Kilroy's men.
1 think, but I am not sure. He looks like it.

Senator Teaomas. He is a police officer, is he?

Mr. Moowey. Yes, sir. . _ o

Senator Tromas. What is he doing with bis right hand?

Mr. Moowry. 1 never saw. 1 never asked him. Of course, I do
not know. . ) _ ]

Senator Tmomas. What does it look like to you? What does it
look like he is doing? ) o .

Mr. Moowxry. It looks as if he has got his hand in his pocket,
Senator. _ _

Senator Tromas. If you saw a man doing that, if you were watch-
ing him, what would you do?
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Mr. Mooney. Well, hs got i in hi
pocbert e }?e a &;:t;gifot his hand in his back pocket or front,

%fnaﬁr TroMas. 1 do not know.

r. Moongy. It looks to me like the front f

‘ Moowzy. 1 ’ 1) : pocket. If 1 d hi

hand in 1115 front pocket he could get his 1‘evglver out butleIhca s

seeS Whlé:]l prIc‘)cket he has got his hand in. ’ et
enator Tmosmas. Here is another civilian wl i i

tor Tn ; ] ctvilian who might be a str
sympathizer in this crowd, too, just in front of the Tan xafir’tllsj'fltlslcae,

coat, the fiest man I agke ' i
coaf, the . sked you about, on the left of the picture, just

Mr. Moowey. I do not recognize him,
Ib\/?naﬁ)r THOM{A_\S. Note his position.

r. Moowwy. Well, Captain Kilroy mig i i
.M DONE F v might tell you. He is capts
in that district. He may have a couple of citizen:}; T could c‘l%ttm 1111;
yog who was there. ' e

enator Tromas. Who was the man ri e 1 i
Is he a newspaper man, do you think? Hight there in shirt slecves?

M] i\ OONEY I 10 l} W NewW [) a
. "i LY, d jated kﬂO Y &
o I 1:[ h.e 15 & SPJ« erman. I Col-lld. ]101:

%’:&ﬂmi}:-\c/)[r Tromas, A newspaperman?
r. Moonwy, I cannot say. He mig : i
Thqere \fvve:r‘o?,i1 a lot of them aroB{]nd thei‘rgght be or he might ot be.
wenator Tmomas. You repeat agai : vou thi
poﬁcemen tool no chances ?n tl:i%g?un, 4o you, that you thinlk that. the
Se%th‘f)?OISI‘EY. HOWX ‘c;ouyou mean that, Senator?
ator Tmonras. Well, there wa i for
at-tﬁck f%‘om the flank or r’e-a,r, was thsérggthmg for them to fear an
r. Moonzy. 1 did not say thaf. T said w
. ) say that. 1 re were able to s
?éilg};gﬁon'.f ;Ne had to handle it. The loss of life Woulg I]ir;}xlfgl?)ti«}alrel
Qén ‘fi;(l)r }-Pley got lilttc})1 thle plant. You know that, Senator
Senator Tromas, ink the fir 7 is t I v
. zﬁreeMwmh e thar 1e first duty is to take care of your men.
r. MoowEy. j orst our i i
of i Moo: I did not understand your question about taking care
Senator Trowmas, Your ow
. ¥I men.
Ié[r. Mooney. Yes.
enator Toomas., Surely the poli in’ i
; o S, police captain’s first dut
fgle of his men, is it not, and only risk them where th)carrls & %}ake
ute necessity to risk them? o8 s
ins‘(/)[%h%[g?;ﬁia:ige\?jgia ji%b t{) 51(21 there, 51(1) kee% them from coming
from sota oo pmd we Qad it 1d everything I could to stop them
go%tenbmto R o stop them here or they would have
Senator Tmomas. You th ; : '] i
Ting ot anaoas ought there was no risk of that mob cir-
Mr, Mooney. I took those i ‘
. . e precautions and stopped them
, Senator Tomas, There is nobody, or no one tlg)zing io cirel
elI& now, is there, in this picture? o yeu
! r. %’IOOTNE-Y. We did not go out there to get circled, Senator
T enator Tromas. The crowd is all going exactly the same way t}
e policemen are going? ny that
Mr. Mooxwy. Yes.

Senator Tromas, Tt i :
. There i . . )
there? ¢ 18 not & policeman coming back either, is

VIOLATIONS OF FREE SPEECH AND RIGHTS OF LABOR 4719

Mr. Moongy. I do not see any in the picture.

Senator THOMAs, So that everyone in the crowd hag his back to-
wards the front of a policeman

Mr. Moonuy. Yes; it looks that way in the picture.

Senator Thomas. Excepting those that are on the ground.

Senator La Forrmrre, Captain, have you ever had occasion to
examine the autopsy reports on the 10 marchers who died as the re-
sult of the Memorial Day encounter?

Mr. Moonuy. The coroner has got them, Senator, and the inquest
is continued until the 14th of July. Asa rule he does not give out
that autopsy until the inguest is concluded. '

Senator La Fourzrre, Now, did you hear me state to Commis-
sioner Allman that these autopsy reports, which will be introduced
in evidence later, show that seven ol these men died from a wound
in the back and the other three from side wounds?

Mr. Mooney. I heard you; yes, sir, Senator. _

Qenator Lia FoLLerTe. Now, assuming for the moment, until they
are introduced in the record, that that statement ig correct, will you
please give me your explanation of the fact that these men died from
back wounds if the police shot only in self-defense and from the
ground ¢ )

Mr. Mooney. Well, if a policeman was on the ground battling for
his life, which he evidently was, by our statements that we got,
their marksmanship is not so good, I know L am a good shot, as
I have to admit, and if I am shooting from the ground and there
are § or 10 of them “Reds” over me and T had a pistol 1 would not
say whether they would get shot in the back or in the front.

Qenator La ForwerTe, But the thing that puzzles me is that, nat-
urally, ‘it would seem to me that if a man was on the ground—for
instance, if I was on the ground and-1 was surrounded by these
people who are attacking me with clubs and so on, that those people
would be facing me.

Mr. Mooney. That is true.

Senator La Forrxrre. And if T shot, even in any direction, I
would shoot them in the front somewhere and not in the back.

Mr. Mooxry. Of course, there is a possibility of those other fellows
that were over them with their elubs, rocks, and other things that
they had, they might have turned their backs when the policeman
pulled his pistol and they might have been shot. [Laughter.]

Qenator La Forrerre. Then if they turned their backs when he
pulled his gun

Mr. Moowey (interrupting). I did not say that. I said it is pos-
sible. Then again he might not be such a good shot on the ground.

Qenator L Formerre. I understand. You can take the poorest
marksman in the world, give him a gun, surround him with a bunch
of men who are attacking him with clubs and let him shoot, and if
he hits anybody I cannot see how he is going to hit anybody in the
back. I can ses if he is # lousy marksman he might miss everybody,
but if he hits somebody I cannot see how he would hit him any-
where except in the front.

Mr. Moonry. Those people who were hammering the policeman
on the ground probably after they saw the pistol they might have
started to go away. You know there is a possibility of that. I do
not know.
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Senator T.a Forrerre, If they started to go away, of course, that
Woulél seem to indicate that the claim of self-defonse was not so
sound,

Mr. Mooney. A number of them might start to go away and the
other number might still be working on them. T could not describe it.

tor La ForLerre. Do vou think the policeman might acei-
dentally have shot one of those who had begun to go away instead
of those who were still there ?

Mr. Mooney. Yes; it was g riot, free-for-all, and they went after
the police department, had them on the ground. TIf there was any
shooting, Senator, they shot in self-defense, they shot to save then.
selves. When they came down there armed with bricks and clubs
to go through us, which they had to do to get to the plant, they
must have thought something would happen to them. I know I
would have if T was a citizen.

Senator La Forrerre. T am not trying to pass judgment on them.,
This committee is only trying to get all the facts.

Mz, Moowmy, Yes, .

Senator s Forrerre. I am sure you must understand it would
raise some question in the mind of a person who had had some expe-
rience with firearms that it is Improbable that men who were sup-
rounding a man, beating him and attacking him would be doing it
with their backs turned toward him.

Mr. Moonwy. 1 did not soe the autopsy-—I do not know. I did not
see the report from the coroner.

Senator La Fourerre T know you did not, and T haven’t even
put it in the record, but T was agl ing you, for the sake of this dis-
eussion, to assume that my statement was correct that the auntopsy
showed that these 7 of the 10 whe died. were shot in the back and
3 were shot in the side. You can see what my confusion is about,

Mr. Moowey. T see.

Senator La Forrmrre. In relation to the report of the officers that
they were shooting in self-defense, on the ground and being attacked,
You can see the question that would arise in anyone’s mind, can you
not ?

Mr. MooxEy. Senator, you could shoot at a man & feet from you
when you are on the eround and miss him and strike gomsbody 20
feet away, that is possible, too—30 feet away.

Senator La Forrerrs. Now from what you know of the situation,
you haven’t any doubt, have you, Captain, that these men who were
shot were shot, however it Mmay have appeared, by police ?

Mr. Moowey. That is my opinion.

Senator TroMas. Do yon know whether the policeman that was
on the ground shot anyone?

Mr. Mooxey. We have statermnents, Senator,

Senator TromMas. They did shoot somebody?

Mr. Mooney. Yes.

Senator La Forrrrre. 